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On behalf of Life Healthcare Group Limited (the “Company”), | present
to the shareholders the results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the "Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2022.

OVERVIEW

The Group is a provider of genetic testing and health data analysis
services. Through its non-invasive tumor genetic testing technology
and professional team, the Group is committed to the promotion and
application of genetic testing in clinical medicine and related healthcare
services. In order to provide the public with easily available, convenient,
high-quality and affordable medical and health products and services, the
Company has continued to deepen its medical testing business while also
expanding the sales of medical and health supplies, Internet medical data
services and other emerging businesses, so as to create more value for the

shareholders of the Company.

The Group has one testing centre in Guangzhou. As of 31 March 2022,

the Group has a number of agents responsible for sales in Mainland China.

To complement the Group's mature early cancer detection by genetic
testing business, the Company now also offers p-hydroxyphenylalanine
(S EE RN AK) test on the patient’s urine using chemical colorimetric
method to early detect cancer tumors. This chemical testing method can
early detect different types of cancer such as gastric cancer, esophageal
cancer, and pancreatic cancer.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

After multiple promoting methods, the Group has currently started to
sell p-hydroxyphenylalanine urine testing products throughout China. Its
turnover has reached millions of Hong Kong dollars. The Group remains
to expand the sales channels of the products to more cities across the
country to further widen the sales network of the Group's product.

The Company, through a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
provides medical supplies including medical thermometers, masks,
protective clothing, disinfectant, virus testing kits and reagents, breathing
machines and other medical products, and also provides value-added
services in respect of the procurement of such medical supplies and
products including providing market intelligence, sourcing of bids,
comparative assessment of technical specifications and cost analysis, and
negotiation of terms of supply.

Due to the frequent occurrence of regional COVID-19 pandemic, the
Group’s genetic testing business and export business were restricted, and
the Group is committed to developing domestic healthcare equipment
service business. Taking advantage of its own advantages, the Group
integrates health data analysis software and healthcare equipment to
provide new healthcare services and products business, which has been
recognized by the industry. Due to the domestic epidemic control results
in the increased costs of the Group, and the overall economic downturn
led to intense competition in the industry, which result in a significant

decrease in overall revenue and gross profit margin.

The Group continues to enlarge and diversify the types of its genetic
testing and health data analysis products and novative medical
technology products, make efforts to extend the healthcare product
supply. Meanwhile, in the coming year, the Group will actively expand
international business and improve its healthcare products and services
business in Hong Kong and overseas, to facilitate more comprehensive
services to its customers with better profit margin.

Apart from healthcare services, the Group is also engaged in money
lending business.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW BHERE
Continuing operations REREEK
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
S HE-ZT-—F
ZA=t+-H ZA=t—H
ILEE ILFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TR
Revenue Wz 92,873 102,041
Cost of sales and services i & K R 75 B R (79,119) (73,719)
Gross profit E 7 13,754 28,322
Interest income FEWA 6 344
Other income and gains H ot A R 5= 927 2,608
Selling, distribution, administrative and ~ $§%& * 288 « 1T &
other expenses HAi X (45,438) (25,632)
Share of result of associates DIEBERRIZRE (5,936) (5,000
(Loss)/profit before tax BB AT (B 1E), 5 7 (36,687) 641
Loss per share BREE
— Basic and diluted (HK cents) — ERREECE) (2.68) (0.38)
Revenue 1§
For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group recorded a revenue of BE-T-_F=-A=1+—HILFE"
approximately HK$92.87 million (year ended 31 March 2021: approximately A& B 8115 W & £992,870,0007% 7T (&
HK$102.04 million), representing a decrease of approximately 8.98% as E_T_—F-A=T-HLEFE: X
compared with the corresponding period last year. 102,040,000 7T) * WA F R R 4
8.98% °

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group recorded gross profit of
approximately HK$13.75 million (year ended 31 March 2021: approximately
HK$28.32 million). The Group's overall gross profit margin was 14.81%
(year ended 31 March 2021: 27.76%). During the year ended 31 March 2022
and 2021, the Group's overall gross profit was primarily attributable to the

healthcare products and services.
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The loss for the year ended 31 March 2022 was approximately HK$37.32
million (year ended 31 March 2021: approximately HK$2.35 million),
representing an increase of approximately HK$34.97 million as compared
with the corresponding period last year. The increase in loss was mainly
attributable to (i) Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the export businesses
of the Company was restricted, and domestic epidemic control results
in the increased costs of the Group, and the overall economic downturn
led to intense competition in the industry, which result in a significant
decrease in overall revenue; and (i) the increase in expenses of the Group
is mainly attributable to the full impairment of investment in associate as
well as the prepayment in relation to share options this year.

Basic and diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 March 2022 was
approximately HK2.68 cents (year ended 31 March 202I: approximately
HKO.38 cents), representing an increase in loss of approximately HK2.30

cents as compared with the corresponding period last year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Healthcare products and services business

Over the years, the Group has built up its experience in the operation of
and understanding in the business environment of the healthcare industry
in PRC.

Amongst the principal businesses of the Group, the healthcare business
became the largest contributor to the Group's revenue in the past five

years.

The Group currently owns one production and testing centre in
Guangzhou, with Practice License of Medical Institution* (28 & 1 &
BERAE),

technologies research and exploitations, as well as provide healthcare

which allows the Group to organize and perform core

services to the clients nationwide.

The Group owns one medical and healthcare service and product sales
centre in Yangzhou, with a business operation license of medical devices,
which allows the Group to organize and perform the operation, sales
and import and export of special medical products, as well as provide
healthcare services to customers across the country and around the

world.
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Due to the frequent occurrence of regional COVID-19 pandemic, the
Group's genetic testing business and export business were restricted, and
the Group is committed to developing domestic healthcare equipment
service business. Taking advantage of its own advantages, the Group
integrates health data analysis software and healthcare equipment to
provide new healthcare services and products business, which has been
recognized by the industry.

Due to the domestic epidemic control results in the increased costs of the
Group, and the overall economic downturn led to intense competition in
the industry, which result in a significant decrease in overall revenue and

gross profit margin.

Looking forward, the Group continues to enlarge and diversify the types
of its genetic testing and health data analysis products and novative
medical technology products, make efforts to extend the healthcare
product supply. Meanwhile, in the coming year, the Group will actively
expand international business and improve its healthcare products
and services business in Hong Kong and overseas, to facilitate more
comprehensive services to its customers with better profit margin.

For the year ended 3| March 2022, the healthcare products and services
segment recorded a turnover of HK$92.12 million (year ended 31 March
2021: HK$98.95 million) representing the turnover generated by genetic
testing and health data analysis services and trading of healthcare
products and a segment loss of HK$2.35 million (year ended 31 March
2021: segment profit of HK$7.74 million), representing a decrease of
approximately HK$10.09 million as compared with the corresponding
period last year.

Domestic epidemic control resulted in increased costs of the Group,
and the overall economic downturn lead to intense competition in the
industry, which result in a significant decrease in gross profit margin.
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Money lending business

The Group currently has a money lender license in Hong Kong under the
Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for
developing its money lending business to generate interest income for
the Group. The gross profit margin generated from the money lending
business has been the highest amongst the principal businesses of the
Group owing to its low cost of funding. However, the money lending
business recorded a loss for the year ended 31 March 2022 because of

handling costs incurred in recovering a long overdue loan.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, interest income from the money
lending business was HK$0.76 million (year ended 31 March 2021: HK$3.09
million), representing a decrease of approximately 75.40% as compared
with the corresponding period last year. The decrease in interest income
from the money lending business was owing to the downsize of the loan
portfolio to zero balance as at 31 March 2022.

The Group’s money lending business mainly focuses on short term
loans, both secured and unsecured, with loan period not exceeding |2
months. Most of the customers are corporate customers. The Group
will charge market interest rate on the loans after taking into account
of the creditworthiness and collaterals of the customers. To cope with
the keen market competition, the Group focuses on existing customers
and leverages on them and their business associates for referral of new
customers. This enables the Group to build up its customers’ portfolio
gradually.

The Group did not grant any new loans during the year ended 31 March
2022. The loan brought forward from last year was secured, with an
aggregate principal amount of approximately HK$17,154,000, bear interest
at 18% per annum and repayable within one year. The loan was fully
settled during the year and thus there was no outstanding loan as at
31 March 2022.
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Before granting loans to potential borrowers, the Group performs credit
assessment process to assess the potential borrowers’ credit quality and
defines the credit limits granted to them. The credit assessment process
encompasses assessment on the financial background of the potential
borrowers, as well as the value and nature of the collaterals to be
pledged. The credit limits of loans successfully granted to the borrowers
are reviewed by the management as part of the ongoing loan monitoring

process.

The Group has a loan approval policy in place which covers information
collection, approval limits, loan approval procedures and loan collection

guidelines as follows:

[ Information collection and verification: documents and information

provided by the loan applicant will be verified;

2. Assessment: credit assessment on the loan applicant will be
performed with reference to the financial background and value of
the collateral provided (if any);

3. Approval: if the loan application is approved, the Group will arrange
preparation and signing of the loan documentations and ensure their
proper execution, including drawdown of the loan amounts by the
applicant; and

4. Collection: will make calls and send reminders to borrower for
overdue loan repayment and when there is a default of loan
repayment, will take appropriate enforcement action, including legal
action, to recover the loan.

Impairment on interest in an associate

B M8 In £ 15 B 1B B 2 8 (Guangzhou Manrui Biotech Company
Limited*) (“Manrui Biotech”) specializes in research and development
of genetic testing technologies, and in particular non-invasive cancer

screening and diagnosis. Manrui Biotech has successfully developed
diagnostic technologies for detecting circulating tumor cells.

The Group acquired 30% equity interest in Manrui Biotech in August 2016
which became an associated company of the Group. Please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated | August 2016 and 9 August 2016
respectively for details.

*  For identification purpose only & & B
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The directors of the Company provide an impairment of approximately
HK$9.10 million for interest in Manrui Biotech for the year ended
31 March 2022.

Impairment of prepayment on share option

The prepayment relates to the accounting treatment of share options
granted to certain consultants. The Company granted the share options
to the consultants for their services to assist the Company to expand the
healthcare market and to introduce business and financing opportunities
to the Group that such services could bring future economic benefit to
the Company’s healthcare business segment. Because the experts above
failed to provide the services as contracted for three consecutive years,
the Company made full impairment for carrying amounts of HK$I1.70
million.

PROSPECTS

The Group's genetic testing business, urine chemical testing business and
medical and health products and services business are complimentary to
each other and create synergy for the Group’s healthcare businesses as a
whole. The customers and business partners of these businesses are local
governments, national institutions and organizations, hospitals and doctors
and other overlapping customers, the Company can expand its sales
network and cross-sell products in all its businesses, thereby achieving
economies of scale and increase in revenue. Besides, the Company can
obtain different information from these customers which are useful in the
age of "big data”. For example, the Company can analyze their demand
and consumption behavior, and their potential demand for existing and
new healthcare products to be launched by the Company. This will help
the Company plan the development of its businesses and the appropriate
marketing strategy to increase revenues.

The Group will carry out new energy vehicles conversion in the future to
initiate basic public health examination program for the elderly, which has
been included in the construction of national basic public health services
sponsored by the government.

With the improvement of quality of life and the raising of health awareness
in the PRC and all around the world, the directors of the Company are of
the view that its healthcare products and services businesses have great
prospects and will bring return to the Company and its shareholders as a
whole.
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Money lending business

Competition in this business remains intensive. Moreover, compliance
with rules and regulations is increasingly demanding. To cope with the
keen market competition, the Group focuses on existing customers
and leverages on them and their business associates for referral of new
customers. This enables the Group to build up its customers’ portfolio
gradually. For compliance with rules and regulations and to manage the
credit risk, the Group will closely monitor and strengthen the internal
control system of money lending business in order to achieve such
purposes. In view of the prevailing market conditions especially COVID-19
epidemic, the Group is very cautious in granting new loans in the year
ahead.

In order to maximise returns to the Company’s shareholders, the
management will continue to seek new business opportunities and

investment projects suitable for the Company in the future.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL ACQUISITION
AND DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED
COMPANIES

Save as disclosed herein, there was no significant investment, material
acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and associated companies for the
year ended 3| March 2022.

@ On 10 September 202I, It REABERKAR DA, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the joint venture
agreement with the joint venture partner under which the parties
agreed to establish the joint venture company, t R E & B & 2
HHMH AR AT, to develop the big health market in intelligent
medical examination, distribution of medical supplies and equipment,
Internet medical technology, and medical research and development

for public healthcare in the rural areas.

Pursuant to the terms of the joint venture agreement, the registered
capital of the joint venture company would be RMB40,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$48,400,000). it R & & & &
B £ B R 2 7 would contribute RMB26,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$31,460,000) towards the registered capital and

own 65% equity interest of 3& R & B & g 8 T R A PR A .
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The investment in the I REEBERBREERBER AR,
which would be principally engaged in the investment in and/or
operation of Internet medical health service platforms and other big
health data services, allows the Group to further develop its core
businesses in the healthcare industry and expand its reach to the
rural area, which is in line with the business development strategy of
the Group.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
10 September 2021.

On 23 December 2021, It RESBERMEER LA, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the joint venture
agreement with the joint venture partners under which the parties
agreed to establish the joint venture company E & & & (3
R)fEEEHRAMRNDA to cooperate on the development of
Internet medical technology, physiotherapy chain management and

standardized physiotherapy platform construction.

Pursuant to the terms of the joint venture agreement, the registered
capital of the joint venture company would be RMBI20,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$146,400,000). it R & & B &
B 5 B B 2 7 would contribute RMB30,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$36,600,000) towards the registered capital and
own 25% equity interest of EENEA (L R)REEBER QAL

The investment in the BE & & (L R) B REEBFR AT, which
would be principally engaged in the development of Internet medical
technology, physiotherapy chain management and standardized
physiotherapy platform construction, allows the Group to further
participate in the healthcare industry, which is in line with the

business development strategy of the Group.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
23 December 2021.
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On 25 January 2022, kR EAGREEBR AR LA, a 65%-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the agreement with the
supplier under which It R EGR R E BB R 2 7 agreed to
procure and the supplier agreed to supply and remodel 132 #
i@ [ mini-buses for the Group's operational requirements for
an aggregate consideration of not more than RMB26,588,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$32,703,240).

The Group is of the view that healthcare services in the rural areas
lag behind that of the developed urban areas and provide significant
development opportunities. Owing to the remoteness of the rural
areas, the deployment of mobile healthcare testing centers would
provide the best solution for the Group to provide such services
to the rural populations. The procurement will provide the Group
with the necessary platform to carry out such business initiative.
Furthermore, the use of pre-owned vehicles will reduce the initial
purchase costs and will be more cost-effective to the Group during

this initial development stage.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
25 January 2022.

On 3 March 2022, It REGBER B AR DA a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the joint venture agreement
with the joint venture partners under which the parties agreed to
establish the joint venture company IR EGRTEERMAR A
A] to develop a standardized information services technology sharing
and cooperation platform for the intelligent management of special

drugs.

RZE-__F—B-+HH AR
AEESKERNMB AR RE
EREEEERAGHEMERI
UZhE B LRBARE
EEERADAERE MEE
BREHEERAAEELEZERE
REIRWEBEPE BRET
BB A R #26,588,0005T (i & 7
#)32,703,2407 7T) °

AEERR ENMEMBEEE
ETRBEFERBFEZHTHE 7
EEAMBREE dR RN
ERE HELDHERRIPL
REPRAEERENADRER
FERBORERATR - RE
FEHRARERBARZES
ATEMBETSE - WIN KU
MERER ERA-_FERRE
MERBAA HAKEMEE
B AR 4 o

EM=E R2HALTHRHAC
E-—#F#—fA-+AHBZA %

RZZE-_-_F=ZA=ZH ' ARAZ
FEMNBRAIIREABERE
ERABIEEGERHIT LA EH
FOBE O FTAORRERILAE
PELURECRIEEEMER
RE AR ER D EER
BREELNEERERMLTSE

A1EFA -



N\
° ENEREREEEARALT

o022 REETeNE
o

Management Discussion and Analysis

Pursuant to the terms of the joint venture agreement, the registered
capital of the WRESBHFEBR B M B R 2 8 would be
RMB100,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$124,000,000).
ERECBREMKRERLDTE would contribute RMB25,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$31,000,000), towards the
registered capital and own 25% equity interest of I RE S B A B

BEMBERAF.

LWRESRTBERMAERAE would focus on the application
of new technologies such as the Internet, big data, and artificial
intelligence to connect, and reconstruct the refined intelligent
management of drug inventories through independent research
and development, production of drug management cabinets that
meet industry standards promulgated in China, and development
of a standardized information services technology sharing and
cooperation platform for intelligent management equipment for
special drugs.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
3 March 2022.
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PLACING OF NEW SHARES UNDER GENERAL MANDATE
On 14 June 2022, the Company conducted a placing of 257,000,000 new
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each (“Placing Share”) at a price of HK$0.105
each to raise a gross proceeds of approximately HK$26.99 million (the
“Placing”). The Placing Shares were issued under the relevant general
mandate granted to the Directors at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 31 August 202I. The closing price per share of the
Company on the Stock Exchange on 14 June 2022 was HK$0.121. The net
price per Placing Share was approximately HK$0.103. Completion of the
Placing took place on 5 July 2022. For further details of the Placing, please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 14 June 2022 and
5 July 2022,

DELAY IN PUBLICATION OF AUDITED ANNUAL
RESULTS

Due to the implementation of the COVID-19 pandemic prevention and
control quarantine measures and restrictions in certain cities in mainland
China, especially Beijing where the Company’s head office and accounting
department are located, the Company’s auditing process for the year
ended 31 March 2022 had been adversely affected by the practical
difficulties encountered in obtaining the required information relating to
audit procedures. Accordingly, there was a delay in publication of audited
annual results for the year ended 31 March 2022. Application had been
made to the Stock Exchange for waiver from strict compliance with the
requirements of relevant Listing rules which was subsequently granted by
the Stock Exchange.

The unaudited annual results for the year ended 31 March 2022 was
published on 30 June 2022. The major difference between the audited and
unaudited annual results of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2022 is the loss for the year is increased from HK$31.2 million (unaudited)
to HK$37.3 million (audited) which is mainly attributable to a provision
of RMBS5 million (HK$ equivalent of 6.1 million) for claims by an agent
relating to procurement of healthcare products made according to a
judgement of the court in PRC.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS
During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group had no charge on
assets.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 March 2022, the Group had no significant contingent liabilities.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group recognises most of its revenue and incurs most of the
expenditures in RMB or HK$. The Directors consider that the Group's
foreign currency exchange risk is insignificant as the majority of the
Group'’s transactions are denominated in functional currency of each
individual group entity. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the Group’s management will continue
to monitor foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arises.

TREASURY POLICY

The Group seeks to generate profits in its core businesses through the
efficient employment of treasury activities. Treasury activities, if and
when undertaken by the Group, aims to enhance the Group’s return on
surplus cash and to assist those core businesses to run smoothly. Efficient
management of surplus cash is achieved by conducting short-term treasury
activities when opportunities arise.

All subsidiaries should comply with the Group's treasury objective and
policy. The Group has designated subsidiaries to carry out certain short-
term treasury activities including securities investment, money lending and
fund investment activities. The securities investment, money lending and
fund investment activities will only be conducted after having considered
the actual working capital needs of the Group. Both the treasury activities
and the investment policy are subject to review from time to time.

As the deposit rate offered by licensed bank in Hong Kong is minimal,
the Group will continue, in the ordinary course of business of the
Group, to use its surplus cash to conduct treasury activities if and when

opportunities arise.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The management and control of the Group's financial and capital
management are centralized at its headquarter in the PRC. The Group
adheres to the principle of prudent financial management to minimise
financial and operational risks. The Group mainly relies upon internally
generated funds and proceeds from fund raising activities to finance its
operations and expansion.

As of 31 March 2022, the Group's net current assets were approximately
HK$157.67 million including cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$37.40 million (31 March 2021: net current assets of approximately
HK$228.45 million including cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$8.57 million).

No gearing ratio was calculated as the Group had no debt as at 31 March
2022 (2021: 0).

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE COMMITMENTS

As of 31 March 2022, the Group had no capital commitments to acquire
property, plant and equipment (31 March 2021: HK$NIl).

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As of 31 March 2022, the Group had |5 full-time employees excluding
Directors (2021: 19 employees). The decrease in the number of employees
was attributed to the marketing strategy to focus on distributor sales. The
Group remunerates its employees based on their performance, working
experience and prevailing market standards. Employee benefits include
medical insurance coverage, mandatory provident fund for Hong Kong
employees, state-managed retirement benefits scheme for PRC employees

and share option scheme.

To provide incentive or rewards to staff, the Company adopted a
share option scheme, particulars of which are set out in the section
headed “Share Option Scheme” in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(@)

Discloseable Transaction on Disposal of an Investment

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated
26 June 2020 in relation to, among other things, the formation of 3t
REMNTKEER B R QA (Beijing Life Healthcare Zhongcheng
Medical Technologies Co., Ltd*) as a joint venture company and
the Group’s contribution of RMB30,000,000 towards the registered
capital of L REMRK B EE B R A7 (Beijing Life Healthcare
Zhongcheng Medical Technologies Co., Ltd.*).

On 29 June 2022, the Group, entered into the disposal agreement
with the purchaser pursuant to which the Group agreed to sell, and
the purchaser agreed to acquire, the [5% equity interest in 1t 3
ENRKBEREBERAF (Beiing Life Healthcare Zhongcheng
Medical Technologies Co., Ltd.*) held by the Group (“Sale Interest”)
for a consideration of RMB30,000,000. The consideration of
RMB30,000,000 was determined after arm's length negotiations
between the Group and the purchaser with reference to the
valuation of the Sale Interest as at 31 March 2022 at RMB26,350,000,

as appraised by an independent valuer using the market approach.

The consideration was fully received by the Group as at the date of
this report. The Company intends to apply the proceeds from the
disposal for enrichment of general working capital for operation and
existing business of the Group.

Following the completion of the disposal, the Company ceases to
hold any equity interest in the L REMR K BER K AR L
7] (Beijing Life Healthcare Zhongcheng Medical Technologies Co.,

Ltd*).

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
29 June 2022.
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(b) Placing of New Shares Under General Mandate

On 14 June 2022, the Company conducted a placing of 257,000,000
new ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each (“Placing Share”) at a price of
HK$0.105 each to raise a gross proceeds of approximately HK$26.99
million (the “Placing”). The Placing Shares were issued under the
relevant general mandate granted to the Directors at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 31 August 2021. The
closing price per share of the Company on the Stock Exchange on
14 June 2022 was HK$0.121. The net price per Placing Share was
approximately HK$0.103. Completion of the Placing took place on
5 July 2022. For further details of the Placing, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 14 June 2022 and 5 July
2022.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) comprises
of three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wang Yang
(Chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Liu Xinghua and Mr. Chan Man
Kiu (“Mr. Chan"), with Mr. Chan possessing the appropriate professional
qualifications and accounting expertise.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 March 2022 have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

APPRECIATION

Taking this opportunity, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express
my appreciation to our shareholders for their continuous support and
the Company’s management and employees for their dedication and hard
work.

On behalf of the Board
Life Healthcare Group Limited

Pang Zhen
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 31 August 2022
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Yuan Limin (“Mr. Yuan") has been appointed as the chief executive
officer and an executive Director of the Company with effect from 29 July
2022.

Mr. Yuan, aged 62, has more than 30 years' valuable experience in the
capital, investment and financial analysis and handled more than 5
listing and fund raising projects in the PRC and Hong Kong. Mr. Yuan
was appointed as executive director of United Strength Power Holdings
Limited (stock code: 2337), a main board listed company of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange™) from November 2018
to July 2022. He was appointed as executive director, deputy chairman of
the board and chief executive officer of China Asia Valley Group Limited
(formerly known as China Graphene Group Limited) (stock code: 0063), a
main board listed company of the Stock Exchange from November 2015 to
January 2018. He was also the chairman of the board and non-executive
director of Asia Fashion Holdings Limited (SGX:BQI) which is a main
board listed company of the Singapore Stock Exchange from December
2013 to November 2015, Mr. Yuan was a senior business analyst with
American Etech Securities Inc. from 2009 to 2012. He was also the
general manager of the CAD Company of the China Ministry of Aerospace
from 1987 to 1998 and an analyst with the Beijing Government's Finance
office from 1982 to 1985.

Mr. Yuan graduated with a Bachelor Degree in Finance at the Beijing
Institute of Technology.
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Mr. Pang Zhen (“Mr. Pang”) has been appointed as an executive Director
and an authorised representative of the Company with effect from
6 December 2021.

Mr. Pang, aged 46, graduated from the real estate operation and
management major of the Department of Civil Engineering of Anshan
Iron and Steel College in July 1998. Mr. Pang has over 20 years work
experience in the real estate industry in PRC, mainly engaged in the
development, sales and leasing activities of properties in PRC since
graduation from college in 1998.

Mr. Man Wai Lun (“Mr. Man”), aged 49, obtained his diploma in Business
Management from the School of Continuing Education, Hong Kong Baptist
University in April 2003 and obtained a bachelor degree of accountancy
from the University of South Australia in March 2007. Mr. Man was
appointed as an executive Director and a member of the Nomination
Committee in January 2019. Mr. Man has over |6 years of experience in
accounting.

Currently, Mr. Man is an independent non-executive director of Elegance
Optical International Holdings Limited (stock code: 907), Millennium
Pacific Group Holdings Limited (Stock code: 8147) and Momentum
Financial Holdings Limited (Stock code: 1152). He is an executive director
of Century Group International Holdings Limited (Stock code: 2113)
and China Clean Energy Technology Group Limited (Stock code: 2379).
He was previously an independent non-executive director of Roma
Group Limited (Stock code: 8072) until | March 2020, an independent
non-executive director of China Trustful Group Limited (Stock code: 8265,
delisted on 12 November 2021) until 9 November 2020, an executive
director of CT Environmental Group Limited (Stock code: 1363, delisted
on 10 September 2021) until 19 April 2021 and an executive director and
compliance officer of Glory Flame Holdings Limited (Stock code: 8059)
until 19 September 2018.

22

BEEE(BRENCEZEARAD
ARTESARERR B2 %
—|‘—H/\E|ié)&

BELE 465 AN\ FLARER
BUMHBRIAIREARHERLS
HERER - BEERBR2FTEE
WETE&R BN N\FEXE-
ERFEIENENERE  HELH
EEg -

XEBEE(XRE]D 9% B
Z=FNARGEEREABRHEH
mlﬁaﬁiﬁﬁﬁ_qvtﬁ A

Eﬁj/x/)“ﬁq—a u‘l’ ﬂfﬂ i X?ﬁ

Em_f—HE—Hﬁéﬁﬁﬂﬁ%$

RRELZEGNE - XEAEHERBIHF

MEEeR -

Zl]]t‘r A

BRl XAk BaENXE2EREEER
Nl (B AReE:907) ERATEEEE
THRAERABBROR: 8147) R ER
ERERAEBRRAAMRORR: 11522
BUEHTES - HAELERBERK
W%E@“WWHR%%M@&#E
BRERNBERERAR (BHAK:
zw%zﬂﬁ§$oﬁﬁgﬁ%%%ﬁ
BRDE (MRS 8072) 2 B I
TEE HEE_T-_TF=ZA—-AB ' #
BrzEEBEARAA (R %ﬁﬂ8%5
R_ZE-_—%+—-A+-BKiE)2
HTEE EE_T_TF T Hn
B AERAEEARLIA(BRHORFR:
1363 RZE-_—FALATHBRE) Z#H
TEE HEE-_T-_—-FMAt+HLE"
REEERER 2 A (B 7R 8059)
ZHOTEERAHREE BEE-E—N
FAA+NA -



N\
° ENEREREEEARALT

N

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Huang Zhifang (“Mr. Huang”) has been appointed as an executive
Director of the Company with effect from 31 May 2022.

Mr. Huang, aged 46, has 23 years of experience in the trading, marketing
and supply chain management in the field of commodity and new material,
as well as risk management, investment and financing. Mr. Huang was
appointed as general manager of Guangdong GW International Group
Company Limited from 2017 to 2021. He acted as deputy general manager
of Zhejiang Fuchuen Company Limited from 2009 to 2016. He was also
a sales manager of Baosteel Precision Steel Tube Co., Ltd from 2000 to
2008.

Mr. Huang obtained an EMBA degree at City University of Hong Kong,
and a bachelor degree in International Economics and Trade at Fudan
University.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Xinghua (“Mr. Liu”), aged 65, holds a bachelor degree in Chinese
language and literature from Beijing Normal University in the PRC, and
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director with effect from
|2 September 2016. Mr. Liu is also the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee. Mr. Liu is currently a
senior management of a fund company. Mr. Liu was with Industrial Bank
Co., Ltd. since August 2001 to August 2016, where he held the position of
president of Beijing Dongdan sub-branch, Shijingshan Science & Technology
Park sub-branch and Fengtai sub-branch. Mr. Liu has approximately 32

years' experience in the financial services industry.
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Mr. Wang Yang (“Mr. Wang”) has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director, chairman and a member of the audit committee
of the Company (“Audit Committee”), chairman and a member of the
nomination committee of the Company (“Nomination Committee”) and a
member of the remuneration committee of the Company (“Remuneration
Committee”) with effect from 6 December 2021.

Mr. Wang, aged 37, graduated from Miyun Campus of Capital University of
Economics and Business major in Business Management in 2006. Mr. Wang
has approximately 14 years work experience in the film industry in PRC
mainly engaged in finance and production of films. At present, Mr. Wang
is working as a self-employed marketing executive in a securities firm in
Beijing.

Mr. Chan Man Kiu (“Mr. Chan”) has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director, a member of the Audit Committee, a member
of the Nomination Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee with effect from 25 April 2022.

Mr. Chan, aged 60, is the chief financial officer and the company secretary
of Jiangnan Group Limited, a company listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (Stock code: 1366). Mr. Chan
has over 30 vyears of experience in the field of finance and operations.
Previously Mr. Chan worked for Jardine Fleming Holdings Limited, Xinhua
Financial Network Limited and Xinhua Sports and Entertainment Limited.
Mr. Chan is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Chan obtained his Professional Diploma in Accountancy
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic (currently the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University) in November 1984 and EMBA from the City University of
Hong Kong in November 2003.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Ma Lei (“Mr. Ma”), aged 47, joined the Group in September 2020 as
the chief executive officer in PRC. He is responsible for overseeing the
operations and daily management of the Group’s subsidiaries in PRC.

Mr. Ma graduated from Nanjing Institute of Architecture and Engineering
with bachelor’s degree in Civil Engineering in 1996, and obtained Master
of Business Administration/Marketing from Nanjing University in 2004.
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The Board submits their annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
"Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2022,

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is principally
engaged in healthcare products and services business and money lending
business. Details of the principal activities and other particulars of the
Company's principal subsidiaries are set out in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Board considers healthcare services is a new and growing field and
intends to strengthen the healthcare products and services business
segment. Details of the future development of the Group's business are
set out in the paragraph headed “Prospects” under the section headed

“Management Discussion and Analysis”.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group recorded a revenue of
approximately HK$92.87 million, gross profit of approximately HK$I13.75
million, and loss before tax of approximately HK$36.69 million.

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income on page 105 to 106.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2022 (2021: Nil).
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RESERVES

Pursuant to the relevant rules of the Cayman lIslands, the reserves
available for distribution to shareholders of the Company as at 31 March
2022 was approximately HK$73.06 million.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2022 are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 109 and note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the past five financial years is set out in section headed "Five Year

Financial Summary” on page 196.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the vyear ended 31 March 2022 are set out in note |6 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS
Details of the Company’s share capital and share options are set out in
notes 27 and 30 respectively to the consolidated financial statements.
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THE COMPANY AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE’S VIEW
ON THE QUALIFIED OPINION OF THE INDEPENDENT
AUDITOR’S REPORT

l. Interest in associates

@

The Company has discussed with the auditor that as full
impairment has been made on investment in Manrui Biotech,
an associate of the Company, this year. Technically, the auditors
will qualify the profit and loss figures of Manrui Biotech for
the year ended 3| March 2022 to be presented under the
comparative column of the Group's profit and loss account
for the year ended 31 March 2023. There will not be any
qualification in respect of Manrui Biotech after the year ended
31 March 2023.

The Audit Committee concurs to the treatment on Manrui
Biotech.

The Group has received refund of all its investment cost of
RMB30,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$36,990,000)
in EENEA(LR)RREBERARCEENES"), an
associate of the Company, subsequent to the year end date.
Pursuant to a resolution of shareholders of £ N E A, it was
unanimously passed by all shareholders to temporarily return
the investment costs to its shareholders because the intended
business plan of 8 E /1E & to develop the internet platform
and customer sales could not be implemented according to the
planned timeline as a result of the outbreak and widespread
infection of COVID-19 pandemic in Shanghai. The present
status of [EEJE A comes to a standstill. Therefore, the
auditor was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence of EENE .
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The Company has discussed with the auditor that as all the
Group's investment cost in {8 & /13 & has been refunded to
the Group. If the associate resumes business and the Company
provides the necessary financial information of the associate for
future audits, other than the opening balance, there will not be
any qualification on lEE 1 & for the year ended 31 March
2023.

Similarly, the Group has received refund of all its investment
cost of RMB25,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$30,824,000) in WREERABEEMAR AR (WL
REAR"), an associate of the Company, subsequent to the
year end date. Pursuant to a resolution of shareholders of
IWEE A, it was unanimously passed by all shareholders to
temporarily return the investment costs to its shareholders
because the intended business plan of IHRE & to acquire
and develop land and instal production equipment could not
be implemented according to the planned timeline as a result
of the various and different restriction policy on COVID-I19
pandemic in PRC. The present status of Il E A comes to a
standstill. Therefore, the auditor was unable to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence of IR E &

The Company has discussed with the auditor that as all the
Group's investment cost in IR EZ & has been refunded to
the Group. If the associate resumes business and the Company
provides the necessary financial information of the associate
for future audits, other than the opening balance, there will not
be any qualification on [{ R E & for the year ended 3| March
2023.

The Audit Committee concurs to the treatments on investment
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2.  Trade and other receivables

@

(b)

Prepayment for consultancy services

The Company has discussed with the auditor that as full
impairment has been made on prepayment for consultants’
services this year. Technically, the auditor will qualify the profit
and loss figures of prepayment for consultants’ services for
the year ended 31 March 2022 to be presented under the
comparative column of the Group's profit and loss account
for the year ended 31 March 2023. There will not be any
qualification in respect of prepayment for consultants’ services
after the year ended 31 March 2023.

The Audit Committee concurs to the treatment on prepayment
for consultants' services.

Prepayments for healthcare supplies

Owing to the outbreak and prolonged proliferation of
COVID-19 pandemic in PRC, the suppliers could not order the
healthcare materials and equipment overseas to be imported
to PRC according to the contracts signed with the Group.
Therefore, the underlying contracts for the prepayment could
not be fulfilled. Thus, the Group entered into cancellation
agreement with the suppliers to cancel the contracts.
According to the cancellation agreement, the suppliers agreed
to refund the prepayment amount to the Group.

The Company has discussed with the auditor that as the
Group received refund of prepayment amount for purchase
of healthcare materials and equipment in full, technically, the
auditors will qualify the opening balance of the prepayment
for the year ended 3| March 2022 to be presented under
the comparative column of the Group’s statement of financial
position for the year ended 31 March 2023. There will not be
any qualification in respect of the prepayment for healthcare
supplies after the year ended 31 March 2023.

The Audit Committee concurs to the treatment on
prepayments for healthcare supplies.
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3.

30

Equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive
income

The Group has received the consideration (the “Consideration”)
of RMB30,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$36,990,000)
on disposal of its 5% equity interest in Beijing Life Healthcare
Zhongcheng Medical Technologies Co., Ltd (3t 7 E MR X B & &
B2 7A]) (the “Investee”) as at the date of this report.

The Company has discussed with the auditor that as the Group
received the Consideration technically, the auditor will qualify the
opening balance and the profit and loss figures of the Investee
for the year ended 31 March 2022 to be presented under the
comparative column of the Group's profit and loss account for the
year ended 3| March 2023. There will not be any qualification in
respect of the Investee after the year ended 31 March 2023.

The auditor was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence on the Investee for the two years ended 31 March 2022
and 2021 because the Investee failed to provide the relevant
financial information to the auditor timely. The Group, being a 15%
shareholder of the Investee, had been using its best endeavour to
follow up on urging the Investee to provide its financial information
to the auditor timely but its effort was fruitless.

The Audit Committee concurs to the treatment on the Investee.
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STRUCTURED CONTRACTS

In order to streamline the organization structure of the Relevant Business
(as defined below), the group had undergone a re-organization during
the year ended 31 March 202! pursuant to which It R EMEEE KA
PR 2 &) (Beijing Life Healthcare Technology Co., Ltd.) (“Beijing Lianhe"),
a 100% owned subsidiary of the Group, has entered into the Exclusive
Business Cooperation Agreement, the Exclusive Call Option Agreement,
the Power of Attorney and the Share Pledge Agreement on 29 March
2021, which supersede the previous agreements, (together, the “VIE
Agreements” and each a "VIE Agreement”) by and among Beijing Lianhe,
BEMAER)BEREBR QA (Life Healthcare (Beijing) Co., Ltd)
("Life Healthcare™) and the two registered shareholders (namely, Mr. Du
PeilLin and Mr. Ma Lei, both are not connected persons (as defined under
the Listing Rules) of the Company) of Life Healthcare (the “Registered
Shareholders”) who hold all the equity capital of Life Healthcare.

Life Healthcare was established on 22 February 2016 and its principal
activities are provision of genetic testing and health data analysis services
(the “Relevant Business™). Pursuant to the Special Administrative
Measures (Negative List) for Foreign Investment Access (2021) ((5MNE
REEARRE IR E (R E S E)(20214F i) issued by National
Development and Reform Commission and Ministry of Commerce of PRC
on 27 December 2021 and would be effected on | January 2022, the
“development and application of human stem cells and genetic diagnosis
therapy technology” is listed as an item forbidden for foreign investment.
By entering into the VIE Agreements, the Group obtained effective
control over Life Healthcare and the right to receive substantially all of
Life Healthcare's economic benefits (the “Contractual Arrangements”).
Details of each of the VIE Agreements are set out below.

N\
° ENEREREEEARALT

Directors’ Report
EEERE

EBEN

AEELEEEBR(EERTONALE
BE AEBERBE-S-_—%=A
S+-BLEFEETES Bt A%
BHEBIOO%Em CHBLARILREM
BEMEERAR(LREN L EE
MR BEREERAR(ENE
BOLMABEENERE2BRAZ
EMEEEERF(LIEALRBEEA
T(EEREMRAZHAMREERS
FEEIEMRR]) RZZ=—F=A
TTABIUBREBAEHGZ  BR
BEEAR  BRERBRHERRE (R
BREMNBAIVIERZ])  UBRBHE

EN

BENRBER-_T—R"F_A=ZTZHK
VCHEHTEZEBARHERARARRE
REBIMBRE(ERERK]) - BEE
RERNBEZES hEAREM
BEBSN _E-_—-F+-A=-1++H
BHEITER-—_E-_—F—A—BE%H
GIEREEAFREEEE(AABE)
QOFR) AEBBRAKR ERDH
HABRRMHARNER AZ LI EE
BEEZ -AEEBABRULVIERZE LR
GENBE BEELGERRGEM
BEBRAIKCEN B0
) ROVERZFBEHINMT o

31



LIFE HEALTHCARE GROUP LIMITED -

¥ Annual Report (A
-/

Directors’ Report
EEEgRE

Under the Exclusive Business Cooperation Agreement entered into by
Beijing Lianhe and Life Healthcare, Beijing Lianhe shall, within the validity
period of such agreement, provide Life Healthcare and its designated
subsidiaries with comprehensive business support, technical and consulting
services and Life Healthcare shall pay a monthly consulting and service
fee, which shall be equal to the amount of Life Healthcare's monthly total
income deducting the expenses and costs directly incurred thereby. In
addition, Life Healthcare agreed that, without the prior written approval
by Beijing Lianhe, it shall not enter into any transaction which may
materially affect its assets, obligations, rights, or business operations, so
as to ensure the performance of business agreements between both
parties and the payment of each price payable. For those matters related
to business operation and asset disposal, Life Healthcare shall act in
accordance with the instructions and requests by Beijing Lianhe.

Under the Exclusive Call Option Agreement entered into by and among
Beijing Lianhe, Life Healthcare and the Registered Shareholders, the
Registered Shareholders granted an irrevocable option to Beijing Lianhe
and/or other entity or individual as designated by it to acquire all or
any of their equity interests in Life Healthcare, in one or more steps
as determined by Beijing Lianhe in its absolute and sole discretion, to
the extent as permissible under the PRC laws. The agreement shall be
terminated when all equity interests in Life Healthcare have been lawfully
transferred to Beijing Lianhe and/or other entity or individual designated
by Beijing Lianhe. At the time of exercising the option, the transfer price
for the acquisition (the “Transfer Price”) payable by Beijing Lianhe and/or
its designated entity or individual shall be RMBI. If there is any mandatory
requirement with respect to the Transfer Price under PRC laws then
effective, the Transfer Price shall be the minimum price as permitted
under PRC laws. The Registered Shareholders have undertaken and
agreed that, since they have already been reimbursed by Beijing Lianhe and
its affiliated companies, they will refund all Transfer Price to Beijing Lianhe
and/or its designated entity or individual within 10 business days after
they receive the Transfer Price. Further, in the event that Life Healthcare
is in liquidation or bankruptcy, the Registered Shareholders shall ensure
that the residual assets of Life Healthcare (the assets after the payments
for liquidation costs, wages, social insurance premiums and statutory
compensations, taxes owed and debts payable) shall be transferred to
Beijing Lianhe and/or its designated entity or individual at minimum price
as permitted under PRC laws. The asset transfer is nonreciprocal. The
Registered Shareholders have undertaken to ensure that such transfer will
not create any obligation of Beijing Lianhe to the Registered Shareholders
and their creditors or Life Healthcare and its creditors.
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It is further agreed that the Registered Shareholders and Life Healthcare
shall act in accordance with the request of Beijing Lianhe with regard
to the sale, transfer, pledge or disposal through other means of Life
Healthcare's assets, businesses or revenue. Without consent from Beijing
Lianhe, Life Healthcare cannot sell, transfer, pledge or dispose of any
of its assets, business or revenue, nor can it enter into any significant
contracts (defined as those with contract sum of exceeding RMB100,000).
Finally, the Registered Shareholders agreed that they shall appoint persons
designated by Beijing Lianhe as board directors, legal representative and
key management personnel of Life Healthcare.

Under the Power of Attorney entered into by Beijing Lianhe and the
Registered Shareholders, the directors and their successors of Beijing
Lianhe (including a liquidator replacing the directors) shall be authorised to
be the sole proxy and authorised person of the Registered Shareholders
to exercise all shareholder’s rights over Life Healthcare with respect
to all the relevant matters, including but not limited to: 1) to attend
shareholder’s meetings of Life Healthcare; 2) to exercise all shareholder’s
rights and voting rights of the Registered Shareholders as entitled by
the articles of association of Life Healthcare and PRC laws, including
without limitation the transfer, pledge and disposal of all or part of the
equity interest in Life Healthcare; and 3) to appoint and designate the
legal representative (the chairman of the board of directors), directors,
supervisors, chief executive officer and other senior managers of Life
Healthcare.

Under the Share Pledge Agreement entered into by Beijing Lianhe and
the Registered Shareholders, the Registered Shareholders pledged all
their equity interests in Beijing Lianhe to guarantee the performance of (i)
the payment for consulting and service fee of Life Healthcare under the
Exclusive Cooperation Agreement; (ii) the obligations of the Registered
Shareholders under the Exclusive Call Option Agreement, and (iii) the
obligations under the Power of Attorney. Beijing Lianhe shall be entitled to
dispose of the pledged equity where Life Healthcare fails to fully pay for
the consulting and service fee payable under the Exclusive Cooperation
Agreement or violates the obligations under the Exclusive Cooperation
Agreement, Exclusive Call Option Agreement and Power of Attorney. The
equity interests in Life Healthcare shall not be transferred without Beijing
Lianhe's written consent.

Save as disclosed above, there has not been any material change in the
Contractual Arrangements during the year ended 31 March 2022.
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The Group has obtained a legal opinion from a PRC law firm, Jingtian &
Gongcheng on the VIE Agreements according to the Company Law of the
PRC (the "Company Law"), the Contract Law of the PRC (the "Contract
Law”) and other PRC laws, administrative regulations, administrative
rules. Jingtian & Gongcheng has provided its legal opinion that the signing
each of the VIE Agreements is not illegal and each VIE agreement and its
confirmation letter is not in breach of or in default under any PRC laws,
and that each of the VIE Agreements is legally valid and enforceable.
Jingtian & Gongcheng has indicated that it cannot be precluded that the
relevant foreign investment and health authorities’ understanding of the
relevant laws and regulations may different from its above legal opinions.

Life Healthcare has been accounted a 100% owned subsidiary of the
Group for in the condensed consolidated financial statements of the
Group, on the basis that the Group has effective control over Life
Healthcare and the right to receive substantially all of Life Healthcare'’s
economic benefits. The Board has determined that due to each of the
VIE Agreements, which Jingtian & Gongcheng has advised are legally valid
and enforceable, Beijing Lianhe has existing rights and ability to direct
the relevant activities of Life Healthcare, ie the activities that significantly
affect Life Healthcare's returns. Further, Beijing Lianhe has exposure, or
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with Life Healthcare as
under the Exclusive Cooperation Agreement entered into between Beijing
Lianhe and Life Healthcare, Life Healthcare shall pay a monthly consulting
and service fee equal to the amount of Life Healthcare's monthly total
income after deducting the expenses and costs directly incurred thereby.
The control activities carried out by Beijing Lianhe, and how well it
controls and manages the activities and operations of Life Healthcare, will
directly affect the amount of its returns.

The Board is of the view that healthcare services especially the genetic
testing and health data analysis services market in PRC is expected a new
but growing field. Healthcare products and services segment recorded
revenue and assets of approximately HK$92.12 million and HK$196.06
million respectively in the year ended 31 March 2022 and has become the
most important business segment of the Group.
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Major risks associated with the Contractual Arrangements are summarized
as follows: although Jingtian & Gongcheng had expressed the view that the
entering of each of the Contractual Arrangements is not in contravention
of the relevant PRC laws and regulations, uncertainties however do
exist regarding the interpretation and application of the PRC laws and
regulations. If the PRC government determines that the Contractual
Arrangements do not comply with the applicable laws and regulations of
the PRC or issues further guidelines that impose stricter foreign ownership
requirements in the Relevant Business, the Group's Relevant Business may
be adversely affected. If that happens, the Company will seek other forms
of contractual arrangements if then available to carry out the Relevant
Business.

The Company has implemented the following internal control measures
to safeguard its assets held through the Contractual Arrangements: (i) the
officers of the Company in charge of Life Healthcare will regularly review
the relevant parties’ compliance with the Contractual Arrangements and
other related matters, monitor the development of the Relevant Business
and will report regularly to the Board; (ii) professional parties will be
engaged to assist the Board to handle any specific issues arising from the
Contractual Arrangements; (i) the Company has controlled the board
of directors of Beijing Lianhe, Life Healthcare and its subsidiaries; (iv)
the auditors of the Company will be engaged to provide for the annual
confirmations in compliance with Paragraph 16(c) of the Guidance Letter;
and (v) Life Healthcare will prepare and provide monthly management

accounts and key operating data to the Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, none of the VIE Agreements
mentioned above has been unwound as none of the restrictions that led
to the adoption of structured contracts has been removed.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Company has identified principal risks and uncertainties that the
Group faces as a business. These include economic risks, operational risks,
regulatory risks, and financial risks. The Group's business, future results
of operations and prospects could be materially and adversely affected by
those risks and uncertainties.
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The following highlights the principal risks and uncertainties of the Group
and it is not meant to be exhaustive. There may be other risks and
uncertainties which are not known to the Group or which may not be
material now but turn out to be material in the future.

Economic Risks

— A severe or prolonged downturn of the global or PRC economy.

— Negative effect on our operational, financing or investing activities
due to fluctuations in inflation, fluctuations in interest rates and
other measures relating to financial policies in PRC.

Increase in interest rates may have an adverse effect on the money
lending business of the Group as it will increase the cost of funding of
the borrowers and lower the profit margin of their businesses which in
turn will adversely affect their repayment ability of the loans advanced by
the Group. The situation may be worsened in case of a slowdown in the
economic growth of the global or PRC economy due to, for example, the
COVID-19 epidemic. The Group will continue to review its loan portfolio
and trade and other receivables on a regular basis in order to take
appropriate actions on a timely basis.

Operational Risks
—  Failure to compete in the competitive environment which the Group
operates in or to keep up with technological developments.

Healthcare services business has the characteristics of high technological
standard and rapid changes in the development. Failure to catch up
with the technological development may adversely affect the healthcare
services business of the Group. The Group will pay close attention to
relevant technology developments and respond to possible technological
changes in a timely manner.
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—  Failure to recruit and retain sufficient qualified staff with relevant
experience and expertise in healthcare services business.

Due to the fierce competition of talents in the healthcare industry,
the Group’s operation may be affected adversely if the Group has an
insufficient talent pool. A shortage of professional technicians will affect
the progress and quality of the R&D projects, thus the Group’s operation.
Therefore, if the Group fails to retain suitable talents, the turnover rate
being above the acceptable level may affect the long-term development
of the Group. In view of the above, the Group will properly reduce the
corresponding risks by stepping up its effort in recruitment, enhancing the
professionalism of technicians and establishing the Group’s reputation as
an employer in the human resources market under the premise of taking
certain risks.

Regulatory Risks
—  Failure to adhere to laws, regulations and rules, or to obtain or
maintain all applicable permits and approvals.

— Adverse effects arising from change in laws and regulations affecting
our businesses.

The Group needs to obtain the relevant licence(s) in order to carry
out its healthcare services business in PRC. If the Group fails to renew
the relevant licence(s) or comply with the rules and regulations of the
governing authorities, the operations of its healthcare service business
will be adversely affected. In order to avoid this from happening, the
Group pays close attention to changes in rules and regulations relating to
licencing and changes in policy of the governing authorities.

— Adverse effects arising from change in laws and regulations affecting
the legality and enforceability of each of the VIE agreements.
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PRC laws haven't expressly stipulated the legality of the VIE agreement
between foreign-invested companies and Chinese-funded companies
which carry out items forbidden for foreign investment with China. The
PRC laws still leave uncertainty as to whether foreign investors' controlling
PRC onshore variable interest entities via contractual arrangements
will be recognized as “foreign investment” and thus be subject to the
restrictions/prohibitions on foreign investments. So we cannot assure
you that each of the VIE agreements between Beijing Lianhe and Life
Healthcare can be continuously deemed as legal and enforceable by the
governing authorities in the future. If the VIE agreements are deemed as
illegal, the Group will fail to exercise effective control over Life Healthcare
and receive substantially all of the economic benefits of Life Healthcare.
Besides, the operation of its genetic testing service within China will be
adversely affected.

Financial Risks
—  Details of financial risks are set out in Note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

ENVIRONMENT AND COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The Group is committed to minimising the impact on the environment
from its business activities. As far as the Board is aware, the Group has
complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group in all material respects.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

The Group recognises the accomplishment of its employees by providing
comprehensive benefit package, career development opportunities and
training appropriate to individual needs. The Group provides a healthy and
safe workplace for all employees. There had not been any cases of strikes
or reports of fatality due to workplace accidents during the year under
review,

The Group encompasses working relationships with suppliers to meet our
customers' needs in an effective and efficient manner.

The Group values the views and opinions of all customers through
various means and channels, to understand customer trends and needs,
and regularly analyses on customer feedbacks. The Group also conducts
comprehensive quality assurance checks to ensure that only quality
products and services are offered to customers.

38

TEZRYERAERENBRELE
EREEIERPEETNIIERERR
HHECRITIMVIERZEZAEML -
NEREERBADTHZHFES
ATEFNEZERREERATARIINE
REITEBZ B EHRENBS 2
IEDFEEAEEMY - B BAEEK
BOARENEENERRENE —
VEBZRREAREREERBRTE
REGEAM - MVIERZRRTERE
RPBEERER  AEEKBEEIERT
FEHEMBR EFERRBEME
BEAED KBNS  THHEERE
RREARAXBELEANTE -

BMHER

— HBERFEERGSAMBRE
DESK

RERBTAR

AEBYNBEARBEGHREZ
FE - BEFEMAM FEECDETH
MEEATEHASEEEEATE
ZHBERRIAR

HES FFRHEHA2EERE

AEEEBREZACENGE B
FERBBLEABEATEZARME
NRBATEER KR - AREREER
BR\ERELZ 2 ZTESR - REEE
B BECFAREIESMBINERME
MZBIIFTHEE -

AEBEEERRTAEBENE M
REMEHEEEEZER

AEBABZENANRREBERHNA
RPZERARBE NEREFBIR
FRARERDNELRE - AEET
ETEAEERERE  BRREAE
PRUEBEEMRRY -



PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or

redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended
31 March 2022.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (“Share Option
Scheme”) on |8 September 2012. Particulars of the Share Option Scheme
are summarized and set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements. No option was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under
the Share Option Schemes during the year ended 31 March 2022.

As the Share Option Scheme will soon expire. The Company has put
forward a resolution at the forthcoming AGM to approve and adopt a
new share option scheme. For details, please refer to the circular of the
Company dated 9 September 2022.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save for the share option scheme of the Company, no equity-linked
agreement that would or might result in the Company issuing shares,
or that requiring the Company to enter into an agreement that would
or might result in the Company issuing shares, was entered into by the
Company during the year ended 31 March 2022 or subsisted at the end of
the year ended 31 March 2022.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year ended 3| March 2022 and up to the date

of this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Yuan Limin (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 29 July 2022)
Mr. Pang Zhen
(appointed on 6 December 2021)
Mr. Man Wai Lun
Mr. Huang Zhifang
(appointed on 31 May 2022)
Mr. Xu Xueping
(resigned on 6 December 2021)

Non-executive Director
Ms. Fu Xiaoji
(resigned on 25 April 2022)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Liu Xinghua
Mr. Wang Yang
(appointed on 6 December 2021)
Mr. Chan Man Kiu
(appointed on 25 April 2022)
Mr. Cheng Chun Man
(resigned on 30 November 2021)
Ms. Zheng Xin
(resigned on 31 August 2021)
Mr. Li Li
(appointed on 31 August 2021 and
resigned on 25 April 2022)

In accordance with Article 84(l) of the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles of Association”), Mr. Yuan Limin, Mr. Pang Zhen,
Mr. Huang Zhifang, Mr. Liu Xinghua, Mr. Wang Yang and Mr. Chan Man Kiu
will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and being eligible,

offer themselves for re-election at that meeting.
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Each of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has no fixed term of service with the Company
and has not entered into a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS

AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 March 2022, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company or their respective associates in
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") of the Listing Rules, were
as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each of the Company:

N\
° ENEREREEEARALT

Directors’ Report
EEERE

RNEERRBEFASERZEREET
ZB-NEF BAQRLEETERHE
EH - MERKABFTLAAF AR
—FATEMECZERERINMA L
ZRBGEH

EERIETBRAERKRORER
ke EERKXR

RZE-_—F=A=+—H EERRK
RAIFENBABAHESAZHEA
RAQARRERBZB(TERERR
BRI EXVE) 2Rk - BERKRH
BHETHRABLENARDBEZEER
HERMEEFE 2B L MBI
FTRAE EMBETAESETES
RHGHBETFA(EESFA)EHNE R
DRAIRBRHZERIARMT:

RALAGEBREEIGETZEERZ
¥E:

Number of Approximate

ordinary percentage of
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FEEBR

BE RESOEIHL

Name of Director Capacity
EEfR g

Pang Zhen Beneficial owner
BE ERBEAA

285,004,080 18.48%

Save as disclosed above and in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements, at no time during the year ended 31 March 2022 was the
Company, any of its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or
any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business apart from
the Group's business, that competes or competed or is or was likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business at any
time during the year ended 31 March 2022 and up to and including the
date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There was no contract of significance to which the Company, its holding
company or subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted as at 31 March
2022 or at any time during the year ended 31 March 2022.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2022, the following persons and company had interests
and short positions of 5% or more of the issued share capital and
underlying shares of the Company (other than a Director or chief
executive of the Company) were recorded in the register of interests
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each of the Company:

N\
° ENEREREEEARALT

Directors’ Report
EEERE

FTERRRAEMALRROKRER
Rz EZRKXR

RZEZZF=A=+—H ' &AERQ
BEEHFLBE 1'“5”9%336(%%@52
TE/\y\znaﬂﬂFﬁnaﬁ MT}\i& j(
3%%12& ETHRAB)IRER
—TE%*"H&$MHE§H§1’;}5%§JZLXt
JHERNKE:

RAABAEREEGETZEERZ
3=

Number of Approximate
ordinary percentage of
Name of shareholder Capacity shares held shareholding
FEEER
RER#EE /28 56 BE RESINEIH
Wang Wen Beneficial owner
X EXZBERA 257,000,000 16.67%
Zhou Chunyan Beneficial owner
& & 2% EZBEAA 244,212,611 15.84%
Pioneer Environmental International Industries  Beneficial owner
Company Limited (note)
Pioneer Environmental International Industries Ez # B A 160,120,000 10.38%
Company Limited (Fff 5%)
Liu Na (note) Interest of controlled corporation
A3 (B &) REAE 160,120,000 10.38%

Note:

These interests are held by Pioneer Environmental International Industries Company
Limited which is 100% own by Liu Na. Liu Na is therefore deemed to be interested in the
shares of the Company held by Pioneer Environmental International Industries Company
Limited for the purpose of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, no person had registered
an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the

Company which was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2022, there were no connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions between the Group
and its connected persons (as defined under the Listing Rules) which
are subject to the reporting, announcement and the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under the Listing Rules.

The related party transactions in relation to the compensation of key
management personnel as disclosed in Note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements are connected transactions exempt from reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements
pursuant to Rule 14A.95 of the Listing Rules.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group provides a defined contribution retirement scheme under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the "MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong
to all Hong Kong staff. Under the MPF Scheme, employer and employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees' relevant income, up to a maximum contribution of HK$1,500
(effective from June 2014) per month. The employees of the Group’s
subsidiaries in the PRC are members of a state-managed retirement
benefit scheme operated by the government of the PRC.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the percentage of the Group’s
revenue attributable to its largest customer and five largest customers
were 91% and 100% respectively.

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the percentage of the Group's
purchases attributable to its largest supplier and five largest suppliers
were 99% and 100%, respectively.

At no time during the year ended 31 March 2022 did a Director, an
associate of a Director or a shareholder of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) have any material interest in any of the Group's five

largest suppliers or customers.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
Save for the VIE Agreements, no contracts concerning the management
and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business

of the Company were entered into or existed during the year ended
31 March 2022.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director and officer shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company
against all losses or liabilities which he may incur or sustain in the
execution of his duties or otherwise in relation thereto.

Such provision was in force during the year ended 31 March 2022. In
addition, the Company has also maintained Directors and officers liability
insurance during the year ended 31 March 2022 and up to the date of this

report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association, or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company had received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considered all of the independent non-
executive Directors are independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument of the Directors shall be decided by the Board as
recommended by the Remuneration Committee having regard to a written
remuneration policy (which ensures a clear link of business strategy and a
close alignment with the Shareholders’ interest and current market best
practice). Remuneration should be paid with reference to the Board’s
corporate goals and objectives, the salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities of the executive and non-executive
Directors and applicability of performance based remuneration. The
Director's fees are paid in line with market practice. No individual should
determine his or her own remuneration.

N\
° ENEREREEEARALT

Directors’ Report
EEERE

EEEHN
REZ-_ZE-__F=A=1+—-HAILEE
BRTVIEWZ I BB L T EEM

BRARAEHGERIEIMEREDE
BEROTBREEZAND

7 3 T B AR X

REABERAN SEZTRAAAE
DRERBETEBRENELBEMAE
RBEARX A RRAEEUART
ZBERGMTERAE-

FEBRXERBE-T-__F=AH
=T—HIEFEER U BEZF
—CFZRA=T-RLEEEREELRH
ERH KARARANEREENSRAE
REBRERRE -

ErRRE
HARERMRUNIHEHEANTESR
BEERBREZAT  BEARAER
EPIRBRARREEHR -

BYFHTES BIRRAE

ARFICERERBUFNTEERE L
MAAEBEREHCFRBLERE -
ARARR 2RBUFATEZIR
BUAL -

¥ R
EE/HMemFMEEER2R—E3
T 7 B I SR (DA BE 4R B2 5% 7% SR iU T B
2 UEYNERRIEZRRTTS
REFR)RUEEREANAESEE
EoHMeE2ZEZSLXARREAN
AL BRRAINOHFE - #MITRIE
BTESNERRARBERERR
BOBmFMoEREmN EF8
RIATT &M 5B 2 £ &M - I &
ERALAETETEAME -

45



LIFE HEALTHCARE GROUP LIMITED -

¥ Annual Report (A
-/

Directors’ Report
EEEgRE

Employees’ remuneration was determined in accordance with individual's
responsibility, competence and skills, experience and performances as well
as market pay level. Remuneration package includes, as the case may be,
basic salaries, contribution to MPF Scheme, discretionary bonus relating
to financial performance of the Group and individual performance, share
options and other fringe benefits such as medical insurance. Details of the
emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid individuals in the
Group are set out in note |3 to the consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set
out in the Corporate Governance Report from pages 47 to 66.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual report,
the Company has maintained a sufficient public float as required under
the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2022 were audited by ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
(“ZHONGHUI"). A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint ZHONGHUI as
auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board
Life Healthcare Group Limited

Pang Zhen
Executive Director

31 August 2022
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OVERVIEW

The Company has formulated and maintained a high standard of corporate
governance practices in order to safeguard the interest of shareholders,
employees and other stakeholders of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) during the year ended 3| March 2022,
except for the following deviation:

— Code provision A4.l of the CG Code provides that the non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific term and
subject to re-election. An independent non-executive Director was
not appointed for specific terms. In accordance with Article 84 of
the Articles of Association of the Company, at each annual general
meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not
less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual
general meeting at least once every three years. As such, the Board
considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that
the Company's corporate governance practices are in line to those
of the CG Code. With the implementation of the new CG Code
effective from | January 2022, the requirement for non-executive
directors be appointed for specific term no longer exists.

—  Following the resignation of Mr. Cheng Chun Man as an independent
non-executive Director on 30 November 2021, the Company fails to
meet the requirements of (i) having at least three independent non-
executive Directors on the Board under rule 3.10(1) of the Listing
Rules; and (i) having a minimum of three non-executive directors in
the Audit Committee under rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. Following
the appointment of Mr. Wang Yang as an independent non-executive
Director, chairman and member of the Audit Committee on
6 December 2021, the Company has complied with the requirements
under rule 3.10(1) and rule 3.2 of the Listing Rules.
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The Board will continue to review and recommend such steps as
appropriate in a timely manner in order to comply with the requirements
of the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules as the standard for securities transactions by Directors.
The Company has made specific enquiries of all the Directors and all the
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required standards
set out in the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions for the year ended 31 March 2022.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises seven members, being four executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. None of the
members of the Board has any relationship (including financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationship) among each other. The list
of Directors is set out in the section headed “Directors’ Report” and
the details of the Directors including their backgrounds and qualifications
are set out in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” of this annual report. The term of service of the
Directors with the Company is 2 to 3 years except Mr. Liu Xinghua who
has no fixed term of service with the Company. The Directors have not
entered into service contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation other
than statutory compensation but is subject to retirement and re-election
in accordance with the Articles of Association.

The Board assumes responsibility for the leadership and control of the
Company and its members are collectively responsible for promoting the
business of the Company by formulating the Group's overall strategies
and policies, approving the business plans, evaluating the performance of
the Group in pursuit of the Group’s overall strategies and overseeing the
management of the Group. The Board has established three committees,
namely the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee. The management of the Group is responsible for
the day-to-day operations of the Group, and implementing the business
strategies and plans formulated and approved by the Board.

48

EZoREBEERRIREZRAEL
Gl ANAEEERATAZAE

EEZRBERE

RRRIE R LR R 8+ AERE

#WW%%$LH EHRXHLER o K
ARIEM2BEZFEBEEH 28

x B=

EERER FEREE_T-__F=A
—t+—BUEFE—EBTEESTAME
RTEERERBESETEARRHLZ
THRSTE .
EEg

EXEeRMmtaEAR  INAHT

ESNCRBUFRTES -EFEMK
EZF?TEHEEHW?(&%EMX %
%F&Emiﬁ/ﬁﬁﬁ CEFA

BEHENTFHRIEZS &ik— ' ME
FRBEEEERERIERE

ERRRERBREHAB]I -5 KX
HERARR YL EEE REFHN - E
ERARARBFHAME=ZF EF
I EEARRARFTLARB AR —FR
TERMECEERBERID ML L 2 R
AR HEARBAEABERMANEER
EEER-

e

EEQHERERELARR  HK
%E%éﬁﬁﬂﬂJ$ElZ%%
BEBR - HLAEXETE  BRELAEE
LERERIGAEERAURE
AEBZERE  KMMEERRRZER -
EECCORU-AZES MERZE
2 HHEEQRREZES - A5KH
LEBEEAERRTLEZSHIR
HEZEBRERAEAMETZIAER
AEEE -

a::]a\:-i\
MEI%EM



N\

.-Eﬂgﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁmﬂa

Corporate Governance Report

All Directors have acted in good faith for the best interests of the
Company and the stakeholders of the Company. Other than the statutory
duties imposed on each of them, all of the Directors have exercised
due care in monitoring the corporate matters of the Company and have
provided grave concern, sufficient time and attention to all the significant
issues and affairs of the Group.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made an annual
confirmation to the Company concerning his independence pursuant to
the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all the independent non-
executive Directors meet the guidelines for assessing independence as set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are considered to be independent.
The independent non-executive Directors had been expressly identified
as such in all corporate communications of the Company that disclose the
names of Directors.

The number of Board meetings and general meetings attended by each
Director during the year ended 31 March 2022 is set out below:

Executive Directors
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Number of Board
meetings attended
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Number of general
meetings attended

HEE=S HERRAS

HITES 2ERY R
Mr. Pang Zhen EERE 4/4 0/0
Mr. Man Wai Lun XEBRLE 13/15 /1
Mr. Xu Xueping HEBFEE 91 /1
Number of Board Number of general

Non-executive Directors meetings attended  meetings attended
HEESE HERRAE

FHUTES ERRE R
Ms. Fu Xiaoji Bt 5/15 /1
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Number of Board Number of general

meetings attended  meetings attended

HEESE HERRAS
BYFYTES BRRY RE
Mr. Liu Xinghua Xl 4 5 A 15/15 0/l
Mr. Wang Yang FAEEE 4/4 0/0
Mr. Cheng Chun Man Bk Xk & 9/10 /1
Ms. Zheng Xin B+ 616 0/0
Mr. Li Li FhEE 2/9 /1

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Chairman held a meeting with
independent non-executive Directors without the presence of executive

Directors in compliance with code provision C.2.7 of the CG Code.

The Board has reviewed the contribution required from each Director
to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company and is satisfied that
each Director has been spending sufficient time in performing his/her
responsibilities during the year ended 31 March 2022.

Save for regular Board meetings held during the year ended 3| March
2022, meetings of the Directors were held to discuss and transact other
special businesses. Proper notice of meetings was sent to the Directors.
The Board members are provided with appropriate and sufficient
information in a timely manner to keep abreast of the Group's latest
developments. The Directors have access to the advice and services of
the company secretary. All businesses transacted at the Board meetings
are properly documented and recorded in minutes with draft and final
versions being circulated to the Directors for their comment and records
respectively, within reasonable time after the meetings are held. Originals
of such minutes, being kept by the company secretary, are open for
inspection upon reasonable notice by any Director.
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If a Director has conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by the
Board which the Board has determined to be material, the matter will be
dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather than a written resolution.
That Director will abstain from voting on the relevant Board resolution
in which he/she or any of his/her associates has a material interest and
he/she shall not be counted in the quorum present at such Board meeting.
Independent non-executive Directors, who, and whose close associates,
have no material interest in the transaction are present at that Board

meeting.

In respect of the corporate governance functions, the Board formulated
their terms of reference and performed the following corporate
governance duties during the year ended 31 March 2022:

*  To develop and review the Company’'s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

*  To review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

*  To review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

*  To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to directors and employees; and

*  To review the Company's compliance with the CG Code and

disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the chairman
and the chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. During the year ended 31 March 2022
and up to the date of this annual report, the chairman of the Board has
provided leadership to the Board and the chief executive officer (China),
who performed the role of the chief executive officer of the Company, has
overseen the general management and daily operation of the subsidiaries
of the Group in PRC.
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Mr. Xu Xueping resigned as the chairman of the Board with effect from

6 December 2021. Mr. Pang Zhen deemed to take up the role of the
chairman of the Board on the same day.

Delegation to the Management

The management is led by the chief executive officer (China) who has
been delegated to carry out the day-to-day management and operation
of the subsidiaries of Group in PRC, formulate business policies and make
decision on key business issues. The general manager shall have all powers
and authorities of the Board except the following major matters:

*  determining the Group's objectives and strategies;

. approving annual and interim results and financial reporting;

. declaring or recommending payment of dividends or other

distributions;

. approving major changes that require notification by announcement
under the Listing Rules;

. approving publication of the announcement for notifiable

transactions under the Listing Rules;
. approving non-exempt connected transactions;

. approving major capital restructuring and issue of new securities of
the Company; and

. material transactions.
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TRAINING FOR DIRECTORS 2

Fach newly appointed Director receives a comprehensive and formal BHREZACTEZHERE2ZEAR
induction to ensure that he/she has an appropriate understanding of (i) ERAZ ABSEI - DHERKEAEEEE()
the business and operations of the Group; (i) his/her responsibilities and ~ AEB 2 X B R EE : (i) HBE LR
obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements; AIREREERTARTCEE LB
(iii) the corporate governance code of the Company and (iv) the Model — (i)ARAR Z % E AT R(iv)iE %
Code. The Directors may seek independent professional advice in FH -EFAEEEBRATIIRBUER
appropriate circumstances, at the Company's expenses in order to assist %= RABBRERRRRRITHRE
them to perform their duties to the Company. ERBAQAHAE -

Directors are continually updated on developments in the statutory and EERTHMEGEEREERGER
regulatory regime and the business environment to facilitate the discharge ~ UREBREFEZFHEL  UHBESF
of their responsibilities. Continuing briefing and professional development BIBE RAFTER EZEHELH
for Directors will be arranged at the expenses of the Company whenever IXBEEBREXEER  BRAMAR
necessary. The Directors are committed to complying with code provision AEE - EFEHNETERERTAZ
C.I4 of the CG Code on Directors training. All Directors have been  SFAIENCIAEBMESEIZHATE - 2
updated on the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules to ensure  BEENMER EMRU ERESEH
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate governance BR - eMmEEN  ABNAREY
practices. The Directors have participated in continuous professional REGCEERER 2 ER -EFE2
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills and B R ERBENZFRBEEFE
provided their training records for the year ended 31 March 2022 to the EERE TERAARREEERE

Company. E_Z__F-A=T—-BLFEZE
ElE> 4
Topics on training covered (Notes)
Name of Directors Expgg P % & 2 35 50 & (MY &)
Pang Zhen BE (h
Man Wai Lun X & B (M, ), (3), @)
Liu Xinghua Xl 4 (1), 4)
Wang Yang FF (1)
Cheng Chun Man ik K (h
Zheng Xin =75 (1)
Xu Xueping "EF (h
Fu Xiaoji (BB R ()
Li Li )] ()
Notes: P & -
(h laws, rules and regulations (1 EG R R AR B
(2) finance, accounting or taxation (2) B eHEARK
(3) management (3) &
“) business related to the Company “4) HAAEMABEES
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DIRECTORS’ INSURANCE
The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
potential legal actions against its Directors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company's policy and structure
for all remuneration of Directors and members of the senior management
of the Company and to determine the specific remuneration packages of
all executive Directors and members of the senior management of the
Company. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee have
been posted on the website of the Stock Exchange and the Company,

respectively.

The Remuneration Committee is chaired by an independent non-executive
Director. The Remuneration Committee comprises of three independent

non-executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee held 3 meetings during the year ended
31 March 2022. Details of the attendance of the committee members are

EB2RB
ARAIEREESTRERY 2 EME
ERBDELEEZRRLE -

FMWEES
FHEZEe T ERARYARAIEH
EERARARREEEKB 2B M
CHRERBRESERHERE L
EEEeRUTEERARASRERE
REZEEHMAR -FTMEES R
BEEC DR BH RN R A RARA
U o

FHNZEEhm 2B UFNTESFEL
TR -FHEEem=-RBUFNTE
FEK -

FTMEEERBAE_T__F=A
“t-BEFEEEIRNEE- 28

as follows: ERECHEFBENT:

Committee Members Attendance ZEE8ME H R ®
Mr. Liu Xinghua (Chairman of the Committee) 3/3 NAEEE (ZEEFE) 3/3
Mr. Wang Yang 0/0 FEEE 0/0
Mr. Xu Xueping 3/3 RBYRE 3/3
Mr. Cheng Chun Man 212 ik K L4 212
Mr. Li Li /1 FhREE /1
The major work performed by the Remuneration Committee duringthe $HMZE 8RB E-_T=-_F = A
year ended 3| March 2022 included, amongst other things, the following: St REFEROZEIEIEESE

BAT&®E:

. reviewing the remuneration policy for Directors and senior
management and making recommendation to the Board;

. making recommendations on the remuneration packages of the non-
executive directors; and

. reviewing and determining the remuneration of the executive
Directors and members of the senior management.
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REMUNERATION POLICY OF THE DIRECTORS

The remuneration of Directors is determined by the Remuneration
Committee having regard to the performance of individuals and
market trends. The Company also adopted a share option scheme on
|8 September 2012 for the primary propose of providing incentives to
any Directors and employees of the Group and any advisors, consultants,
distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business partners,
joint venture business partners, promoters, service providers to the
Group who the Board considers, in its sole discretion, have contributed or
shall contribute to the Group.

The remuneration of the Directors by band for the year ended 31 March
2022 is set out below:

SEEARE

EESZHMER

E=ZFM o ayrMzEeEeRENET
RARMBEBETE - ARAFR_-F
—ZENAT\BRMBERESS
ZEANERRBDESE2RDBEARE
RIS UAREFELERZAREIT
MEENEER  ARAKETAER -
BAA DHE ERBE HER K
BRP EBEBH REXBEH
ERARRBGHER -

EEHE-_E-__H#=A=+—HItE
ERBEE D2 FHMEATIMT

Number of
Remuneration band persons 0 e AB
Not more than HK$1,000,000 8 R E1,000,00078 T 8

HK$1,000,001-HK$1,800,000 |

Particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to
the Listing Rules are set out in notes |3 to the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are to review
the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board on a regular basis and make recommendations
to the Board regarding any proposed change and to review the board
diversity policy of the Company and review the measurable objectives
that the Board has set for implementing such policy and the progress
on achieving the objectives and appointment of directors and senior
management and succession planning for Directors. The terms of reference
of the Nomination Committee have been posted on the website of the
Stock Exchange and the Company, respectively.

The Nomination Committee is chaired by an independent non-executive
Director. The Nomination Committee comprises of one executive
Director and two independent non-executive Directors.

1,000,001/ 7t £1,800,00078 JT |
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BIE SN B RX FT RAR R B A o
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The Nomination Committee held 3 meetings during the year ended

31 March 2022. Details of the attendance of the committee members are

REAZEEeNHE-_ZTE-__F=A

ST HEFEERIINEE 28

as follows: SREZHEFBEOT

Committee Members Attendance ZEEHKE HE=x
Mr. Wang Yang (Chairman of the Committee) 0/0 TEEE(ZERTE) 0/0
Mr. Man Wai Lun 1/3 XEBLE 1/3
Ms. Zheng Xin 212 AR 2+ 212
Mr. Xu Xueping /1 "ETRE /1
Mr. Li Li /1 FhR4E /1
Mr. Cheng Chun Man 22 ik KL 4E 22

The major work performed by the Nomination Committee during the

year ended 3| March 2022 included, amongst other things, the following:

reviewing the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board;

reviewing the board diversity policy;

considering and making recommendations to the Board for the
appointment of Directors and management;

considering the re-election of Directors at the annual general
meeting of the Company held in August 2021; and

reviewing the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors.

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity

Policy”) on 30 August 2013 which sets out its approach to achieve

diversity on the Board to ensure that the Board has the appropriate

balance of skills experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to

the requirements of the Company’s business with a view to achieving a

sustainable and balanced development of the Company.
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The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the consideration
of a number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The Company will also take into account
factors based on its own business model and specific needs from time to
time.

Nomination Policy

The Company had adopted a written Nomination Policy of the Group
which aims at assisting the Nomination Committee in identifying and
nominating suitable candidates for directorship based on the Board
Diversity Policy and sets out the nomination criteria and the nomination
procedures for (i) nominating new Director to fill a casual vacancy on
the Board; (ii) making recommendation to Shareholders regarding any
Director proposed for election or re-election at general meeting; and (iii)
nomination by Shareholders on election of new Director.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to review
the relationship with the auditors of the Company; review the financial
information of the Group and oversee the Group's financial reporting
system, internal control procedures and risk management system. The
terms of reference of the Audit Committee has been amended and re-
adopted by the Board on | April 2016 to include the risk management
function, and the same has been published on the website of the Stock
Exchange and the Company, respectively.

The Audit Committee comprises of three independent non-executive
Directors and a member of the Audit Committee has the appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise.
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The Audit Committee held 2 meetings during the year ended 3| March
2022. Details of the attendance of the committee members are as follows:

ERLZEERBE_S-__F=ZA
S+-HLEFEERMAEeE %8
eRECHEFBOT:

Committee Members Attendance ZEEHKE =
Mr. Wang Yang (Chairman of the Committee) 0/0 TEEE(ZERTE) 0/0
Mr. Liu Xinghua 22 X L 5 A 22
Ms. Zheng Xin I/ AR+ I/
Mr. Li Li 0/1 FhEE 0/1
Mr. Cheng Chun Man 212 HIRELE 2/2
The major work performed by the Audit Committee during the year BRZEERBE_T_-__F=AH
ended 31 March 2022 included, amongst other things, the following: St-RLEEEROZEIEIEESRE

*  reviewing the annual results of the Group for the financial year
ended 31 March 2021 with the conclusion that the preparations
of such results have been complied with the applicable accounting
standards;

. reviewing the interim results of the Group for the six months ended
30 September 2021;

. reviewing the effectiveness of the Group's internal control
procedures and risk management system; and

. reviewing and recommending the re-appointment of the auditor to
the Board for approval.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
provides advice, services and supports to the Board. All Directors have
access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary.

The Company Secretary is Mr. Chung Yuk Lun (“Mr. Chung”). Mr. Chung
has complied with the relevant professional training requirement of the
Listing Rules during the year ended 31 March 2022.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the appointment of
the external auditor and reviewing any non-audit services performed by
the external auditor. During the year ended 31 March 2022, the fee for
audit and non-audit services to the Company’s external auditors, for the

provision of services are as follows:

SEEARE

HNEE R BEm
ERZEQSBRERIIMNEREM S
R INEZEMREE® 2 EAFEZRE
R - REE-_T-__F=A=+—H
EFE  ARBINEZEENRE 2% &
RIEGHEREERNT

ZHONGHUI
o
HK$'000
TAL

%R
R

Audit services
Non-audit services

1,800
210

2,010

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation of
the financial statements of the Group. The responsibilities of the Directors
and auditor of the Company are set out on pages 103 to 104 of this

annual report.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the Year, the Board
had adopted appropriate accounting policies and applied them consistently,
made judgment and estimates that were prudent and reasonable and
ensured the consolidated financial statements are prepared on a “going
concern” basis (with supporting assumptions or qualifications as necessary)
and showed a true view of the state of affairs of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2022. The management had provided sufficient
explanation and information to the Board on the consolidated financial
statements to enable it to make an informed assessment of the financial
and other information put before it for approval. The auditor of the
Company had made a statement about their reporting responsibilities in
the Independent Auditor's Report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible to ensure that adequate systems of internal
control and risk management are maintained within the Group, and to
review their effectiveness through the Audit Committee. The internal
control and risk management systems are designed to meet the Group's
particular needs and the risks to which it is exposed, and by their
nature can only provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance against
misstatement or loss and to manage, but not to eliminate, risks of failure
in achieving the Group's objectives. Practicable and effective internal
control systems and procedures and risk management systems have
been implemented by the Group to enhance internal control and risk
management on an ongoing basis.

The key objectives of the Control Systems include:
. safeguarding assets;

. ensuring completeness, accuracy and validity of financial records and
reports;

. promoting adherence to policies, procedures, regulations and laws;
and

. promoting effectiveness and efficiency of operations.
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MAIN FEATURES OF THE RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS (“CONTROL SYSTEMS”)

Control structure
The Board

Audit Committee

responsible for the overall Control Systems and

reviewing their effectiveness;

oversee the Control Systems on an ongoing basis
with the assistance of Audit Committee;

ensure the maintenance of appropriate and
effective Control Systems in order to safeguard the
shareholders’ investment and assets of the Group;

define management structure with clear lines of
responsibility and limit of authority; and

determine the nature and extent of significant risk
that the Company is willing to take in achieving the
strategic objectives and formulate the Group’s risk
management strategies.

oversee the Control Systems of the Group;

review and discuss with the management annually
to ensure that the management has performed its
duty to have effective Control Systems; and

consider major findings on internal control matters

and make recommendations to the Board.
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The management

Internal Audit

Function

Control approach

design, implement and monitor the Control
Systems properly and ensure the Control Systems

are executed effectively;

monitor risks and take measures to mitigate risks

in day-to-day operations;

give prompt responses to, and follow up the

findings on internal control matters; and

provide confirmation to the Board on the
effectiveness of the Control Systems.

carry out the analysis and independent appraisal
of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Control
Systems; and

alert the management/Audit Committee/Board
on the audit review findings or irregularities, if
any, and advise them on the implementation of
necessary steps and actions to enhance the internal

controls of the Group.

The risk management process includes risk identification, risk evaluation

and risk management measures.

The management conducted interviews with relevant staff members,

reviewing relevant documentation of the internal control system,

identifying and evaluating findings of any deficiencies in the design of

the Group's internal control system, providing recommendations for

improvement and following up on the effectiveness of implementation

of such recommendations, where appropriate. The scope and findings of

review on the risk management and internal control are reported to and

reviewed by the Audit Committee annually.
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Procedure manuals and operational guidelines are in place to safeguard
the assets against unauthorised use or disposition, ensuring maintenance
of proper accounting records in compliance with the applicable laws,
rules and regulations for the provision of reliable financial information for
internal use and/or external publication.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Board has appointed a professional firm during the year ended
31 March 2022 to review the risk management and internal control
system of the Group. The report identified the findings in internal control
system of the Company, the risks associated with operating units of the
Company and the recommendations to rectify the findings in internal
control systems and to lower the risks identified. The recommendations
are adopted for implementation by the Company in due course.

The Board acknowledged that it had received a confirmation from the
management on the effectiveness of the Control Systems of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2022.

During the year ended 3| March 2022, the Board, through the Audit
Committee, has reviewed effectiveness of the Group’s systems of internal
control and risk management in respect of financial, operational and
compliance aspect annually and considers that the systems are adequate
and effective.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has also reviewed the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting functions, and
consider that they are adequate.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy™)
where the Company would, where the situation allows, declare dividends
to shareholders taking into consideration the Group's distributable
profits generated during the vyear, the financial situation and liquidity of
the Group, the funding needs for future investment and development
purposes. The payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions
under the laws of Cayman Islands, the laws of Hong Kong and the articles

of association of the Company.
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PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS FOR

THE HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Group complies with requirements of SFO and the Listing Rules
in relation to the handling and dissemination of inside information. The
Group discloses inside information to the public as soon as reasonably
practicable. Before the information is fully disclosed to the public, the
Group ensures the information is kept strictly confidential. If the Group
believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be maintained
or that confidentiality may have been breached, the Group would
immediately disclose the information to the public.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company regards high quality reporting as an essential element
in building successful relationships with its shareholders. The Company
always endeavour to provide relevant information to existing and potential
investors, not only to comply with the different requirements in force
but also to enhance transparency and communications with shareholders
and the investing public. Regular and publicly available disclosures about
important issues, including performance, fundamental business strategy,
governance and the management of risk are made through various
channels:

*  the Company's annual general meeting;

. interim and annual results announcements published on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange;

. interim and annual reports of the Company delivered to all
shareholders;

¢ timely update of the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company;

. meeting with shareholders;
. circulars and letters to shareholders; and
. prompt news releases and announcements regarding major

corporate actions and business initiatives.
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The Company maintains a website at www.lifehealthcare.com where the
Company's announcements, circulars, notices, financial reports, business
developments, press releases and other information are posted.

The Company is committed to ensuring that it is in full compliance
with disclosure obligations stipulated under the Listing Rules and other
applicable laws and regulations, and that all shareholders and potential
investors of the Company have an equal opportunity to receive and obtain
externally available information that is released by the Group.

The Company always welcome shareholders’ views and input.
Shareholders and other stakeholders may at any time address their
concerns to the Company by mail to the Company's principal office in
Hong Kong at Office A, 12/F, Aubin House, 171-172 Gloucester Road,

Wanchai, Hong Kong, or email to alex.chung@lifehealthcare.com.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings for substantially
separate issues. The chairman of the 2021 AGM and chairman/members
of the Board committees and the external auditor had attended the 2021
AGM to answer questions from the Shareholders. With the assistance of
the company secretary, the chairman of the meeting had explained the

procedures for conducting a poll voting during the meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary general meeting by shareholders

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association, any one or more
members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company, to
require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting
shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting forward proposals at general meetings

A shareholder shall make a written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary at the Company’s principal office in Hong Kong at
Office A, 12/F, Aubin House, 171-172 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong, specifying the shareholding information of the shareholder, his/her
contact details and the proposal he/she intends to put forward at general
meeting regarding any specified transaction/business and its supporting
documents.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
There has been no change to the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year ended 31 March 2022.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THE REPORT

Life Healthcare Group Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) are pleased to publish the Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG") Report for the reporting period from | April 202]
to 31 March 2022 (the "Year"). The ESG Report summarises the Group's
efforts and achievements in corporate social responsibility and sustainable
development.

Reporting Boundaries

The ESG Report focuses on the environmental and social performance of
the Group's business in providing healthcare services in the People’s Republic
of China (the "PRC"). The disclosure of the key performance indicators
("KPIs") in the Year focuses on: (i) the research and development centre
of the Group in Economic-Technological Development Area in Yizhuang,
Beijing; (ii) the office in Beijing; (i) the production and testing centre in
Guangzhou; and (iv) the trading of healthcare products in Yangzhou.

Reporting Framework

The ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” under Appendix 27 to the
Listing Rules, which presents the sustainability approach and performance
in four environmental and eight social aspects of the Group for the Year.
The Group will continue to strengthen information collection in order to
enhance its environmental performance and to further disclose relevant
information on sustainable development.

Governance Structure

Board’s oversight of ESG issues

The Board is committed to the long-term sustainability of the environment
and communities in which the Group operates and continually enhances
investment value to stakeholders through proper and effective internal
control systems and ESG risk management measures throughout its
operations. The Board considers ESG-related risks and opportunities as
part of the Group's overall strategic formulation, and the significant ESG
impact caused by daily operations and businesses. The Board maintains
oversight of and approves the identification and assessment of ESG issues
and confirms that to the best of its knowledge, this ESG Report addresses
material topics related to the operations of the Group and fairly presents

its ESG performance and impacts.
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The Board has delegated the Group’s management to supervise the
ESG-related issues and work of the Group. The Group's management is
responsible for monitoring and reviewing the compliance with local laws
and regulations with regards to ESG-related issues. The management is
also responsible for establishment of sustainability strategies, policies and
measures to implement sustainability initiatives, provide sustainability
reporting and prepare the ESG Report.

Board’s ESG management approach and strategy for material ESG-related
issues

To better understand the opinions and expectations of different
stakeholders on the ESG issues, materiality assessment is conducted
annually. The Group ensures various platforms and channels of
communication are used to reach, listen and respond to its key
stakeholders. Through communication with the stakeholders, the Group
is able to understand their expectations and concerns. The feedbacks
obtained allow the Group to make more informed decisions, and to better
assess and manage the impacts of the business decisions.

The Group has evaluated the materiality for each of the ESG aspects
through the following steps: (i) identification of ESG issues by the Group;
(i) key ESG areas prioritisation with stakeholder engagement; and (iii)
validation and determining material ESG issues based on the results of
communication with the stakeholders.

Engaging these steps can enhance the understanding of the degree of
importance of the Group's stakeholders to each material ESG issue, which
enable the Board to plan the sustainable development direction more
comprehensively in the future.
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Board reviews progress made against ESG-related goals and targets

The Group will closely review from time to time for the performance
and implementation progress of the goals and targets. If the progress
falls short of expectation or changes of business operations, it may be
necessary to make changes and communicate about the goals and targets
with key stakeholders such as employees, customers and suppliers.

The Group has set strategic goals to enable the Group to develop a
realistic path and focus on the development direction for achieving its
visions. The Board will carefully examine the attainability of the targets
which should be weighed against the Group’s philosophy and goals.

Reporting Principles
This ESG Report is based on the following four reporting principles:

Materiality: Stakeholder engagement and materiality assessment were
conducted to identify material ESG issues, and to ensure that these issues
are addressed in the report.

Quantitative: Data presented in this ESG Report have been collected
prudently. Please refer to the environmental and social performance data
for standards and methodologies used for calculation of key performance
indicators.

Balance: Both positive and negative sides of the performance have been
presented in a transparent manner.

Consistency: Unless otherwise stated, the disclosures, data collection and
calculation methods have remained consistent throughout the years to
facilitate comparability over time.
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Stakeholder Engagement

The Group has engaged the employees from different departments to
help the Group recognising the sustainability performance. The diligently
collected and carefully analysed information was not only the Group's
sustainable initiatives during the Year, but also the basis for the Group to

map out short-term and long-term sustainability strategies.

Stakeholders' opinions are vital for the Group while adjusting its business
objectives and strategies as well as seizing opportunities. Therefore, the
Group strives to maintain a trustful and supporting relationship with its
stakeholders in order to understand their expectation and needs through

effective communication.

Stakeholders

F0E

Expectations and requirements

HEREE

BOESH

AEBBFTRAACEERYTHEAR
SENTREZREE KERUER
FAPMZERTERAEBNAFE
Em ARBEERER  TRASEG
ERONRBAUBEERRMIER

ROEBRUAKEBEXBBEEME
B ARECEREHEZBEE - At
AEEHERARNEARERELE
RRBZBE BREBEWABRTR
EHENFEE -

Communication and response

BEREE

Government and regulatory
bodies

BRREE#E

Shareholders

KR

Business partners

BEBH

70

Strict compliance with national
policies, law and regulation
Paying taxes in full and on time

BRETERER ARRER
1 By 2 B A

Returns

Operation in compliance with laws

W 5 [0
KA E

Operational integrity
Equal rivalry
Performance of contracts
Mutual benefits

B
AFHF
BAAH
EEEH

*  Regular information reporting

*  Examinations and inspections

. EHERES
. HBRBE

*  General meetings
*  Announcements

. BEAR

. Qi

*  Review and appraisal meetings
*  Business communications

*  Exchanges and discussions

*  Engagement and cooperation

. RHRFERS
. EBEE
. RRHB
. RBAR
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Expectations and requirements

Iﬁiﬁ %ié& k\Ai& =

Communication and response

B0E HEREE BREREE
Customers +  Outstanding products and services *  Quality assurance program
¢ Health and safety *  Training for employees
*  Performance of contracts *  Customer Communication meetings
*  Operation integrity *  Social media platforms
*  Privacy protection *  Privacy Policy
EF - BEERKRS - BERERFR
- BEEZ2 - EEET
- ET1RH - KFPARSH
- BERLE - HXEEYA
« REWLRE « EBEHER

Environment

S5
i

Industry

7%

Compliant emission

Energy saving and emission reduction
Ecosystem protection

A RBER
£ B2 AL B
R & 4 R

Promoting industry development

RETRER

Compliance with local environmental
emission requirements

Efficient use of resources
Compliance with environmental
policies

ETEHIRREEMIEE
BEXFERER
ETRBHRR

Compliance with industry standards

/

TIXRR

4}

~|I
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Stakeholders

Expectations and requirements

Communication and response

FHE HEREE BREREE
Employees *  Protection of rights *  Employee communication meetings
*  Occupational health »  Corporate journal, intranet and email
*  Remunerations and benefit *  One-to-one communication
»  Career development *  Training and workshop
*  Humanity cares *  Employee activities
B8 «  REER - EEEESZ
- BERER - BXRHT ABBLED
« HBREA - —H-ER
- 3 - BIKIEYG
« AXBE - EEEH

Community and the public

Improvement of community
environment

Participation in charity
Information transparency

Communication through property
management

Social media platforms

Timely information disclosure

HERAR « HEHEIRE - BBRMEERER
- ZHEFEE - HREBYA
- EEEH + RENEERE

The Group will continue to increase the involvement of stakeholders so as AEEREEBRSRNECZERE
KEERBRUNEEER T IERES

a course. ﬁﬂ ©

to collect their valuable and constructive opinions with a view to charting
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In the Year, the Group carried out materiality assessment on a number of

ESG issues in order to identify which issues were crucial to the Group's

business and were of the utmost concerned by stakeholders. It helps

the Group to ensure its business development meeting the expectations

and requirements of stakeholders. The Group has identified 22 ESG

issues covering environmental, social and operation, and has invited

stakeholders to assess the materiality of the ESG issues through a scoring

tool, discussions or interviews. The Group’s management has reviewed

the ranking of materiality of the ESG issues and then disclosed the result

in this report. The results of materiality assessment prioritised stakeholder

inputs and made the Group focused on the material aspects for actions,

achievements and reporting.

The Group’s materiality matrix of ESG issues in the Year:

KEERAFEENESGEEEEM MR :

B HBREARE
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Environmental issues Social issues Operation issues

BESH HEEH EBEH

[. Greenhouse gas emissions 9. Local community engagement I7. Economic value generated
2. Energy consumption [0. Community investment 18. Corporate governance

3. Water consumption [l. Occupational health and safety [9.  Anti-corruption

4. Waste I2. Labour standards in supply chain ~ 20. Supply chain management
5. Environmental impact of business |3. Training and development 21, Customer satisfaction

6. Use of raw materials and packaging 4. Employee welfare 22. Customer privacy

materials I5. Inclusion and equal opportunities

7. Customer engagement in environmental  16.  Talent attraction and retention
issues

8. Use of chemicals

I REREHR 9. AipiRSLE

2. BERHF 10. HEKE

3. Ak I BXEENRZZ

4. BED 12. HERANSTE]

5. EBHRFENTE 13. BJIlRER

6. EREMHRBEMF 14. EEEH

7. BFYURBEENSHE 5. BARFE#KRS

8. {LEmEH 6. MMREEAAT

PROTECTING THE ENVIRONMENT

Emissions

The Group is committed to minimising the environmental impact of its
business activities and has strictly complied with relevant laws and regulations,
such as the Regulations on the Administration of Medical Wastes (% & &
MEEEHI)) and Measures for Medical Wastes Management of Medical
and Health Institutions (B REE R BEREEMERINE)).

The wastes generated from the business operation are mainly medical
wastes and general wastes. Medical wastes are delivered to the qualified
medical wastes collection, transportation, disposal unit for unified incineration
treatment, and general wastes are collected and delivered to the local
environmental hygiene department for further handling.

Raw materials used in the daily operation are finished reagents instead of
acid, alkali or other chemical reagents, and the testing process does not
involve volatilization or evaporation of the raw materials. Therefore, generally
there is no exhaust gas emission in the operation.

The Group's major type of wastewater is laboratory sewage of medical
organisation and domestic sewage. Laboratory sewage of medical organisation
is disinfected by internal sewage infection device and then discharged to the
municipal drainage system, and domestic sewage is filtered in septic tanks and
then discharged to the municipal drainage system.
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During the Year, air emission for nitrogen oxides (“NOy"), sulphur oxides
("SOy") and particulate matter (“PM") were mainly generated from the use of
motor vehicles of the Group. The table below shows the key environmental
performance indicators of different types of air emissions generated by the
Group's operation during the Year.

B HBREARE

RAFEER AALNIESELY)
malkm(REtm)nELY(BE
NDHORBHENTIZEBAEENKRE
HHOER TRBTIARERNAFE
LERMELNSBERBINBERERR

RMIEIE -

Air emissions (Nere ) Unit Year 2022 Year 202I
SRR Efy —g-C —B_F%
NOy emissions g 505 1,074
REMIEN I
SOy emissions g 9 30
B At W HE I
PM emissions g 37 79
A8 KLY BE TR I3

Note |:  The emission factors used to calculate the NOx, SOx and PM are sourced from: M- ARFERELH HELHAMEHN
(i) the Hong Kong Environmental Protection Department's (“EPD") EMFAC- MOBEREFLEE: (VBB RERE
HK Vehicle Emission Calculation model; and (ii) the United States Environmental Z(BRB)) EMFACHK A BHE KA &
Protection Agency's Vehicle Emission Modeling Software — MOBILE6.l. The BECRMHFEREREZENAEHS
assumption of 80% relative humidity, a temperature of 25 degrees Celsius, an PSR — MOBILE6.| » REXFEY
average speed of 30kmh, and include running exhaust emissions only. BE80%  REDEKE - THRE30
RBE/IEBRERETERNERH
i
Reduction target of air emissions intensity REHREBEREER
Environmental Indicators Reduction Target Baseline Year Status
BEER 5B R EESF B
NOy intensity Reduce 2% by Year 2027 2022 In progress
ARLNEE TR FRIR 2% i St &7
SOy intensity Reduce 2% by Year 2027 2022 In progress
RALNEE R FRIR 2% —¥-C ETF
PM intensity Reduce 2% by Year 2027 2022 In progress
BN EE R FHIR 2% —®-C ETH
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The table below shows the key environmental performance indicators of

greenhouse gas (“GHG") emissions generated by the Group’s operation

during the Year.

MEERETRERB D AMBRRS

BERIER

GHG emissions Unit Year 2022 Year 2021
BEREHFK Efr —®-C —EIF
Total GHG emissions kg CO,e 21,987 19,712
REREBHNEE TR-SILREE

Area of operation m? 1,040 [,040 (Note2) (ff3i2)
2EEE FhK

GHG emissions intensity kg COse/m’ 21 |9 (Note2) (Fi&2)
REREBHHEE FTr-GLREE/TFHK

Direct emissions due to combustion of fuels kg COqe 1,585 5,352
in mobile sources (Scope |)

BHRMHMEELNEZ N (EBE) TR-GILRKEE

Indirect emissions due to consumption of kg CO,e 19,936 13,509
purchased electricity (Scope 2) (MNete

ARINBENE LRI M ()W TrR_GLKEE

Other indirect emissions due to paper waste kg CO,e 466 851

disposed at landfills, electricity used for

processing fresh water and sewage water (Scope 3)

FEEEAREY  BIERKITK
FIRENEEMEBREER(EE)

TrRoflLEE

Note I:  National emission factors for China (Source: The Ministry of Ecology and
Environment of People’s Republic of China (2019)).

Note 2:  Area of operation for calculating intensity figure is restated to cover the area of
the offices in Beijing and Hong Kong and the production and testing centre in
Guangzhou.

Scope I Direct GHG emissions from the fuel consumed by motor vehicles that are

owned or controlled by the relevant company.

Scope 2: “Energy indirect” GHG emissions resulting from purchased electricity.

Scope 3: All other indirect GHG emissions that occurred paper waste disposed at

landfills and water used.
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Reduction target of GHG emissions intensity BERBHNZERHFEE
Environmental Indicators Reduction Target Baseline Year Status
REER HEEER EEF R

GHG emission intensity (Scope 1) Reduce 2% by Year 2027 2022 In progress
BERBHREE (RE) “ELFRIRL2% —g-C ETTH
GHG emission intensity (Scope 2) Reduce 2% by Year 2027 2022 In progress
BEREBHREE (BE2) TR EFRIR A% —EB_CF ETH
GHG emission intensity (Scope 3) Reduce 2% by Year 2027 2022 In progress
BEREHEREE (RE3) “ECLERD% —g-C ETTH

The table below shows the key environmental performance indicators of NRERASERAFEZERMELE

waste produced by the Group's operation during the Year. MENBRIRREUER -

Waste Unit Year 2022 Year 202|

3] Efi —g-C S

Total non-hazardous waste produced tonnes 2 314

EANEZRENEE i

Non-hazardous waste produced intensity tonnes/m? 0.0019 0.30 (Note ) (HED)

MELNEERNEE W/ K

Total hazardous waste produced tonnes 0.098 0.095

MEANBEERNEE i

Hazardous waste produced intensity tonnes/m? 0.000095  0.000092 (et D (HED

MEEANBERNEE WK

Note |:  Area of operation for calculating intensity figure is restated to cover the area of M K87 HEREHTHLERESR
the offices in Beijing and Hong Kong and the production and testing centre in BUARRBENPEREREMEER
Guangzhou. BB -
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Reduction target of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes produced intensity

REREERRNELZERBRER

Environmental Indicators Reduction Target Baseline Year Status
REER HEER EEF R
Non-hazardous waste produced intensity ~ Reduce 2% by Year 2027 2022 In progress
MELNEZENEE “ELFRIRL2% —F-C #EITH
Hazardous waste produced intensity Reduce 2% by Year 2027 2022 In progress
FELNBERNEE “T o FRIRL2% —B-CF ETH
Compliance with relevant laws and regulations BFHEZERZR

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with applicable
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group relating
to air and GHG emissions, discharges into water and land, generation of

hazardous and non-hazardous waste during the Year.

In addition, no significant fine or non-monetary sanction for non-
compliance with relevant laws and regulations has been reported in the
Year.

Use of Resources
The Group strives to create outstanding and effective management
measures for resources conservation, so as to minimise the environmental

impact of daily operations.

As part of the environmental protection initiative, office areas are divided
into multiple lighting zones with independent switches whereas the
temperature of the air-conditioning system remains at a minimum of 26
degrees Celsius in the summer. Employees are also required to switch
off the lighting, air-conditioning and other electronic appliances when not
in use to reduce electricity consumption. The Group has also installed
energy-saving lighting fixtures, such as LED lighting to increase energy

efficiency.
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To conserve water, the office in Beijing and Guangzhou uses dual-flush
toilets. Employees are reminded to turn off faucets tightly to avoid water
wastage. Also, the property management of the office building carries out
regular checks on concealed piping and fixes dripping taps immediately to
minimise water leakage. There is no any issue in sourcing water that is fit
for the usage of the Group.

In furtherance of the environmental commitment, the Group advocates
concepts such as paperless office to lower paper consumption, and aims
to further diminish greenhouse gas emissions. The Group promotes the
use of electronic systems, such as communication via electronic means
to reduce paper use. The Group also encourages employees to use both

sides of papers whenever possible.

In order to minimise waste disposal, non-reusable paper without
confidential information is collected and sent to recycling companies for
further handling. Employees are encouraged to avoid the use of disposable
products, for example, to refill water from water carboy instead of
drinking bottled water, especially during group meetings and trainings.

In addition, the Group is devoted to reducing greenhouse gas emissions.
Employees are also encouraged to use video and teleconferencing
to substitute unnecessary business trips and to take direct flights for
unavoidable business trips. The Group aims to encourage employees to
commute by means of public transportation and shared bicycles, in an
attempt to reduce fuel and energy consumption. Besides, the office site
selection process of the Group is governed by principles that prioritize
accessibility to public transport, particularly metro lines, so as to achieve

the goal of emission reduction.

B HBREARE
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E—FRE FEEZBEERRER
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The table below shows the key environmental performance indicators of ~TERBRASERAFEFHRERNE

the Group's use of resources during the Year. RIRFEBER -

Total use of resources Unit Year 2022 Year 2021

ERERBE B —g-C —T_—F

Electricity purchases for consumption kWh 33,634 24,495

NEENER TRE

Fuel purchases for consumption (Mot D kWh 5,776 19,498

M R BLR FE D TR

Total energy consumption kWh 39,410 43,993

RRHEREE TR

Total energy consumption intensity kWh/m? 38 4) (Note2) (H12)

RRHEREETE TRE/F7XK

Water consumption m? 29 1,080

KE MK

Water consumption intensity m3/m? 0.03  |.04 (Note2) (M)

RKEE SHARFIK

Packaging material used for finished products MNote? kg N/A N/A

BLRX P A B B M R ) T TER NE

Packaging material per unit produced Mote? kg/unit N/A N/A

SHERHBEH R T/t i A T

Note I:  The conversion factor used to calculate the units to kWh are sourced from the fatl: BRABETENEMMOERA TN
Energy Statistics Manual issued by the International Energy Agency. BERERE N ENCEREFM) -

Note 2. Area of operation for calculating intensity figure is restated to cover the area of a2 ARHABRENCERBERE R IAR
the offices in Beijing and Hong Kong and the production and testing centre in EXRREBOBREREAREMN &
Guangzhou. ERASRFLHEE -

Note 3:  No packaging material is used for product or service provided by the Group. M3 AEEMRHEERIRBLECAE

R

80



N\

° - BENEEEEEEARAR

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Reduction target of energy and water consumption intensity

I&iﬁ %ié& k\Ai& =

HEREKBENDSNER

Environmental Indicators Reduction Target Baseline Year Status

REER HRER EEF ik &

Energy consumption intensity Reduce 2% by Year 2027 2022 In progress

RREER “EZEFHIR 2% —F-C HEATH

Water consumption intensity Reduce 2% by Year 2027 2022 In progress

RKEE “ECEFRIR 2% “ER_CF EITT

The Environment and Natural Resources BRERXAER

The Group encourages all employees to participate in different kinds of AEEHE2EEE 2 M T ﬁ B
recycling activities and minimise the use of natural resources. In the Year, ~ EHUEBIRBRABERNFERRERE o
there is no significant impact on the environment and natural resources RAFEE  AEENE 5(* XEé;)ﬁ n
arising from the operations of the Group, in particular, the officc and ERERE)BMEHRERAARERE

laboratory.

Climate Change

Awareness over climate change continues to grow and is one of the most
discussed topics among companies. The Group is no exception, having
increasing concerns over the potential impact from climate change on
the Group's business and operation. The Group regularly reviews global
and local government policies, regulatory updates and market trends to
identify potential climate-related risks which may have impact on the
Group's business operation.

In accordance with the reporting framework developed by the Task
Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures, there are two major
categories of climate-related risks, physical and transition risks. The Group
will immediately develop a response plan such as changing the business
strategy and modifying the development plan in order to reduce the
negative impacts of such climate-related risks.

The Group will continuously incorporate sustainable practices in its
business operations and prepare and maintain sufficient resources for
managing identified climate-related risks and studying the potential
remediation measures.

During the Year, there is no climate-related risk, including physical and
transitional risks, which have significant impact to the Group.
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CARING FOR EMPLOYEES

Employment

In its ongoing pursuit of the aim of “Taking People as the Foremost”,
the Group strictly abides by the requirements stipulated in the relevant
employment laws and regulations regarding compensation, benefits and
dismissal, such as the Labour Law of the PRC ({(FZEAR EMBE & 8)%))
and Labour Contract Law of the PRC ((FEAREMBEEE AR ZE)).

As an equal opportunity employer, all job applicants with relevant
professional qualifications and working experience receive equal
consideration for employment, regardless of nationality, gender, age,
race, religion or disability. After the job applicants accept the offers,
identification checks are performed to ensure no child labour is employed.
To prevent forced labour, employees’ employment period, working hours,
leave entitlement and job position are clearly stated in the employment
contract and/or code of conduct of the Group. The working hours of
employees are set in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations
relating to working hours, so as to provide employees with sufficient rest.
The Group has strictly complied with national and regional regulations
in terms of statutory holidays that employees are entitled to, including
annual leave, wedding leave, funeral leave, maternity leave, paternity leave
and so on. In addition, certain non-statutory required leaves are created
to motivate employees, for example, employees can apply for additional
annual leaves according to their number of years of working in the Group.

Furthermore, the Group provides competitive remuneration package to
employees and conducts annual remuneration reviews based on prevailing
market standards and their working performance. Employees with
outstanding performance in the appraisal will also be given promotion
opportunities. In compliance with the Social Insurance Law of the PRC
((PEARLME 4 EREE)) and Regulations on Management of
Housing Provident Fund ({{£ B R 1E & B2 15 1)), the Group pays “Five
Social Insurances and One Housing Fund” for employees, including basic
endowment insurance, basic medical insurance, unemployment insurance,
employment injury insurance, maternity insurance and Housing Provident
Fund. Upon receipt of resignation letter from employees, exit interview
will be arranged to understand their reasons of resignation and payment
of the outstanding wages will be made in a timely manner as required by

relevant laws.
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To promote the concept of work-life balance to employees, the Group
organises leisure activities for the employees. The Group has organised
birthday parties and team building activities from time to time with
festive gifts given out to foster positive workplace relationships as well as
employees' sense of belonging towards (i) the research and development
centre; (i) office in Beijing; (iii) the production and testing centre in
Guangzhou; and (iv) the office in Yangzhou.

Distribution of work force of the Group as at 3|1 March 2022 classified by
different categories as follows:

RIE-HEREBRRS

RTRAESEHITERETFEZHL
$E@%Eaﬁ%Wﬁé@ AEET
REpEARERERRERETE T
HEERLY  WRERTNBSHERER
BEEEBROMBEFRL: ()VERBERE:
(iii) B M A B R R B R b s R (iv) B N 3R
$ Zﬁmgm °

AEEBR-_ZE-_—_F=ZA=+—HEFT
Hﬁﬂﬂ PHETDMMT:

By gender By age
gl RERED
® Male Female ® Under 30 years old 30 - 50 years old over 50 years old
B zH 30BE AT 30E505% 50EE L
22%
56% RN 6%
RN
N 72%
By geographical region By employment category
Rt EE D RERERE S
® PRC HK ® Full-time Part-time
TERE BB 2 E3:

11%

89%

N

83%
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The Group's employee turnover rate during the Year is stated as follows

(Note \):

Turnover rate by gender RUBIBSNRER
Male S

Female g

Turnover rate by age REREINRER
Under 30 years old 30 A T

30-50 years old 30E5075%

Over 50 years old 508 A £

Turnover rate by geographical region BRUHEEINREE
Hong Kong B

PRC BN i

Note |1 The employee turnover rate is calculated based on the number of employees

84

who cease employment in each category during the Year divided by the average

number of employees in that category.

i)
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2022
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Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the
Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong, Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance of Hong Kong, Labour Law of the PRC ({HZ A R £ &
#))%)), Labour Contract Law of the PRC ({(REARXEMELE &
’%)), and other applicable laws and regulations that has a significant impact
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination and
other benefits and welfare on the Group during the Year.

In addition, no significant fine or non-monetary sanction for non-compliance
with relevant laws and regulations has been reported in the Year.

Health and Safety

The Group attaches great importance to the protection of the health and
safety of the employees and strictly complies with the laws and regulations
in relation to labour protection, such as the Law of the PRC on the
Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases ({H 2 A & £ 1 Bl B %
mIa%ED).

To ensure the safety of employees, they are required to undergo physical
examination and attend occupational health and safety trainings to better
understand the health and safety practices of the Group. In view of
the potential exposure to hazards in workplace, employees, especially
laboratory technicians, are provided with necessary personal protection
equipment, including safety gloves, masks and protection suits. Protection
suits and other equipment, such as biosafety cabinets, are regularly
cleaned and disinfected to maintain employee cleanliness and workplace
hygiene. Also, hazard signs are placed prominently at the entrances and
exits of the laboratory. Eating, drinking or smoking is not allowed in the
laboratory. In order to safeguard the health of employees and safety of
properties, accident handling procedures have been set up in case of
emergency.
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Due to the outbreak of coronavirus disease 2019, the Group strictly
adopts various prevention policies such as (i) maintaining air circulation
in office area during working hours; (ii) personal health management;
(iii) frequent cleaning of office area; (iv) wearing masks by all staff before
entering office area; and (v) measuring the body temperature of staff and
guest before entering office area. Besides, the Group arranges flexible
working hours and adopts work-from-home policies by using a virtual
private network to access the system of the Group remotely.

There were no work-related fatalities reported for the three years ended
31 March 2020, 2021 and 2022. During the Year, no lost days due to work
injury were noted.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance, Prevention and Control of
Occupational Diseases of the PRC ((REARKLMBEBERNLE))
and other applicable laws and regulations that has a significant impact on
the Group relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards during the Year.

In addition, no significant fine or non-monetary sanction for non-
compliance with relevant laws and regulations has been reported in the
Year.

Development and Training

To facilitate new employees' adaptation to the job, a mentor is assigned
to help them getting familiar with the Group's practice. Moreover, various
trainings designed in accordance with the needs of different departments
are provided to enrich the employees' knowledge and professional skills.
For new laboratory technicians, two types of specialty trainings are
provided, namely theoretical training and practical training. Theoretical
training introduces the working procedures and principles of genetic
testing in laboratory, while practical training focuses on the demonstration
of genetic testing. Those employees are required to attend an examination
after the completion of each type of specialty training, to ensure they
understand the knowledge and professional skills taught in the trainings.
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Regular theoretical trainings are provided for the on-the-job laboratory
technicians, so as to enhance their knowledge and quality. Speakers in
charge of the trainings are from a variety of departments, such as research
and development, pathology, quality control and quality assurance, and
will prepare different topics for the regular theoretical trainings. On-
the-job laboratory technicians can join different trainings according to
their interests and needs. Course evaluation is conducted after training
to assess the teaching quality; outstanding speakers will be given cash

rewards as an encouragement.

During the Year, the percentage of employees trained and the average

training hours completed per employee are as follows:

Percentage of employees trained Mot ") ZI{EBE T/ MED
Percentage of employees trained by gender Note2)
Male B
Female ]

Percentage of employees trained by

employee category (Note2)

Senior management SRERE
Middle management PRERE
General staff —HRETL

Average training hours completed

per employee (Netw?)

Average training hours completed per
employee by gender (Note4)

Male S

Female peglid

Average training hours completed per

employee by employee category (Note4) 19 By Y
Senior management SRERE
Middle management PRERE
General staff —RETL

BEEE TR I TR

B HBREARE

ERERERMAEERHETHER
Al ARERNBRER - AEET
ZHBERBTREEE - WETE  HE -
mEBERERERE T ATEHERE
IHEREEIARE ERERER
MABRZEESLFELMARE -
AEFGEENFIRET AFHH
BEE RAEANBEREERR R
B ERSE -

RAEERN  RlREAI L REAE
BRI FIRHHMTAT:

2022
—E-=

17%

ZURBS 2 ZIEEFA L

67%
33%

ZEEENMAZSIEEFAH Lo

33.33%
33.33%
33.33%

12 hours 12/)\ B

RUBYS 2B EEB TR T PR g

12 hours 12/ B
12 hours 12/)\B&

BEREEANEI2BHEREERTAZI

12 hours 12/)\B&
12 hours 12/ B
12 hours 12/)\B&
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Note |1 Percentage of employees trained is calculated by dividing the number of
employees who took part in training by the number of employees.

Note 2:  Percentage of employees trained by category is calculated based on the number
of employees trained in each category during the Year divided by the number of
employees who took part in training.

Note 3:  Average training hours per employee is calculated by dividing the total number
of training hours by the number of employees.

Note 4:  Average training hours by categories is calculated by dividing the total number

of training hours for such category by the number of employees in the

corresponding category.

Labour Standards

The Group fully understands that exploitation of child and forced labour
is universally condemned, and therefore takes the responsibilities against
child and forced labour very seriously. The policy is implemented in place
to ensure that no person who is underage or under coercion is hired
and, if any such case is identified during the recruitment process, it will
be reported to the relevant authorities. In case of child labour and forced
labour, the Group will immediately terminate the labour contract with the
employees concerned and the position-in-charge will be accountable.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with Labour Law
of the PRC, Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour ({2 It {#
FAEZETI#IE)) Law on the Protection of Minors of the PRC ((FZEA R
HMBIARKFAREZE)) and other applicable laws and regulations that
has a significant impact relating to preventing child or forced labour on the
Group in PRC during the Year.

In addition, there was no non-compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that resulted in significant fines or sanctions in the Year.
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OPERATING PRACTICES
Supply Chain Management

To minimise the adverse impact arising in supply chain on the provision
of services, the Group selects suppliers based on stringent criteria, such
as product quality, reputation and delivery time. Upon the arrival of the
delivery, the Group undergo examinations to make sure the purchased
equipment meets the requirements. After the examination of the newly
arrived equipment, the Group establishes equipment files which include
the labels of equipment, information of suppliers and specification
provided by suppliers. If the equipment fails to meet the requirements,
replacement or return will be arranged to guarantee the service quality.

In situations where several suppliers can meet its requirements, the
Group will select those with a good reputation for being environmentally
and socially responsible and/or that hold environmental certification. The
Group supports in its efforts to further improve their environmental
protection which has the greatest respect for the laws and regulations
that govern its business. The Group always adheres to good practices
and conducts fair and unbiased procurement processes when dealing with
suppliers.

During the Year, the number of suppliers of the Group by geographical
region is as follows:

Region ith B
PRC B A i

B HBREARE

EEEM
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BREMRERBAERZRE  MH
ERRBEEINAAE ARESTH
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i % EHEE A mE R AREKE
BRERMEGEETAGERHR /&
RARREENHER AREXFRE
HEE-FRERIE BAEMERE
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AR - R B H A B
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Number of

suppliers
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Product Responsibility

Quality Assurance

To protect the samples in the laboratory from contamination, the Group
has devised procedures for operations in the laboratory. The Group also
requires laboratory technicians to wear different colours of protection
suits and to regularly clean and disinfect the laboratory equipment, in
order to maintain workplace hygiene and prevent cross-contamination of
samples.

Apart from the hygiene control in the laboratory, the Group also
understands the importance of accuracy of testing results. Thus, the Group
has developed policies in relation to the management and maintenance of
laboratory equipment, especially the calibration of laboratory equipment.
The equipment is calibrated externally by state qualified unit and internally
when necessary to ensure its accuracy. Qualified personnel are assigned
for daily management and maintenance of different equipment, to make
sure the equipment in use is in good condition. Damaged equipment will

not be used until it has been repaired by the suppliers.

During the Year, there were no cases of complaints received against the
Group’s products and services and no product or service subject to recall
due to health and safety issues.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with Measures for
Medical Organisation Administration ((& & # # & 2 {& #l)) issued
by the State Council of the PRC, Detailed Rules for Medical Organisation
Administration Regulations (B R KB ER KO E i 48 81)) issued
by the National Health and Family Planning Commission of the PRC,
Regulations on Supervision and Administration of Medical Devices ({& &
EMEEEEEM)) issued by State Council and other applicable laws
and regulations that has a significant impact relating to quality assurance
on the Group in PRC during the Year.

In addition, there was no non-compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that resulted in significant fines or sanctions in the Year.
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Dedicating the efforts to providing high quality healthcare services has
always been the key to the great success in the industry; while the hard
work in research and development is the reason that the business can
continue to thrive.

Clients’ Information Protection

For privacy protection, informed consent is obtained from clients to
assure that all information is held in strict confidentiality. Clients are
also informed that the testing results may be used for future research
without disclosure of their personal information and they have the rights
to withdraw from the genetic testing procedure. New employees are also
required to enter into a confidentiality agreement to prevent leakage of
confidential information.

Respect for Intellectual Property Rights

To respect the intellectual property rights, the Group is in strict
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations, such as the Copyright
Law of the PRC ((REARLMEIZ {E# X)) and Regulations for
the Protection of Computer Software ((FHE # B IREMKBI)). The
software developed for genetic testing has obtained the Certificate of the
Registration of Computer Software ((Gt EH U HEZERELES)).

Anti-Corruption

The Group endeavours to uphold the integrity in its business operation
and complies with the laws and regulations regarding anti-corruption. The
Group has adopted the whistle-blowing policy, which provides a reporting
channel for employees to disclose any suspected bribery, corruption or
other unlawful acts at a meeting or in a written report. Upon receipt of
a report, the Group will handle the case by carrying out inspection and

taking preventive measures.

During the Year, the Group provided anti-corruption education and
training through webcast and circulation of e-training materials to its
directors and staff on a regular basis to raise their awareness towards
ethical and corruption issues.
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Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the Criminal
Law of the PRC ((FPE AR X FE X)), Anti-Unfair Competition Law
of the People’s Republic of China ((FEARLMBERAEEHRFE))
and other applicable laws and regulations that has a significant impact
on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering
during the Year.

In addition, there was no legal case concerning corruption brought against
the Group or its employees in the Year.

COMMUNITY

Community Investment

The Group is committed to community services in its business operation.
As a provider of healthcare services, the Group strives to promote the
application of the genetic testing in clinical medicine and related healthcare
service, and to further raise the awareness of public health.

Information and Feedbacks

For detailed information about environmental, social and corporate
governance, please refer to the official website (http://www.lifehealthcare.com)
and the annual report of the Group. Your opinions will be highly valued by
the Group. If you have any advice or suggestions, please contact the Group
via email at ir@lifehealthcare.com.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
LIFE HEALTHCARE GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Life Healthcare
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the "Group”) set out on pages 105 to 195, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2022, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters described
in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the consolidated
financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 March 2022, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the "HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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Interest in associates

@

The Group acquired 30% equity interest in Guangzhou Manrui
Biotech Company Limited (“Manrui Biotech”) on 5 August
2016. Manrui Biotech specialises in research and development
of genetic testing technologies, and in particular non-invasive
cancer screening and diagnosis. At the time of the acquisition,
there is an agreement procuring the Company to exclusively
utilize Manrui Biotech’s genetic testing and related technologies
(without monetary consideration). The cost of the investment
was approximately HK$65,129,000. The Group obtained a
valuation price allocation of Manrui Biotech on 5 August 2016
and the investment is recorded as interest in an associate since

the acquisition.

Manrui Biotech's genetic testing and related technologies had
not generated any income in its financial statements since the
Group's acquisition, nor contributed to the Group's revenue
during the year ended 3| March 2022 and 2021. The Group
has fully impaired the investment in Manrui Biotech during the

year.

We were unable to obtain the financial information to support
the basis and assumptions adopted in the valuation of the
purchase price allocation of the associate, as well as in the
valuation in the subsequent year end dates which were used
for impairment assessment of the Group’s interests in Manrui
Biotech. Such basis and assumptions included the forecast
of Manrui Biotech, the growth rates and the discount rates
adopted in the valuation. As such, the value of the genetic
testing technologies cannot be reliably determined.

REEREXE
. REBEARZER
@ EEER=-F-X<ENAR

RERMEREYEER
MAERAR(BEEY])30%
- BInEWEMREH
BERBALMN LERE
BERBERDH - NI
BE BEANBRERE
WA B R RB &AM
mMETELERE)NHBET
T o 1% & AR T54965,129,000
BT RZE-—R"ENAER
B E£ENBEREY
CRERER A TNA=R ¢ 1V 53
BR-—FRBLELRZEZR
>§ ®

B BESEEWBUK 2%
A0 B B iRl B Rl
REVBEBRPRELEEM
WA XY EEBEHE
—EZERZEZ—F=
A=T-—BLEFENKAE
HER . ESEFAHE
e R EEREUNE -

BTAEEERYMBERNX
FRAGBMERRZEBER
BORAERERNFER
Bt SEERNERLENL
1 &5 17 R (E AT 1 P IR A
CEBRBR ZFERR
BREDEEEHENNTA
fEEMRBZERRRFTR
o A BIAASFHETE
ERRARMEE



As a result, we have not yet obtained sufficient and
appropriate audit evidence to satisfy ourselves as to (i)
whether the valuation of the purchase price allocation of that
associate on 5 August 2016 was properly performed, (ii) the
carrying amounts and the recoverability of the interest in an
associate of approximately HK$14,436,000 as at 31 March 2021;
(iii) whether the share of loss of interest in that associate
of approximately HK$5,936,000 and HK$5,992,000 were
properly recorded for the years ended 3| March 2022 and
2021, respectively; (iv) whether the share of foreign currency
translation reserve of that associate of approximately
HK$25,000 (Debit) and HK$2,617,000 (Credit) were properly
recorded for the years ended 31 March 2022 and 202I,
respectively; (v) whether the balance of translation reserve of
that associate of HK$2,163,000 (Credit) and HK$2,188,000
(Credit) were properly recorded as at 31 March 2022 and
2021, respectively; (vi) whether the impairment for interest
in that associate of HK$9,101,000 and HK$3,180,000 for the
year ended 3| March 2022 and 2021 was properly recorded
and whether this expense should be recorded in current or
prior year; and (vii) the related disclosure of the interest in
that associate disclosed in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

N\
° ENEREREEEARALT

Independent Auditor’s Report

8 3 1% BURD

Iltt EMMARGERES
BEERRE REFEHMN f—
WRELERZBERAR
—E-XNENPBRHAZEE
BRoRETHE (VRZF
ZT-F=ZA=+-HBR—X
BERre R cREER
ﬁ‘ﬂlﬁz@ 1 49 514,436,000/
(|||)@ZK B__FRkZ

——F#=ZRA=+—-ALt#F
F ERZHE AR RS
Z B 1B 2 Rl 45,936,000 7T
&59920005%%%75\;% A

R (WBE_T-__Fk=
—_—E—H—Jr—ati
B A EZHE DR 2 N8
BB B 4925000 T (f
TH) }2,617,000% T(EE) 2
BHEEAR WRZIEZZ
ER-_E-—FE=-A=+—
AZBE e hERES
B D RI42,163,00058 7T (E18)
&2|88000,%7c< BH) 2B

(w)@ii_?::
¢ k—E—%=H=+—H
EEERZBERA 2 ER
B & 2 Bl A9,101,0005 T &
3,180,000 TREHZEANE -
ENERYEREREAEE
FBEFEAR: R(iEa
B R B R I8FT 8 B 1Y %
fhENRCER BB E
BHo

95



S

LIFE HEALTHCARE GROUP LIMITED -

¥ Annual Report (A
-/

Independent Auditor’s Report
B 3% B RS

96

(®)

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group invested
RMB30,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$36,990,000)
and RMB25,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$30,824,000) in two associates, namely & E 1 & & (1t
RREERERLA and LREGRTEESMAR
A R), respectively. The Group holds 25% equity interests in
each of these two associates. These two associates engaged
in healthcare services in the People's Republic of China
(the “PRC"). We were unable to perform audit works on
the financial statements of the two associates, specifically
arrangement of bank confirmations to confirm the material
bank balances of the associates as at 31 March 2022.

We have not yet obtained sufficient and appropriate audit
evidence to satisfy ourselves as to the valuation of the Group’s
interests in the above two associates of approximately
HK$67,814,000 as at 31 March 2022.

(0)
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2. Trade and other receivables

@)

Prepayments for consultancy services

On 25 October 2017, the Group granted share options with
a total fair value of HK$20,947,000 to certain consultants of
the Group covering a service period up to October 2027. The
consultants’ services included, but not limited to, providing
reports and advisory services to assist the Company in
expanding the healthcare market and introducing business
and financing opportunities to the Group. The purpose of the
grant of share options is to provide consultants an incentive to
expand the Group's business.

We have not yet obtained sufficient and appropriate audit
evidence to ascertain the economic benefits from the
consultants’ works/services in accordance with the original
plan. During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group had
not received any services from the consultants and decided
to cancel the remaining services period and requested the
consultants to give up their rights on the share options. The
Group has fully impaired the prepayments of approximately
HK$11,694,000 during the year ended 31 March 2022.
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(b)

We were unable to obtain information to support the values
of the proposed services that would be carried out by the
consultants at the time of granting the share options. In the
subsequent years after granting of the share options and
up to 31 March 2022, we were unable to obtain sufficient
and appropriate audit evidence to support the services
provided by the consultants. Such evidence included the
revenue/income/assets brought by the consultants to the
Group and proof of such services performed. As a result, we
were unable to quantify the value of the services performed
by the consultants, which formed the basis for calculation of
the amortisation of prepayment. As such, we have not yet
obtained sufficient and appropriate audit evidence to satisfy
ourselves as to (i) the carrying amounts and the recoverability
of prepayment of approximately HK$13,789,000 as at 31 March
2021; (ii) whether the amortisation of prepayment included
in administrative and other expenses of approximately
HK$2,095,000 and HK$2,095,000 was properly recorded for
the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, respectively; and
(i) whether the impairment on prepayments of approximately
HK$11,694,000 was properly recorded and whether this

expense should be recorded in current or prior years.

Prepayments for healthcare supplies

The Group recorded prepayments for purchases of
HK$89,620,000 to certain materials suppliers as at 31 March
2022, including payments of RMB22,685,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$27,971,000) and payments of
RMB50,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$61,649,000)
for purchases of healthcare materials and equipment.

(b)
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Up to 31 March 2022, the Group has not yet received the
healthcare materials and equipment from the suppliers. In July
2022, the Group has entered into cancellation agreements
with the suppliers to cancel the purchases and requested for
full refund of the amounts prepaid. The amounts were fully
refunded subsequent to the end of the reporting period. We
were unable to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence
about the details of the suppliers and the reasons for the
cancellation.

In respect of the abovementioned transactions, we were
unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence or
satisfactory management explanations to ascertain the nature
of the prepayment of approximately HK$89,620,000 as at
31 March 2022,

Equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive
income

The equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive
income relates to Beijing Life Healthcare Zhongcheng Medical
Technologies Co., Ltd (A REMZ K BEM K AR 2 7)
(the “Investee™), with principal activities such as research and
development of medical technology innovations of genomics, cell
therapy and their application in the field of human health and
precision medicine. As at 26 June 2020, the Group has entered
into a joint venture agreement pursuant to which the Group has
contributed RMB30,000,000 in the Investee, represented 15% of its

share capital.
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During the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, we have not
obtained sufficient financial information of the Investee, which form
the basis for assessing the underlying assumptions and calculation of
the fair value of the Investee.

We were unable to obtained sufficient and appropriate audit
evidence to satisfy ourselves as to (i) the fair value of equity
investment at fair value through other comprehensive income of
approximately HK$36,990,000 and HK$38,037,000 as at 31 March
2022 and 2021, respectively; (i) whether the fair value change
on equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive
income of approximately HK$2,603,000 (loss) and HK$2,460,000
(gain) was properly recorded for the years ended 31 March 2022
and 202[, respectively; and (iii) whether the revaluation reserve
of approximately HK$143,000 and HK$2,460,000 were properly
recorded as at 31 March 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Any adjustments to the figures as described above might have a

consequential effect on the Group’s financial performance and cash flows
for the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021 and the financial positions
of the Group as at 3|1 March 2022 and 2021, and the related disclosures
thereof in the consolidated financial statements.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code"), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matter is a matter that, in our professional judgement, was of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. This matter was addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on this matter.
In addition to the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
section, we have determined the matters described below to be the key
audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Trade and other receivables
Refer to Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group tested the amounts of trade and other receivables for
impairment. This impairment test is significant to our audit because
the aggregate balance of trade and other receivables of approximately
HK$70,016,000 as at 31 March 2022 is material to the consolidated financial
statements. In addition, the Group's impairment test involves application of
judgement and is based on assumptions and estimates.
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Our audit procedures included, among others:

—  Assessing the Group's procedures on granting credit limits and credit
periods to customers and debtors;

— Assessing the Group's relationship and transaction history with
customers, debtors and suppliers;

—  Evaluating the Group's impairment assessment;
— Assessing the ageing of the debts;

—  Checking subsequent settlements from customers, debtors and
usage of prepayments;

— Assessing the credit worthiness of customers, debtors and suppliers;
and

—  Assessing the disclosure of the Group's exposure to credit risk in the
consolidated financial statements.

We consider that the Group's impairment test for trade and other
receivables is supported by the available evidence.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information in the Company’s annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover

the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit

or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. As described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section above,
we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence about the
interest in associates, trade and other receivables and investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income. Accordingly, we are unable
to conclude whether or not the other information is materially misstated
with respect to those matters.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements is located at the HKICPA's website at:
http://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/standards-and-regulations/standards/auditing-
assurance/auditre/

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Yeung Hong Chun

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number P07374
Hong Kong, 31 August 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 BIEZZT--F=RA=+—HIFE

2022 2021
—g=-= —E-—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Pt & THER TET
Healthcare products and services revenue 2 REm R RGN & 92,118 98,953
Loan interest income EXMEKRA 755 3,088
Total revenue N 7 92,873 102,041
Cost of sales and services HERRBEKA (79,119) (73,719)
Gross profit E A 13,754 28,322
Interest income EYON 6 344
Other income and gains H A Rz 9 927 2,608
Share of result of associates 216 B % NAIZER 18 (5,936) (5,001)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAX (227) (3,968)
Administrative and other expenses TH & Hb % (45,188) (21,601)
Finance costs Bt 1 B AKX 10 (23) (63)
(Loss)/profit before tax BRBA (BE) BF (36,687) 641
Income tax expense FEM A < H (631 (2,987)
Loss for the year rXEEER 12 (37,318) (2,346)
Other comprehensive income/(loss): HtvzmEbaE/ (FR)
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently ﬁ RAREN A EZE B Z
to profit or loss: EH -
Exchange differences arising on translation BMEBIEBREEL
of foreign operations [ H =5 8,644 15251
Share of foreign currency translation reserve AME—RBE AR ZINE
of an associate BEFR (25) 2617
Reclassification of translation reserve kN =UNGLES: B ik
to profit or loss upon disposal of subsidiaries ﬁ HERBEEER = (1,510)
8,619 16,358
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: # T EEH 7 EEBm
FE -
Fair value change on equity investment EREMEARERATYE
at fair value through other comprehensive §JJ ENRAREN DT E
income s (2,603) 1,847
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year AFE2M (F#B) /K#H
TR (31,302) 15,859
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 BEZEZZT--F=R=+—HIFE

2022 2021
—E-C —E-—F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
iz TER TET
Loss for the year attributable to: ATATEREFRERER
Owners of the Company ARBIHEBA (34,458) (4,583)
Non-controlling interests FERES (2,860) 2,237
(37,318) (2,346)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income UATATEEEFEERE
for the year attributable to: (&) ~/'15( HAE
Owners of the Company KRARIEE A (28,299) 13,868
Non-controlling interests FEERE S (3,003) 1991
(31,302) 15,859
Loss per share ERER 5
Basic and diluted (HK cents) ERXREE (B (2.68) (0.38)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A MR R
Asat 31 March2022 RZZ-__=/A=+—H
2022 2021
—E-C —EC—F
Noﬁes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 TET TET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment nE BERRE 16 401 1,129
Right-of-use assets ERESE 17 419 680
Interest in associates REERNT 2 R ‘ 18 67,814 14,436
Equity investment at fair value through FRAMEZARGZRRT
other comprehensive income BII& 2 RARE 19 37,258 38,294
Prepayment A HE 20 - 1,694
105,892 66,233
Current assets TRBEE
Inventories FE \ 21 10 54,180
Loan receivables Jfﬂlﬁlg%( 22 = 17,154
Loan interest receivables W E HFI B 22 = 5489
Trade and other receivables e E 5 & H i e U 518 23 159,636 173,378
Bank balances and cash ROTERNR® 24 37,402 8,574
197,048 258,775
Current liabilities TBEE
Trade and other payables FER 8B 5 R H th e 15 508 25 34,890 26,135
Lease liabilities HEERE 26 249 715
Tax payable R 4,244 34712
39,383 30,322
Net current assets RBEEFE 157,665 228453
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BEERRBAR 263,557 294,686
Non-current liabilities kFRBEE
Lease liabilities MEARE 26 173 -
173 =
NET ASSETS EERE 263,384 294,686
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A B AR &
Asat 3l March 2022 R-ZE-—f=A=+—H
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Noﬁes HK$’000 HK$'000
B & TERT TET
Capital and reserves EXREE
Share capital A R 27 64,251 64,25
Reserves & 28 198,032 226,331
Equity attributable to owners of the Company KARHBEAEEER 262,283 290,582
Non-controlling interests EERER 1,101 4104
TOTAL EQUITY REARE 263,384 294,686

The consolidated financial statements on pages 105 to 195 were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 31 August 2022 and
are signed on its behalf by:

Yuan Limin
REiIR
Director

EF
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Pang Zhen

Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEERBEX

For the year ended 31 March 2022 BIEZZT--F=RA=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARBERAER
Non-
Share Share  Contributed  Translation Other  Revaluation Share option Accumulated controlling
capital premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Sub-total interests Total
BA ROEE SABR HERE HbREE  EREE BREEE  ZHER Nt FERER @t

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
TRL TAL TR TEL TAL TATL TR TEL TAL TATL TEL

(Note i) (Note i)
(B £E3) (M &)
At | April 2020 WZZZ%%F
mA—A 53,543 1,275,023 167,780 (17,780) 5518 (2.532) 17136 (1,251,257) 247431 2,113 249,544
Total comprehensive EER2EHN/
income/(loss) for the year (&%) B8 = = = 16,604 = 1,847 = (4,583) 13,868 1991 15,859
Placing of new shares under 1§ %% — & £
general mandate REHRH 10,708 18,575 = = = = = = 29,283 - 29,283
At 31 March 2021 R-B-_-%
ZA=+-A 64251 1293,598 167,780 (1,176) 5518 (685) 17036 (1255840) 290,582 4104 294686
Attributable to owners of the Company
ARAEEARL
Non-
Share Share Contributed ~ Translation Other  Revaluation Share option Accumulated controlling
capital premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve losses  Sub-total interests Total
BEx  BROEE SABR RERE HbHE EMRE BRERE RHER M OFERES @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TER TER TR TER TER TER TR TER TER TR
(Note i) (Note ii)
GED) (Mt &)
At | April 2021 R-B--F
mA—A 64,251 1,293,598 167,780 (1,176) 5518 (685) 17,136 (1,255,840) 290,582 4,104 294,686
Total comprehensive AEER2EHN/
income/(loss) for the year (5 18) % - - - 8,762 - (2,603) - (4458 (28299 (3.003)  (31302)
At 31 March 2022 RZBZZ%
ZA=t+-A 64251 1,293,598 167,780 7,586 5,518 (3,288) 17036 (1,290,298) 262,283 L0l 263,384
Notes: Pt & -
() The contributed surplus represents the difference between nominal value of the shares () BWABRBRERADFKEMBERFARMR
of subsidiaries acquired by the Company and the nominal value of the shares of the BEANABBER-ZE_FHNAZE4
Company issued for the acquisition pursuant to the reorganisation in April 2002. ETRBEMETROAECESR -

(i)~ The other reserve represents the transfer from share options reserve upon exercise of iy HEnEEEERBEETESEERER
share options. HEL -
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 BEZEZZT--F=R=+—HIFE

2022 2021
—E-C —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
Cash flows from operating activities REFDRBRER uu,s
(Loss)/profit before tax BREiA (B8E) /& H (36,687) 641
Adjustments for: BTIERELAE
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ES fﬁﬁ& 774 927
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ﬁﬁq BEENE 775 954
Share of result of associates DEBERNT L EE 5,936 5,001
Bank interest income |ATHEWA (6) (344)
Finance cost Bt B Bk R 23 63
Impairment of trade receivables EWE 5 R BR A - 34
Impairment of prepayments BN FERE 13,978 4,351
Impairment of interest in associates REERA 2SR E 9,101 3,180
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR 2 W& - (2,448)
Early termination of lease agreement RAKILHERZ - 17
Operating cash flows before movements LEEREDAL
in working capital BERENE (6,106) 12,376
Change in inventories FEE 54,170 (54,170)
Change in loan and loan interest receivables EREZRRERER
kY ) 22,643 (3.087)
Change in trade and other receivables EKE S REMEKR
Y L) 18,068 (112274)
Change in in trade and other payables ENE S RHEMER
HREEE 8,083 (23,509)
Change in contract liabilities ’]@ E& 5 - (509)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations BERE/ (FB) B 96,858 (181,173)
Income tax paid B BT 15 1 - (513)
Net cash generated from/(used in) cEEEME/ (FA)
operating activities BEFH 96,858 (181,686)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 BIEZZT--F=RA=+—HIFE

2022 2021
—E-C —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TER
Cash flows from investing activities RETBMBHERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME  BERERE (13) -
Purchase of equity investment at fair value E% ERERAMEZERSER
through other comprehensive income ATEIENRARE - (34,347)
Investment in associates REHE AT (67,814) -
Bank interest received B KR ITH S 6 344
Disposal of subsidiaries (net of cash and HEMBLRR (MEREHE
cash equivalents disposed of) fﬁﬁ&fﬁ/ﬁéﬂg ) o (109)
Net cash used in investing activities REZBHMARSFE (67,821) (34,112)
Cash flows from financing activities REZBHMBRERE
Issue of new shares TR - 29,283
Lease interests paid EHEERNE (23) (63)
Repayment of lease liabilities HEARER (807) (932)
Net cash (used in)/generated from MEEE (FR) /FB
financing activities REeRHE (830) 28,288
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRBREEENEMN/
cash equivalents (YD) B8 28,207 (187,510)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of REN BEREEEEY
the year 8,574 187,578
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rate NEEXZHFE 621 8,506
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year RERZHERREEEY 37,402 8,574
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents RERASEBYUAINW
Bank and cash balances w17 MR & 37,402 8,574
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Life Healthcare Group Limited (the “Company”) is a company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with
limited liability under Companies Law of the Cayman Islands on
I2 March 2001 and its shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) as of
29 April 2002. The address of the registered office of the Company
is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KYI-1111, the Cayman Islands and the principal place of business of
the Company in Hong Kong is Office A, 12/F, Aubin House, I71-172
Gloucester Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company and
its subsidiaries (the "Group”) are principally engaged in healthcare

products and services business, and money lending business.

The functional currency of the Company and the subsidiaries
incorporated in Hong Kong is Hong Kong dollars (“"HK$"). The
functional currency of the Group's subsidiaries incorporated in the
PRC is Renminbi (*RMB"). For the convenience of the consolidated
financial statements users, the results and financial position of the
Group are presented in HK$ as the Company’s shares are listed on
the Stock Exchange.

—REH
ENBREEESEARAR (AR
ANAER-_SE—E=A+-HAR
EREHSRARAEERSERSH
MLz EHRRERAR AR
OPR_ZEZ_FWOA-_TNAHES
BBMARZMARNA (BRI
ERLET o ADE] 2 MR it
it & Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 268I, Grand Cayman, KY|-
[111, the Cayman Islands * T A2 A
ZERTBREZUHARNER
BESTHBI7-NERABEE
AENBAE -

ARAIRREERRAA - ARAIR
EfEor(AREDZENSE
FEMRBRBES UREER
e

ARRARREBREMALZHE
RAlzYReEBRAT(ET]) -
AEBRPBEZMK L2 HEBR
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 BIEZZT--F=RA=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA")
that are relevant to its operations and effective for its accounting
year beginning on | April 2021. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"); Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“"HKAS"); and Interpretations. The adoption of these
new and revised HKFRSs did not result in significant changes to the
Group's accounting policies and amounts reported for the current
year and prior years.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the investments which
are carried at their fair values.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain key assumptions and
estimates. It also requires the directors to exercise their judgements
in the process of applying the accounting policies. The areas involving
critical judgements and areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to these consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in
note 4.

ERAFIREBTEEMBER
HER

REAFEE AREERAMEES
A g(BEGFMAE)RM
BREXGEEAHTIA T _—
EMA-HRRZEFFREEN
ZHABHARBETELHBE R
FEA(EEMBEREE]) - &
BHBRELENBEELENBR
FEA(EEMBREE]) &
BastE(EBGHEA]) kR
B-RMZEMTLEETERR
BBEBRELENLTEEREFER
BEFE ARBE S RE R
EREFERENED -

FEEHBE
GERBHRRNDREEL G
RERMZEAMBREENR
o ftsh BRAEMBHRREEY
XHEFEMRALEE QB
PIREZBREE

hEFAMBRRDBIBEEL K
NEGIRE LERDFEIE
ZREEBR] -

RANREEMBREER 2K
AMBRRERAETEIERR
Rftst TEXEFHEEM G
BRERBEFELHEG - FREK
Az BERSEERAMER
REEAFEZRERfAst2®
BN R4 B R o
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to
31 March. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has control.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. The
Group has power over an entity when the Group has existing rights
that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e.

activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting
rights as well as potential voting rights held by other parties,
to determine whether it has control. A potential voting right is
considered only if the holder has the practical ability to exercise that
right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date
the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in a loss
of control represents the difference between (i) the fair value of
the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any investment
retained in that subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s share of the net
assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill relating to that
subsidiary and any related accumulated translation reserve.

3.

TEEHHRE)
RENESHEAMBREMER
TEEFHEREANME

mERE
@é%%ﬁ%@%$@ﬂ&ﬁw
RAIBE=ZA=T—HILOH

%ﬁ%°%%@ﬂ%$%§@ﬂ
§@°%$EI%F&EEQ
EREDR AR RERN
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aﬁﬁﬁ%'$EIW£ma
GEEGE - EXARERAHR
BN BYHEMENNETE
BEB(MEARELZERORM
REE ASEUZERARE
5 o

E‘E’EW%)EES

Hm:

Eﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ AEBEZRH

SRR R BT EER
ﬁ% NHEEREHA LG -
EEEBEERZERNKFEABER
ENTEZENE ZEBEERZR
BEFEZRE -

MBARBERHEEETALE
BEHREAAR IR EHE
RIFERRUHGEAAR o
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 BIEZZT--F=RA=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries not
attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position and consolidated statement of changes in equity within
equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between the non-controlling shareholders and owners of the
Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling shareholders even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’'s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions (i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and

attributed to the owners of the Company.

FTEEHBRE)
“eRB(E)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition of
a subsidiary in a business combination. The cost of acquisition is
measured at the acquisition-date fair value of the assets given, equity
instruments issued, liabilities incurred and contingent consideration.
Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses in the periods
in which the costs are incurred and the services are received.
Identifiable assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in the acquisition

are measured at their acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company’s share of
the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities
is recorded as goodwill. Any excess of the Company’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase which is attributed to the Company.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest in the subsidiary is remeasured at its acquisition-date
fair value and the resulting gain or loss is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss. The fair value is added to the cost of acquisition to

calculate the goodwill.

If the changes in the value of the previously held equity interest
in the subsidiary were recognised in other comprehensive income
(for example, equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income), the amount that was recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised on the same basis as would be
required if the previously held equity interest were disposed of.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 BIEZZT--F=RA=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combination and goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired.
Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
The method of measuring impairment losses of goodwill is the same
as that of other assets as stated in the accounting policy below.
Impairment losses of goodwill are recognised in consolidated profit
or loss and are not subsequently reversed. Goodwill is allocated
to cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the acquisition for the purpose of impairment testing.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially measured
at the non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate share of the net
fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities at the
acquisition date.

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of an entity but is not control
or joint control over those policies. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible,
including potential voting rights held by other entities, are considered
when assessing whether the Group has significant influence. In
assessing whether a potential voting right contributes to significant
influence, the holder's intention and financial ability to exercise or
convert that right is not considered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Associates (Continued)

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements by the equity method and is initially recognised
at cost. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the associate in an
acquisition are measured at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share of
the net fair value of the associate's identifiable assets and liabilities
is recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is included in the carrying
amount of the investment and is tested for impairment together
with the investment at the end of each reporting period when there
is objective evidence that the investment is impaired. Any excess of
the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss.

The Group's share of an associate’s post-acquisition profits or losses
is recognised in consolidated profit or loss, and its share of the post-
acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in the consolidated
reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group's
share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate. If the associate
subsequently reports profits, the Group resumes recognising its
share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the

share of losses not recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Associates (Continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that results in a loss
of significant influence represents the difference between (i) the
fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that associate and (ii) the Group's share of
the net assets of that associate plus any remaining goodwill relating
to that associate and any related accumulated translation reserve.
If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture, the Group continues to apply the equity method and does
not remeasure the retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interests
in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Foreign currency translation

(a)  Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in HK$, which is the Group's

presentation currency.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency on initial recognition using the exchange rates prevailing
on the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange rates at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from this translation

policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair values in foreign
currencies are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in other comprehensive income, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income.
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(¢)  Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the group entities
that have a functional currency different from the Group's
presentation currency are translated into the Group's

presentation currency as follows:

— Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that statement of financial position;

— Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the exchange rates on the
transaction dates); and

— All resulting exchange differences are recognised in the

translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities and of
borrowings are recognised in the translation reserve. When
a foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on

disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit
or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at rates
sufficient to write off their costs less their residual values over the
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal useful

lives are as follows:

Over the shorter of the
term of lease or 7 years

Leasehold improvements

Furniture fixtures and equipment 3 =7 years

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting

period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount

of the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases

The Group as lessee

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and corresponding lease
liabilities when the leased assets are available for use by the Group.
Right-of-use assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses. Depreciation of right-of-use assets is
calculated at rates to write off their cost over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. The

principal annual rates are as follows:

Land and buildings 35.3% — 50%
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the amount
of the initial measurement of the lease liabilities, lease payments
prepaid, initial direct costs and the restoration costs. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the lease payments discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate can be determined,
or otherwise the Group's incremental borrowing rate. Each lease
payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease term so as
to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the lease liability.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as expenses in profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the lease terms. Short-term leases are leases with an
initial lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets are assets of
value below US$5,000.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred. An internally generated intangible
asset arising from the Group’s healthcare service development is

recognised only if all of the following conditions are met:

— An asset is created that can be identified (such as software and

new processes);

— It is probable that the asset created will generate future
economic benefits; and

— The development cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Internally generated intangible assets are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. Where no
internally generated intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it is

incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average method. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of all production overhead
expenditure, and where appropriate, subcontracting charges. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated

costs necessary to make the sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
statement of financial position when the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire; the Group transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets;
or the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the assets but has not retained
control on the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis where the purchase or sale of an asset is under a contract
whose terms require delivery of the asset within the timeframe
established by the market concerned, and are initially recognised at
fair value, plus directly attributable transaction costs except in the
case of investments at fair value through profit or loss. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of investments at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets of the Group are classified under the following

categories:

(i)

(i)

Financial assets at amortised cost; and

Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets (including trade and other receivables) are
classified under this category if they satisfy both of the
following conditions:

— the assets are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows; and

— the contractual terms of the assets give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less loss allowance for expected
credit losses.

Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income

On initial recognition, the Group can make an irrevocable
election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to designate
investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading

as at fair value through other comprehensive income.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(i) Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income (Continued)
Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income are subsequently measured at fair value with gains
and losses arising from changes in fair values recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
equity investment revaluation reserve. On derecognition
of an investment, the cumulative gains or losses previously
accumulated in the equity investment revaluation reserve are

not reclassified to profit or loss.

Dividends on these investments are recognised in profit or
loss, unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part
of the cost of the investment.

Loss allowances for expected credit losses

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses
on financial assets at amortised cost. Expected credit losses are
the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of a
default occurring as the weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group measures the
loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to
the expected credit losses that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of that financial instrument (“lifetime
expected credit losses”) for trade receivables, or if the credit risk
on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Loss allowances for expected credit losses (Continued)

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk on a financial
instrument (other than trade receivables) has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures the
loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal
to the portion of lifetime expected credit losses that represents
the expected credit losses that result from default events on that
financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the

reporting period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to adjust the loss
allowance at the end of the reporting period to the required amount

is recognised in profit or loss as an impairment gain or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits
with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. Bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group's cash management are also included as a component

of cash and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according
to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument
under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for specific financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a
contract with a customer with reference to the customary business
practices and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
For a contract where the period between the payment by the
customer and the transfer of the promised product or service
exceeds one year, the consideration is adjusted for the effect of a
significant financing component.

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a performance
obligation by transferring control over a product or service to a
customer. Depending on the terms of a contract and the laws that
apply to that contract, a performance obligation can be satisfied
over time or at a point in time. A performance obligation is satisfied
over time if:

— the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group's performance;

— the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

— the Group's performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time, revenue is

recognised by reference to the progress towards complete

satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is

recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains control of

the product or service.

Other revenue

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

Employee benefits

@

(b)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave
are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision
is made for the estimated liability for annual leave and long
service leave as a result of services rendered by employees up
to the at the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group participates in the MPF Scheme under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485
of the laws of Hong Kong) for qualifying employees of the
Group in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in funds under the control
of independent trustees. The Group contributes at the lower
of HK$1,500 or 5% of relevant monthly payroll costs to the
MPF Scheme, which contribution is matched by employees.
The Group's contributions to the MPF Scheme vest fully and
immediately with the employees. Accordingly, there were no
forfeited contributions available for the Group to reduce its
existing level of contributions to the MPF Scheme.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(c)  Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of the dates
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring costs
and involves the payment of termination benefits.

Share-based payments
The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain
directors, employees and consultants.

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors and employees are
measured at the fair value (excluding the effect of non market-based
vesting conditions) of the equity instruments at the date of grant.
The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled
share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of shares that will
eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non market-based

vesting conditions.

Equity-settled share-based payments to consultants are measured
at the fair value of the services rendered or if the fair value of the
services rendered cannot be reliably measured, at the fair value
of the equity instruments granted. The fair value is measured at
the date the Group receives the services and is recognised as an

expense.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year
Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or loss
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which deductible temporary differences, unused
tax losses or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all
or part of the asset to be recovered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Segment reporting

Operating segments and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group's most senior executive
management for the purpose of allocating resources and assessing
the performance of the Group's various lines of business.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of productions processes, the
type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not individually material
may be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related
to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the

Company or of a parent of the Company.

(b) An entity is related to the Group (reporting entity) if any of
the following conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Company are members of the same

group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group (reporting entity) if any of

the following conditions applies: (Continued)

V)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a plan,
the sponsoring employers are also related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management

personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to the
Company or to a parent of the Company.

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying

amounts of its tangible and intangible assets except investments,

inventories and receivables, to determine whether there is any

indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If

any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is

estimated in order to determine the extent of any impairment loss.

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an

individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the

cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset or cash-generating
unit in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss

is treated as a revaluation increase.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditures

expected to settle the obligation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability
of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional information
about the Group's position at the end of the reporting period or
those that indicate the going concern assumption is not appropriate
are adjusting events and are reflected in the consolidated financial
statements. Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements when material.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the directors have
made the following judgements that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

(a) Control over a subsidiary
Notwithstanding the lack of equity ownership in & A (it
R)BEMBEEMRADA (Life Healthcare (Beijing) Co., Ltd¥)
(“Life Healthcare™), the Group is able to exercise control
over Life Healthcare and its subsidiaries (“Life Healthcare
Group"”) through a series of agreements with all of its ultimate

shareholders (the “Structural Agreements”).
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies (Continued)
(a) Control over a subsidiary (Continued)

The directors of the Company assessed whether or not the
Group has control over Life Healthcare based on whether the
Group has the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of Life Healthcare unilaterally. In making their judgement,
the directors of the Company considered the Group's rights
through the Structural Agreements, and concluded that the
Group has sufficiently dominant voting interest to direct the
relevant activities of Life Healthcare and therefore the Group

has control over Life Healthcare.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are

discussed below.

(a) Impairment loss of trade and other receivables

The Group makes impairment loss of trade and other
receivables based on assessments of the recoverability
of the trade and other receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each debtor.
Impairments arise where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may not be collectible. The
identification of bad and doubtful debts requires the use of
judgement and estimates. Where the actual result is different
from the original estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying value of the trade and other receivables and doubtful
debt expenses in the year in which such estimate has been

changed.
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4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b)

Impairment loss of interest in associates

Interest in associates is reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. Value-in-use calculations are
used for assessing the recoverable amount of these interests.

These calculations require use of judgements and estimates.

Management judgement is required for assessing impairment
particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred
that may indicate that the related carrying value of interests
may not be recoverable; and (i) whether the carrying value
of the interests can be supported by the recoverable amount.
Changing the estimations used by management in assessing
impairment could materially affect the recoverable amount
used in the impairment test and as a result affect the Group’s
consolidated financial position and consolidated results of

operations.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(©

@)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation charges for the Group's
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives and residual
values of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. The Group will revise the depreciation charge where
useful lives and residual values are different to those previously
estimated, or it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or
sold.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant estimates are required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the

unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential

adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk
as most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities
are principally denominated in the functional currencies of
the Group's entities. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group will monitor its
foreign currency exposure closely and will consider hedging

significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Interest rate risk
The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to loan receivables which carried at fixed rates.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate bank balances.

The Group currently does not have interest rate hedging policy.
However, the management will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposure should the need arise.

In the opinion of the management of the Group, the expected
change in interest rate will not have significant impact on the
interest income on bank balances, hence sensitivity analysis is
not presented.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(©)

Credit risk

The carrying amount of the cash and bank balances, trade and
other receivables, loan receivables and loan interest receivables
included in the consolidated statement of financial position
represents the Group’'s maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to the Group's financial assets.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had certain concentration of
credit risk as approximately 37% (2021: 55%) and 93% (202I:
96%) of the Group's trade receivables were due from the
Group's largest customer and the five largest customers.

The credit risk on cash and bank balances is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(©)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group considers whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk of financial assets on an ongoing basis
throughout each reporting period by comparing the risk of
a default occurring as at the reporting date with the risk of
default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information.
Especially the following information is used:

— actual or expected significant adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant change to the borrower's ability to
meet its obligations;

— actual or expected significant changes in the operating
results of the borrower;

— significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same borrower;

— significant changes in the value of the collateral or in the
quality of guarantees or credit enhancements; and

— significant changes in the expected performance and
behaviour of the borrower, including changes in the
payment status of borrowers.

A significant increase in credit risk is presumed if a debtor is
more than 30 days past due in making a contractual payment.
A default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to
make contractual payments within 60 days when they fall due.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(©)

Credit risk (Continued)

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage
in a repayment plan with the Group. The Group normally
categorises a loan or receivable for write off when a debtor
fails to make contractual payments longer than 360 days past
due. Where loans or receivables have been written off, the
Group, if practicable and economical, continues to engage
in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the loans or
receivables due.

The Group uses two categories for non-trade receivables
which reflect their credit risk and how the loan loss provision
is determined for each of the categories. In calculating the
expected credit loss rates, the Group considers historical loss
rates for each category and adjusts for forward looking data.

5.

MERBEEE)

o FERKRGE)
BBEENABBEHELNR
B(MEBEAEZEREE

E KRR E)E M-
EHARE SR EB360H

M&WEATH%'J$E

EREBERAER
RE A*EJ//\{/EW% i & X
MR IAME - R A& E

EEBRATREEEERE
RS T - 4 & SRR & 1T
B E DR 0 E R ER
B o

$EIW%WE#E%T%

RE RBREAGERBESE
@E KEREB BTSN
R EBEAEEHERRE
AEEEZREBANZELE
ER ORS¢ (i

;| o,
1E

Category Definition Loss provision

%5l EE& BRE®

Performing Low risk of default and strong capacity to pay 12 month expected losses
B# & H BB 1K KR SR RE o8 1218 A & 518 18

Non-performing Significant increase in credit risk
EH EERBBERM

Lifetime expected losses

THEHER
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 5. MBEREEE)
(d) Liquidity risk d) REBEELER
The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and AEBEZHEREMEERR
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains AREHRBEEE R AU
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in BREKFZHRSHE
the short and longer term. KmmeEHRRAZRD
The maturity analysis of the Group's financial liabilities is as AEBHMBABZH MDA
follows: m

Less than | year

PR—F
HK$’000
At 31 March 2022 R-Z2--%=A=1+-H TET
Trade and other payables FER B 5 I HoAth & A 30R 34,890

Less than | year

PR—%
HK$'000
At 31 March 2021 RN-_E-_—%F=FA=t—H TAET
Trade and other payables ERNESREMENKE 26,135
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5.

146

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(e)

()

Categories of financial instruments

BERBRERE)
() BMIBETAER

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET
Financial assets: HHEE:
Fquity investment at fair value through & i H fl 2 E ¥ &= 1%
other comprehensive income NFEIECBRARE 37,258 38,294
Financial assets at amortised cost RBEKATEZNS
(including cash and cash EEBRIASR
equivalents) Be%SEM) 71,04 51,503
Financial liabilities: BHaE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost ~ REHK KNF E 2
BBAERE 34,890 26,135
Fair values f 2¥E

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities at amortised cost as reflected in the
consolidated statement of financial position approximate their
respective fair values.

FEEMBARRRARBRASE
B EER ARG E TG E
ERFHARZERERR
EEXANDTFEEE -
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FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 6. DFEFE
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or ATERERFERHMELESE
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market REKRFRZHPHEERE KR
participants at the measurement date. The following disclosures of FEZEBERAINNERS - UT
fair value measurements use a fair value hierarchy that categorises ATEFERBENDRAARGE
into three levels the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure ATFEZHEERTE®AZEZ
fair value: NB=ZRZATESERED:

Level | inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for FIRGARE: AEEARG
identical assets or liabilities that the Group can EAHMEM
access at the measurement date. AEEXER

IR BT 5 2
¥)-

Level 2 inputs:  inputs other than quoted prices included within FRBABE: KRERFE
level | that are observable for the asset or liability, Bz mBEN
either directly or indirectly. N BESRE

EPA-R AL
EABRGA
g

Level 3 inputs:  unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. FRBABE: BEXEBZ
TABREGA
8z -

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out AEBZHRREEZFHAEBR

of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or change in RYOESHEREAEREMN={

circumstances that caused the transfer. ERCBAREDL -
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6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 6. ATHEFEE)
(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 3| March 2022: @ R=ZB-ZZF=ZH=+-H
BRAVESHRE:
Fair value measurements using
RADTEHE
Level I: Level 2: Level 3: Total
IR B E3M At
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEXT TERT TET TER
Fquity investment at fair value ~BEBHMZ2EAREIE
through other comprehensive NFEIE
income BAEE - - 36990 36990
Total recurring fair value REMATETE
measurements ] = = 36,990 36,990
Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 March 2021: RZZEZ-F=A=+—-HRA
ERBE
Fair value measurements using
RADTHEIE
Level I: Level 2: Level 3: Total
Bk B B3 5t
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TET TERT TET @ TER
Fquity investment at fair value ~ BEBHME2AREE
through other comprehensive NFEIE
income BAEE - - 38037 38,037
Total recurring fair value REMATEIEZLSR
measurements - - 38,037 38,037
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FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based on level 3:

6. AFEITEE)
by BREFIRRAVEEE
EZHE:

Equity investments at fair value through

other comprehensive income

BREMEZEARERAVEIKRZ

BARE
2022 202
—E-C -
HK$’000 HK$'000
Description Bt TER TET
At | April 202 R-E-_—FNA—AH 38,037 -
Acquisition g = 35,495

Fair value loss recognised in REMEZEKRER

other comprehensive income AT {EF B (2,603) 2,460
Exchange difference b =8 1,556 82
At 31 March 2022 RZE-_—F=A=+—H 36,990 38,037
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6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 6. ATHEFEE)

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group ) FAEBRAGEERFURA
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value FESAERFAAGERTRE
measurements: ABEBZHE:

The Group's financial controller is responsible for the fair value AEECHBEFERENH
measurements of assets and liabilities required for financial HREANMEEEREREL
reporting purposes, including level 3 fair value measurements. ATEFE@EEIRQT
The financial controller reports directly to the Board of Bit8) MBEIEEENE
Directors for these fair value measurements. Discussions of EeEBZEATEFE -
valuation processes and results are held between the financial MBTeERESEEEED
controller and the Board of Directors at least twice a year. ETMABERFRERZ
A
Level 3 fair value measurements BEIRAFENE
Effect on fair value for
Description Valuation technique ~ Unobservable inputs Range increase of inputs 2021
BABBE MY
Bt CXEER FTIERGARE #E AYEZHE —T-—%
RMB'000
ARETR
Equity investments at fair value through other Market approach P/S ratio 7%-39% increase
comprehenswve Income
EREMEZARSRATEIRZRARE 5% [iEcp:S 7%-39% 0
Discount on lack of 15% decrease 36,990
marketability
B85 B 0 ) 15% a4 36,990
i
Equity investments at fair value through other Discounted cash flow ~ Growth rate 33%-50% increase
comprehensive income method
BRHEM2EARSEATEINEZRAEE BERSRER  HRE 33%-50% 1M
Discount rate 19.85% decrease 38,037
BHR=E 19.85% &2 38,037

Market approach was adopted as valuation technique for the
year ended 31 March 2022 as the Group considered it will
better reflect the fair value of the investment.

150

BE-_S-_—_F=ZA=1+—
ALEEE MEBEEERA
fBERNT FERAAEASER
AEBFUMRBREENA
TE-



N\
° ENEREREEEARALT

N

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R R R M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 BIEZZT--F=RA=+—HIFE

REVENUE

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable for
products delivered and services provided by the Group to outside
customers during the year.

K &
KaEAEERAEFREANRE
PRNERRRERB ZE R R
JE U KR

2022 2021
—E-C —E %
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAET
Revenue from contracts with customers XERFAHM R
— Healthcare services — @ FRR % 7,390 25,298
— Healthcare products —REEM® 84,728 73,655
Loan interest income XA EWA 755 3,088
92,873 102,041
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers: REEFEAKBEDIN:
Geographical markets HE TS

For the years ended 31 March 2022 and 202I, all revenues from
healthcare services and trading of healthcare products were
recognised in PRC.

Timing of revenue recognition

For the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, all revenues from
healthcare services and trading of healthcare products were
recognised at a point in time.

BE-_T-__ERN-_F-—F=H
=+—HUIEEE 2BRERER
REEREFWFHNOEER -

W 7 7 5 BF B
BE-_E-_—KR-FT-_—F=8
=+—HLtEE 2BRERBER
BRERESIREZIRE—KE
EHER
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REVENUE (Continued)

Healthcare services

The service income is recognised when the services are rendered,
the amount for which can be reliably estimated and it is probable
that the income will be received.

A receivable is recognised when the services are rendered to the
customers as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is required before

the payment is due.

Healthcare products

Sales are recognised when control of the products has transferred,
being when the products are delivered to a customer, there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer's acceptance
of the products and the customer has obtained legal titles to the
products. Sales to customers are normally made with credit period
within 365 days.

A receivable is recognised when the products are delivered to
the customers as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is required before
the payment is due.

Wz (&)

RER®
BRBRARNEH RS EER A
& R AE 5 AT Se fh AT 3 TR AT AE IR
KA

f% KRN [/ & P IR fft R 75 B 1
B RABEDRERAE G
R BN RERMER
FERRA -

REE®
AEBRERZEHEER (BIMA
XPERFNER)  BEABTEAE
?/E.%)E'%z WE%EE)EEHX
BEMZETHMERERRHEE
B oAEE—RUEFHEERE
36SHRZEEH -

ﬁ% RRAEPRMNEm®mE
B Flﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁ E R 1
ZEBE NBINRBEAER
R R o
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information was reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM"),
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focusing on types of goods or services delivered or
provided. This is also the basis upon which the Group is organised.

For the year ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, the Group has two
operating and reportable segments, namely (i) healthcare products
and services business and (ii) money lending business.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3. Segment
loss/profit represents the loss/profit of each segment without
allocation of interest income, other income and gains, share of result
of associates and central administration costs. This is the measure
reported to the Group's CODM for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and allocating
resources among segments, all assets and liabilities are allocated to
operating segments on the basis of the revenue earned by individual
reportable segment. Segment assets exclude interest in associates,
equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive
income, prepayment and unallocated corporate assets while segment
liabilities exclude tax payable and unallocated corporate liabilities.
This is the measure reported to the CODM for the purpose of
resource allocation and performance assessment.

7 # & ¥

AAABHTES(AIZEEER
RE)(XTZEERREBDBRSEN
KPEERRIEDHBRRCE
REFRARNEIRHEZE R
RAGEE - TAAEASE MK
BeEE-

BE_T-__FR-T-—F=H
S+-BLEE ASEEMEAL
ERAEZEHLIB NOREERK
REEBRNVEEER

KermzeTBRERZ3IMA
ZASBEEHABRER - 2 HE
B/BMNERDPEMEKRA K
A RS AEBERAZ
FEARBPRITBAKRZE D H
R/ &M -t hmAEEEE
EERREERADEEREF
ERBZFTEREE -

RERDPBRARENHZHED
EER MBEENRABEDRE
BI2R D BB aE s EE
NEERENH P HBEETE
RRBEAR R BRHEML
2ERBEAFEIEZBARL
& BNFERADEAREE -
moHEETEREMNFREARK
PTERAAE - WIIRMEREE
REEZRADEERRFHR
R 8HE-
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. HMERE)
Segment revenue and results SHkEREE
For the year ended 31 March 2022 BE_E__fF=-F=+—-HIF¥F
E
Healthcare
products Money
and services lending
business business Total
REERK
R 7% 3% %% HEEH st
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TR TER TR
Revenue g 92,118 755 92,873
Segment loss 7 #E B (2,348) (1,876) (4,224)
Interest revenue I 8 M & 6
Other income and gains Hofth e A R 58 927
Share of result of associates DEBE AR ER (5,936)
Unallocated expenses AN X (27,460)
Loss before tax BR B AT &S 1B (36,687)
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8. ZHWERE)

Segment revenue and results (Continued) PHMURBEREE(E)
For the year ended 3/ March 2021 HE-_ T —F=ZA=+—HIF
B
Healthcare
products Money
and services lending
business business Total
REEMR
B EH e & %% Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THTT THET THT
Revenue Was 98,953 3,088 102,041
Segment profit 7 & Al 7,741 2,761 10,502
Interest revenue I 8 M & 344
Other income and gains HAh A R ez 2,608
Share of result of associates DEBE AR ER (5,001
Unallocated expenses AAEXH (7.812)
Profit before tax BR % A1 4 A 641
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. HERE)
Segment assets and liabilities THEERER
As at 31 March 2022 R-E-Z—F=ZH=1+-H
Healthcare
products Money
and services lending
business business Total
REERR
PR 7% % % BEXK @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT THER TERT
Segment assets DEEE 196,055 9 196,064
Interest in associates i RN A 67,814

Equity investments at fair value 38 H i 2 E & 1%
through other comprehensive ~ AFEFI IR 2 KA E

income 37,258
Unallocated corporate assets ~ AN B AAEE 1,804
Consolidated total assets RAEERE 302,940
Segment liabilities "HERE 27,094 44 27,138
Tax payable ERNHE 4,244
Unallocated corporate liabilities K2 B AR EE 8,174
Consolidated total liabilities HAREAR 39,556
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 BIEZZT--F=RA=+—HIFE

8. SHERE)
THEERERE(Z)
R-_E-_—F=H=+—H

Healthcare

products Money

and services lending
business business Total

BREMN
PR %5 % 7% EEXH st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET
Segment assets oA E 232,735 22,653 255,388
Interest in associates N ANCI P X 14,436
Equity investments at fair value BREMEZEPREE R TE
through other comprehensive Il ik < IR &A1& &

income 38,294
Prepayment B HIE 13,789
Unallocated corporate assets A D B A EE E 3,101
Consolidated total assets GeBREME 325,008
Segment liabilities AHEE 22,343 - 22,343
Tax payable PR I8 3,472
Unallocated corporate liabilities K9 B QB A E 4,507
Consolidated total liabilities HERERE 30,322
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. HMERE)
Other segment information Hitt o HER
For the year ended 31 March 2022 BE_E__fF=-F=+—-HIF¥F
E
Healthcare
products
and services Money lending
business business Unallocated Total
BREERK
RBRK REEHR A E At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TR TR T T
Depreciation of property, plant nE BERBEFE
and equipment 774 - - 774
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREBENE 775 - - 775
Impairment of prepayment BERRERE 13,978 - - 13,978
Impairment of interest in associates REE AR ZERRE 9,101 - - 9,101
For the year ended 31 March 202/ BE T —F=HA=F+—HIF
E
Healthcare
products
and services  Money lending
business business Unallocated Total
REEMK
RBEXH fEE X% ADE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TAT TET
Depreciation of property, plant mE - BERR
and equipment nE 927 - - 927
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 954 - - 954
Impairment of trade receivables EWESRIBRE 34 = = 34
Impairment of prepayment BNFERE 4,351 = = 435
Impairment of interest in associates REEEREZEHRE 3,180 = = 3,180
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical information

Healthcare services and trading of healthcare products revenue for
the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, were revenue derived
from contracts with customers, the geographical information of
revenue could be referred to note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.

For the year ended 3| March 2022, loan interest income
derived from Hong Kong was approximately HK$755,000 (202I:
HK$3,088,000).

Information about the Group's non-current assets by geographical
location of the assets are detailed below:

THBERE)

WEEN
BE-_Z-__FR-_F-_—F=H
S+-HLEEE RERBEEE
EnESRaREEFEHN A
Bl thEBERTL2HKEEH
BHRRM LT

BE-_T-__#=ZHF=+—-HL
FE REFBZERMBKA
#) /7550008 T(Z T = — F:
3,088,000/ 7T) °

FRASEREEMENES D
ZHERDEEEHFENT :

2022 202
—E=-= —E-—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

THER TEX

PRC F 105,473 54,341
Hong Kong BB 419 11,892
105,892 66,233
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. HMERE)
Information about major customers TERFEHR
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER THAT
Healthcare products and services business {& 5% 2 mn M AR 7% % 15
Customer A EPA = 66,203
Customer B ZFB 84,690 =
No revenue was generated from this customer for the year ended 31 March ) BE-Z--_F=A=+—HLF
2022. B REREREREFR -
# No revenue was generated from this customer for the year ended 31 March # BE-S-_—=-HA=+—HL#%E
2021 B RERBRBARP
9. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 9. HttARK &
2022 2021
—E-C —E—fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT TAET
Exchange gain, net R R 2 80
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR 2 - 2,448
Sundry income MIERA 925 80
927 2,608
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FINANCE COSTS 10. BF# KA
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FTET
Lease interest 23 63
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 1. FBHEAX
2022 2021
—E-C %
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Hong Kong Profits Tax: BERNEH
— Current year —ERFE 631 [l
PRC Enterprise income tax (the “EIT") B b % P 1S B
(TEEMBEH]D
— Current year —EBRFE - 2,976
631 2,987
For the year ended 31 March 2022 and 202!, Hong Kong Profits BE_T-__§R-FT-—-F=A

Tax is calculated under two-tier profits tax system under first HK$2
millions of estimated assessable profits is taxed at a rate of 8.25%
and remaining estimated assessable profits is taxed at 16.5%. The

Group should elect one of the Hong Kong subsidiaries to apply the

two-tier profits tax rate.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of
the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from | January 2008 onwards.

S+—HUEEE BANGHE
FEHmEHETE  HeTERT
i 1 52,000,000 7T % B £8.25%
BB mBTMHErERE & A
BREICSHHH - REBEET
Eh—XEBHNBARIEAMR
Hl MG E o

RETECEAEHRE(LEZEMR
BREZDREEAEHREZE EK
fl - hEMBARE _TTNF—
A—BEZHERB25%
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MV-F

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the

FEHRRAXE)
AERZABHAXERARER

profit/(loss) before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or Hi BB amR2BRBANEN
loss and other comprehensive income as follows: (BR)EEMOT:
2022 2021
—E=-= —E -
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT THTT
(Loss)/profit before tax BRI (B8, &7 (36,687) 641
Taxation at the domestic income tax rate &8 it Fﬁ 15 B 1 %8.25%
of 8.25% (2021: 8.25%) (ZFEZ—5%:825%)
AAEZHIE 165 I
Taxation at the domestic income tax rate &2 728 3 B 13 5 1 % 16.5%
of 16.5% (2021: 16.5%) (ZEZ—F:16.5%)
AAEZHA (6.379) 16
Tax effect of income not taxable and BRERTMA LA AR
expenses not deductible for tax purpose  FI X < B 15 7 & 3,601 (517)
Effect of different tax rates of entities REMAIZEREEZER
operating in other jurisdictions ZARRE ZE ZEB (442) 1,757
Tax effect on share of result of MABRIEBERRIER
associates not recognised IMBEE 950 800
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised MABRMBEER BB
2 2,736 820
631 2,987
Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on BEAFECERERE BZF

dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries from | January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has
not been provided for in the consolidated financial statements in
respect of temporary differences attributable to the profits earned
by the PRC subsidiaries, the Group is able to control the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group's subsidiaries in the
PRC have unused tax losses of approximately HK$79,940,000 (2021:
HK$73,759,000) available for offset against future profits, which will
expire in five years. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the tax losses and the deductible temporary differences

due to unpredictability of future profit streams.

LOSS FOR THE YEAR
The Group's loss for the year is stated after charging the following:

FriEsimx (&)

RBEBR AEE2PEKEB
NEIF#79940,0008 T (ZF=—
F 173,759,000 7T) 2 A B) A L 75
BRUMEKERR RN AHH
BRF - AR REETEF R K& F
RE RUBRBBEBRATMN
REREZERRAEERBEE -

rEEBR
AREZAEEBERIRAOKET
DI BBREN:

2022 2021

—E-C —E—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

TER TET

Auditor's remuneration ZE R & 1,800 1,880

Cost of inventories sold BEFERK 79,119 73,719
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BELRRBTE

equipment 774 927

Depreciation of right-of-use assets CRERENE 775 954

Expenses related to short-term lease HHAERY 1,107 356

Impairment of trade receivables JE Y 8 5 R IE R A - 34

Impairment of prepayment B FERE 13,978 4,35

Impairment of interest in associates REERB 2 ERRE 9,101 3,180

Directors’ remuneration (note 13) = HM (M E13) 1,961 2,937

Other staff costs HthBETHA 4,170 4,063

Retirement benefits scheme contributions, & k18 F| 51 2 £ 3%
excluding directors (TBEEES) 570 478
Total staff costs BIRABEE 6,701 7478
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS 3. EERFETHAEMS
For the year ended 31 March 2022 BE-_E-__F=F=1—-HIFE

Contribution
Salaries  to retirement
and other benefits
Fees benefits scheme Total
FeR RIKEF
e HtEA BE K3 @t

Note ~ HK$000  HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
P 5 TERT TERT TExT THER
Executive Director HITES
Xu Xue Ping wRET (i) 1,229 - - 1,229
Man Wai Lun X & B 140 - 7 147
Pang Zhen & E (i) 38 = | 39
Non-Executive Director FHTES
Fu Xiao Ji AT (ix) 140 - - 140
Independent Non-Executive BYFHITES
Director

Liu Xinghua Xi| ¢ 4 140 - - 140
Cheng Chun Man ik R (iii) 80 - - 80
Zheng Xin & % (iv) 70 - 3 73
Wang Yang T (ii) 38 = | 39
Li Li &) (v) 7l - 3 74
Total et 1,946 - 5 1,961
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[3. DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EMOLUMENTS

(Continued)

For the year ended 3/ March 202/

3. EERFETBAEMS(ZE)

B _F_—FE=fJ=+—HIFE

Contribution
Salaries  to retirement
and other benefits
Fees benefits scheme Total
ek BKGE A
we HaEH T B4t 5K B
Note HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
g 5F TET FHET FTET TER
Executive Director HITES
Xu Xue Ping (G e 1,800 - - 1,800
Man Wai Lun X 12 B 200 - 10 210
Yang Zhiying mER (vi) 9l - - 9l
Non-Executive Director EHTES
Fu Xiao Ji B E ik |41 - - 141
Shan Hua B2 b (vii) 83 - 4 87
Independent Non-Executive BYFHITES
Director
Zheng Chunlei HER (viii) 100 - - 100
Liu Xinghua pdp e 240 - — 240
Cheng Chun Man ik K 120 - - 120
Zheng Xin iR (iv) 141 - 7 148
Total @t 2916 - 21 2,937

165



S

LIFE HEALTHCARE GROUP LIMITED -

¥ Annual Report (A
-/

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B SRR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 BEZEZZT--F=R=+—HIFE

3.
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DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were paid for
their services in connection with the management of the affairs
of the Company and the Group. The non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were paid for their services as directors
of the Company or its subsidiaries. The independent non-executive
directors’ emoluments shown above were paid for their services as
directors of the Company.

The bonus was determined on a discretionary basis with reference
to the individual's performance.

Notes:
0) Resigned as a director on 6 December 202|

(i) Appointed as a director on 6 December 2021

(i) Resigned as a director on 30 November 2021

(iv)  Appointed as a director on 31 August 2020 and resigned as a director on
31 August 2021

(v)  Appointed as a director on 3| August 2021 and resigned as a director on
25 April 2022

(vi)  Appointed as a director on 17 January 2020 and resigned as a director on
19 October 2020

(vii)  Redesigned from an executive director to non-executive director on
8 November 2019 and resigned as a director on 9 December 2020

(viii)  Resigned as a director on 3| August 2020

(ix)  Resigned as a director on 25 April 2022

13.

ESERFETBRAEMS(E)

LTRATESZHEM IR BB R
FEEARARASEEZH 2R
BMxfN  LAFRTESTZH
MR ESERRARKIENE
RAIBEEZRBMN - LB
FATESCHFMNNRBESER
ARAIEFEZRBM XA

EADSEENALTRAREE
H‘Z—O

() RZTB_—F+t_ARAHRIEES

iy RZEZ—F+-A BEZEA
%

iy RZZEZ—F+—R=+HEHGLE
E3

vy RZE-ZTFENA=+-HEZf
ABBEEYRN_ZE-_—FNA=1T—
HBTES

v RZE-_—FNR=+-—HEZf
AEEYR-_T-__FWMA=-t+H
ABiffE=S

vy RZZEZZF-RT+tHEZ#IEA
EEWR-_Z-TETATARH
TEs

Vi) RZFE-AFE+-AN\HARTE
EATAHTESRR-_E-F
F+_ANBEAIES

(iiy RZZEZZTENA=T-BHEEZ

3
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The five highest paid employees during the year included one (2021

one) director, details of whose remuneration are set out above.

Details of the remuneration of the remaining four (2021: four),

highest paid employees for the year are as follows:

ESERFETBRAEMS(E)

FR - hARmRFHEEERE -
H(ZEZ-F:—R)EF HF
MEFfHREX-BTHACCE
“FERNRFARRTMESR
C USRI

2022 2021

—E-C —E—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

TER FET

Salaries and other benefits HeKkHEMmEH 2,205 2,196
Retirement benefits scheme contributions & K {8 F 5t 2l it 7% 356 216
2,561 2,412

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

REMeNFATHE:

Number of employees

BEAY
2022 2021
—E-C B —F
Below HK$!,000,000 & 71,000,000 7o 3 3

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000

1,000,001 78 7T £1,500,0007 7T

During the years ended 31 March 2022 and 202l, no emoluments

were paid by the Group to the five highest paid individuals or

directors, as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office.

BE-_T-_—_ER-_FT-—%=§
S+ —BLFEE AKEYERT
AERBHFATRES N E M H
CERSBEMESIMERAEEM
BRYNRSKEERAME -
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14.
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DIVIDENDS
The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the years ended 3| March 2022 and 2021,

LOSS PER SHARE

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to owners of
the Company is based on the loss for the year of approximately
HK$34,458,000 (2021: approximately HK$4,583,000) attributable
to owners of the Company and the weighted average number of
approximately 1,285,025,000 (2021: approximately 1,204,052,000).

Diluted loss per share
The effects of all potential ordinary shares are anti-dilutive for the
years ended 3| March 2022 and 2021.

KA
EEfEERBE_T-__FR
R F=ZA=+—HIEFEK
NEMEKE -

BRESR

SREXER

KRR BEAELEERELRE
BOREALAEEAEMHER
F[Z 18 434,458,000 L (= &
— — % #4,583,000% T) & 4
1,285,025000fx (= & = — F: 4
1,204,052,0000%) i #& ¥ 19 & &
% o

SREEER
@izf::iﬁ_?_—i A
S+—BRLEFE FAEEELAR
HNAERBEYE -



6.

N\

° ENEREREEEARALT

20225
N

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR RMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 BIEZZT--F=RA=+—HIFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

6. NE BERR®E

Furniture,
fixtures and Leasehold
equipment improvements Total
B EEBER
®E HEDEEES st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT
Cost D
At | April 2020 R-ZZ-_Z5WA—A 4,945 6,404 11,349
Disposals it & (15) - (215)
Exchange adjustments Rk 374 517 891
At 31 March 2021 and | April 2021 R-E--§=A=+—-H
K=ZB=--FWMA—-H 5,104 6,921 12,025
Addition HE 13 - 3
Exchange adjustments XAz 205 292 497
At 31 March 2022 R-E--#=H=1+-H 5,322 7,213 12,535
Accumulated depreciation 1
At | April 2020 RZZ_ZFMWA—H 3,042 6,309 9,35
Provided for the year AEFERE 830 97 927
Disposal of subsidiaries & M B2 A (148) = (148)
Exchange adjustments RSk 251 515 766
At 31 March 2021 and | April 202I R=B=—-5=A=t—H
K=ZB=--FWMA—-H 3,975 6,92l 10,896
Provided for the year rEERE 774 - 774
Exchange adjustments XA 172 292 464
At 31 March 2022 R-E--#=H=1+-H 4,921 7,213 12,134
Carrying value HREE
At 31 March 2022 R-E--#=H=1+-H 401 = 401
At 31 March 202 RZZEZ—-4$=H=+—H 1,129 = 1,129
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RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 7. FHEEE
2022 2021
—Eg-C —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FET

Right-of-use assets ERAEEE

— Land and buildings — T REF 419 680
Lease commitments of short-term leases R Eif & 2 E & E 666 869

The maturity analysis, based on undiscounted cash flows, of the

Group's lease liabilities is as follows:

ARAMB RS HE 2 AEEH
& B EEEAFIMT -

2022 202|
—E=-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER TEX
—Less than | year — PR —%F 264 729
—Between | and 2 years — —FEWF 176 -
440 729

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets { A& EHTE X I
—Land and buildings — T RETF 775 954
Lease interests MERNE 23 63
Expenses related to short-term leases RHHERS 1,107 356
Total cash outflow for leases HERERLARE 1,937 [,351
Additions to right-of-use assets FTREEERE 503 -
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RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 7. ERAEEESA)
The Group leases various land and buildings. Lease agreements AEEHEZEIHMEEF - H
are typically made for fixed periods of approximately 2 to 3 years. EREBERANEIFZEEM
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide HAGT S - M E 1R PR & Bl K £ 5
range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do H EREIZBIRZERK
not impose any covenants and the leased assets may not be used as Bt o M & 1 & N AR B AN AE 7] 22
security for borrowing purposes. w RHEEEENAARERE
AR
INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES 18. RBKEDQF 2
2022 2021
—E-C %
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TET
Unlisted investments: FLMRE:
Share of net assets NIEEEFE 93,818 31,964
Loan to an associate BT —FHBERAZERK 11,073 10,448
Impairment loss HEBE (37,077) (27,976)
67,814 14,436
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8. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

As at 31 March 2022 and 202I, the Group had interest in the

following associates:

Name of entity

Form of entity

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

and operation

Proportion of nominal value of
issued share capital/registered
capital held by the Company

’ﬂZ%%ﬁ)

ERZE-_—F=AH
SERATEE QA

Principal activity

HEmEL ADRFBERTRE/
ERER {32t BYRSENE i & A EE G TEXK
2022 2021
—E-C —E-—F
BMEREMEMREM  Incorporated PRC 30% 30% Research and
BRRA ERIAvE f development of
genetic testing
2% 5 A Bl
BENES (ER) Incorporated PRC 25% N/A  Manufacturing
REEEERAT R 2 ] NiE B and sales of
healthcare products
HEREEREEM
REGRTER Incorporated PRC 25% N/A  Manufacturing
EWERAA Rl Ay 2] B and sales of
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The following table shows information of the associate that is

R R R M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 BIEZZT--F=RA=+—HIFE

material to the Group. These associates are accounted for in the

consolidated financial statements using the equity method. The

summarised financial information presented is based on the HKFRS

financial statements of the associates.

18. RE=
TRHNEAREEM =
S HARER -
AEx

DNEIZER(E)
BEXKZ
FEBEDRRK

ERNEARBRRARK -

FEJMBENBRELDERE 2
RERBEAMBREEUNRH
BBE®EK

BEHES LWRES
Name ()R RBIEBHRHIW BME R EMERKN
£ EEFRATE BERAH BRAH
2022 2022 2022 2021
—E-C-F —E-C-F —E-CF —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT THERT THERT TERT
At 31 March: R=B=+—-H8:
Non-current assets FETRBEE - - 123,883 123,906
Current assets RBEE 147,959 123,296 450 4,796
Current liabilities ok =R = = (37,652) (22,155)
Net assets BERE 147,959 123,296 86,68l 106,547
Group's share of net assets AEBDHEEFE 36,990 30,824 26,004 31,964
Year ended 3| March: BZE=A=+t—-HLEE:
Revenue Y &= = = 409 456
Loss from continuing operations TEEEEBZER - - (19,787) (16,669)
Loss after tax from discontinued BREREEBZ
operations PRtz E 8 - - - B
Other comprehensive loss Hit2EER - - (79) 8,723
Total comprehensive loss FEBREAH - - (19,866) (7,946)
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INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

As at 31 March 2022, the bank and cash balances of the Group’
associates in the PRC denominated in RMB amounted to
approximately HK$271,547,000 (2021: HK$736,000). Conversion of
RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC's Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations.

EQUITY INVESTMENT AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

18. REtERNT 2R (E)

RZE-_—f#=ZA=+—-H' K
SERPEHEZBERANAR
BAELROTRBRGERDR
271,547,000% T(Z T = — F:
736,000/8 L) - ARBH NG AE
FHEISNEE HIRB o

ERHEMZERSZREDFES
RzRARE

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—-F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TAT
Equity securities BAE 5

— Unlisted equity securities — FEMRAE S
—ERHFEFERBERRERAT —ERHFEFERBERRERAT 268 257
— I RENRRBEMEERAA — I RENRRBENEERAA 36,990 38,037
37,258 38,294

The above investments are intended to be held for the medium to
long-term. Designation of these investments as equity investments
at fair value through other comprehensive income can avoid the
volatility of the fair value changes of these investments to the
profit or loss. The It R ERRB AR KR BER A A used the
cost of the investment approximated to their fair value. The cost
of the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive
income approximate its fair value and is an appropriates estimate
of fair value since there is insufficient latest information available to
measure fair value. It REMF KB BRI R BB DA is stated as

fair value.

LRBREDFEERTREKRE
MEB - EHEARRERERE
temREE A FEIERZ B
REAMEREEAREZATEHE
PUHBRELRD - LRHER
REEMRAERARMERNRK
ERAEAQNFEBER BBE
tEEREE R FEIERZ B
RERABEDNVEMEE LA
RAYEzBEERS RERY
BERARMEHBUGFERTFE
TRENRAERMBRAERRA
BRFEIIE -
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PREPAYMENT 20. EMAKE
On 25 October 2017, the Group granted share options with a RZZE—tFTAZTHB K&
total fair value of HK$20,947,000 to certain consultants of the AAEEETERREIATAR
Group covering a service period up to October 2027. The Group 18 520,947,000 7T 2 B R # © FT
recognised total expense of approximately HK$2,095,000 (2021: RMEZRBAUE_T_LF+HA
HK$2,095,000) for the year ended 31 March 2022 in relation to I AEERBE_T__F=FH
such share options granted. The remaining value of the options ST-HLEFERZEEREE
of approximately HK$11,694,000 (2021: HK$I3,789,000) was fully AR T 2R 4R B XX #92,095,00058 T
impaired during the year ended 3| March 2022. (ZTZ—%:2,095000%7T) ° &
ER__F-A=T—HIEFE-
BB 4B 2 BR T EEA911,694,0008
T(ZEZ—%:13789,0008 ) B
BERE -
INVENTORIES 2. FE
2022 2021
—E-= —E %
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT TET
Consumables B 7 m 0] 13
Software o { - 54,167
10 54,180
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LOAN RECEIVABLES/LOAN INTEREST RECEIVABLES 2. BRER EUREHRFE
2022 202
—E=-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Secured loan receivables EWAEBER - 17,154

The loan receivables granted to customers are mainly ranging from
3-9 months. As at 31 March 2021, loans to third parties with an
aggregate principal amount of approximately HK$17,154,000 were
secured, bear interest at 18% per annum and are repayable within
one year and thus classified as current assets. The loan receivables
are due for settlement at the date specified in the respective
loan agreements. The loan receivables together with the interest
receivables were fully settled during the year ended 31 March 2022.

As at 31 March 2021, loan receivables amounting to approximately
HK$17,154,000 together with interest receivables from the one third
party of which approximately HK$5,489,000 were pledged by a
property.

BRYEFZEREREENT329
A R—E_—%=A=+—H"
f& TE=FARELEHIT7154000
BLIZERBEER REMX

IBEFEREAR—FAER ¥
"*Eﬁ/;lﬁb,éf?oﬁuﬂzfﬁﬂwﬂ
ERmEiE T AR HEE -
@i_gz:ﬁ—ﬂ—+—5¢¢
B EBUREFREREFRFEE

iuB/ﬁ 1,5 °

R-ZE-_—F=A=+—H ' EK
B F#917,154,0007% 7T & 7 fE W —
HE = 27 B #5489000% T
W—TE R (EHR -
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22. LOAN RECEIVABLES/LOAN INTEREST RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

The ageing analysis of loan receivables based on the loans draw

down date at the end of the reporting periods is as follows:

ERER TERERHNE )

RBEHAR REFRERAHE
DR E R 2 BREe D AT T :

2022 2021

8- —E %

HK$’000 HK$'000

THER FAETT

Over 365 days 3658 & - 17,154
Loan interest receivables: EREFRFE:

Loan interest receivables represented interest accrued on the loan
receivables over due according to the terms of the relevant loan
agreements. The ageing analysis of loan interest receivables based on
the loans draw down date at the end of the reporting periods is as
follows:

B SR SR R B E R
S ERAMERER R
Fle o MBS BERIEDA
1 2 5| U B 2R 8 2 BB A I
mF:

2022 2021
—E-C —F—F

— =

HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAET

0 to 90 days 0£90H

91 to 180 days 91Z180H

181 to 365 days 1812365H
Over 365 days 365H A £

- 771
- 772
- ,544
- 2402

- 5,489
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES EWREZREMERRE
2022 2021
—Eg-C —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FET
Trade receivables EWE 55 IE 24,358 11,550
Less: allowance for trade receivables BoEKE S REE G (139) (133)
24,219 11,417
Prepayments and deposits BRNRERES 132,778 157,589
Less: allowance for prepayments and BoENFERREE
deposits (6,781) (4,497)
125,997 153,092
Other receivables H i fE Y 71 7B 9,420 8,869
159,636 173,378
Included in prepayments and deposit are mainly advances to ENREREEBRIER
suppliers for purchases of goods amounting to HK$125,997,000 net HEERENBEENNRX

of impairment provision of HK$6,781,000 (2021: HK$149,908,000
net of impairment provision of HK$4,497,000).

For the year ended 3| March 2022, for the receivables from

healthcare services and trading of healthcare products, the Group
allows a credit period 0 — 365 days (2021: 0—365 days) to corporate
customers. Most of the healthcare services were receipt in advance

from individual customers.

125,997,000 T ?u B R B &

16,781,000/ (=

g F:

149,908,000/ 7T+ 0 & R (B # &

4,497,000 JT) °

HE-_Z-__F=A=+—-HI#F
E AEEREREEABRER

B 52 B

EEHAE0ZE365H(

Z365H) o KB
RIEPETEWEE -

BRTEEEFZ
“F—F:0
75 B R# Th A



23.

N\
° ENEREREEEARALT

N

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R R R M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 BIEZZT--F=RA=+—HIFE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 23 EWESRHMEYRHKEE)
Allowance for trade receivables BREZHERE
The movements in allowance for trade receivables are as follows: ERESHERGEHNOT
2022 2021
—E-C —T—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
At beginning of the reporting period R & B4 133 90
Allowance for the year FRRE - 34
Exchange adjustments b 58 & 6 9
At the end of the reporting period Rl & B R 139 133

Aged analysis of trade receivables is presented based on the invoice
dates at the end of the reporting period, which approximate the

RESHR REZEH(EAH
KERABRED)2IERES

respective revenue recognition dates, are as follows: HBZRRDITIT :
2022 2021
—Eg-C —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET
Within 90 days 90B A 3,317 8,495
91 = 180 days 912180H - 214
Over 181 days I8IB A 20,902 2,708
24,219 1,417

The Group applies the simplified approach under HKFRS 9 to
provide for expected credit losses using the lifetime expected loss
provision for all trade receivables. To measure the expected credit
losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics and the number of days past due. The expected
credit losses also incorporate forward looking information.

AEBEREMABEERHEREENSE
IRMBTIRELE RAERRES
REAER2HRBERRBAR
RHEEERRER - RHE

BHEERRE BRUESNEE
$E|<T§ —T’r{m/\ Mtl:\ %&&t/ﬁﬁa

ol -BHEEFERTESA
EHEHN -
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

23. EWESRHEMERTEE)

Over
[-30 days  31-60 days 60 days
Current past due past due past due Total
i) IZ308  31Z60H  #iB60H Bt
At 31 March 2022 R-E--f#=H=+-H
Weighted average expected MEFYFEHEBRE
loss rate 0% 0% 0% 1% 1%
Receivable amount (HK$'000) EWHBE(FE 1) 3,318 = = 21,040 24,358
Loss allowance (HK$’000) BEEE(TER) 0 = = (138) (139)
At 31 March 202! R-Z-—F=ZA=1+—H
Weighted average expected MmiEELERERER
loss rate 0% 0% 0% 4% 1%
Receivable amount (HK$'000) &Y B (F B T) 8,499 2 = 3,049 11,550
Loss allowance (HK$'000) BREEE(TET 4) = = (129) (133)

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

As at 31 March 2022, the bank balances and cash of the Group
denominated in RMB amounted to HK$35,055,000 (2021:
HK$1,121,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject

to the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations.

4. BITEHRRES
R-ZE-_—_F=F=+—8B ' &&
BEUAARBHBZEIRESE
4 535,055,000 T (ZE=—F:
1,121,0008 L) e ARE K INE A
BB ANE B B R o
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5. BNESZREMENTE

2022 2021
—E-C —E
HK$’000 HK$'000
TRET TET
Trade payables P8 5 58 5,009 11,003
Accruals and other payables (note) FEET B A I Bt JE £ 3K 0B (M 5%) 29,88l 15,132
34,890 26,135
Note : B 5

The amounts included provision for litigation of RMB5,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$6,165,000) in relation to a legal claim brought against the Group
by an intermediary for trading of healthcare products. The provision is made based
on a PRC court’s decision. The Group is currently seeking legal advice for a further

appeal on the claim.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based
on the invoice dates at the end of reporting period:

HBERREB—EFNARREEREER
AEERBHERZRBIELNFARE
A R #5,000,0007T (1 & 7 46,165,000
TL) o ZEETRERBAR AR EEDL -
AEERABESRKEZERARREE
HE—HLEF

RESHR REZEHZIE
NEZRBZEEIMMT

2022 2021

—Eg-C —E—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

THER FTET

Within 90 days 90H A 3,698 6,366
91-180 days 912 180H 6 95
181 days to | year I8IHEIF = 2,407
Over | year E:V 1,305 2,135
5,009 [1,003

The credit period granted by suppliers is normally within 90 days as

R-_E-__F=R=+—H: fE

at 31 March 2022 (2021: within 90 days).

BRTFZEEHBEAOBR(CZ
Z-—F:90HRA) o
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26. LEASE LIABILITIES 26. HEARE
Lease payments Present value of lease payments
HEMX HEARRE
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-C-F —E-—F —E-C-F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THER TET THERT TET
Within one year E—F 264 729 249 715
In the second to fifth years, E_EZERE
inclusive (BEEEME) 176 - 173
440 729 422 715
Less: Future finance charges B R E R (18) (14) -
Present value of lease liabilities MEARBRE 422 715 422 715
Less: Amount due for settlement 3§ : 1218 A A JE & & 3L E
within 12 months (shown (RRBBEBETIIR)
under current liabilities) (249) (715)
Amount due for settlement 12 A 1% e & E 508
after 12 months 173
At 31 March 2022, the average effective borrowing rate was 4.75% RZE-__F=A=+—0" ¥4
(2021: 4.75%). Interest rates are fixed at the contract dates and thus BHEEERRAT% (ZE—F:
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. 475%) c MEREH BT - B

EASEEGRFENZRRR -
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27. BRAE

Number of shares

BB BE
Notes '000 HK$'000
Pt &E TR TR
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at —EZEFMNA-BZ
I April 2020 SFREHEOBTLZYE 50,000,000 500,000
Share consolidation (note b) Rt & B (B b) (b) (40,000,000)
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each at RZB_—FKk_FT__
31 March 2021 and 2022 ZA=t—-R2
FREESE T ZEEMK 10,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BT &%(E
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at RZZE_EFWA-HZ
| April 2020 BREMECBT 2 EBR 5,354,285 53,543
Issue of shares on placement (note a) RERETRR (M) (a) 1,070,840 10,708
Share consolidation (note b) & 15 & B (B 5Eb) (b) (5,140,100)
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each at RZB-_—4§Kk-T-—
31 March 2021 and 2022 ZA=t+-R2
BREECSE T EBMK 1,285,025 64,251

Notes: B

(@  On 30 July 2020, the Company entered into a placing agreement with a @ RZEZZFLA=+H A2
placing agent in respect of the placement of 1,070,840,000 ordinary shares HREERBIVEEHE W A
of HK$0.0l each to independent investors at a price of HK$0.028 per BB S R0.028% LB 1 [/ B
share. The placement was completed on |7 August 2020 and the premium UREBEEREGREECOETZ
on the issue of shares, amounting to approximately HK$18,575,000, net of 1,070,840,000% % & X ° &% AL & 1
share issue expenses of approximately HK$700,000, was credited to the ZEEENAATEERRRED
Company's share premium account. Bfn.2 w8 (&8 418,575,000 T

10 BR B 7 % 17 32 i #9700,00078 7T)
FARRA 2 KRG EE R -

(b)  Pursuant to a special general meeting resolution passed on 2| September (b) BERZZ-_TFARA=-T+-— E|L
2020, every 5 ordinary shares of HK$0.0l each in the issued and unissued BZBREFIARERER AR
share capital of the Company were consolidated into one consolidated ZE%?‘T&*%?'—JHX$¢‘%E@
ordinary share of HK$0.05 each in the issued and unissued share capital of 0O0IBTHESREBREHARR
the Company effective on 23 September 2020. AR ZBBORRETRAGE

MR EE0.0SE T 2 I A HF il A% -
RZZBE-ZTFEAAFT=ZAEH -
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27.

184

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising
the return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged

from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, net of
cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and accumulated
losses.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure regularly.
As part of this review, the directors of the Company consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. The
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, issuance of new shares as well as the issue of new debt

or the redemption of borrowings.

27. BRA(E)

EXxEBER
AEEERHEERANERARE
EREARERE RANERE
EEH R RAE TSR R D HRE
HEERKF - AEEZERR
BRERATEFEHFITE -

AEBEZEAR %a%1%@ﬁ@ﬂ
GRRENMAEFEY  ARAR
%EAEE%&)EE%H&$*
Lk RFEHRAX -

ARAIESTHENEARE -
ERZENZ-R ARREEE
EE$&$&E%@E$H%Z
CAEEREBIRNBE
%ﬁ%hu&ﬁh%1&h &
ERTVTEHEBRBERRE -
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28. RESERVES

(@)

Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and movements therein

are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income and consolidated statement

of changes in equity.

28. fhfE

(@

rEE

AEERELEDSEZT
nNEeRakEbeEls
RRGABAEHRA

Company (b) EAF
Share
Share  Contributed Other option Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
BRE
RGeE RARR HiRe e R¥ER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TEr ThEr  TAR TET  TER
At | April 2020 RZF_EEMA-A 1,275,023 167,780 5518 17036 (1,311,606) 153,851
Loss and total comprehensive loss AFEBRR2ABRESE
for the year - - (81,342) (81,342)
Placing of new shares under RE-REEEENRNM
general mandate 18,575 = = = 18,575
At 31 March 202 RZZZ-5=A=1—-H 1293598 167,780 5518 17036 (1,392,948) 91,084
At | April 2021 RZZ2--£NA-A 1,293,598 167,780 5518 17,136 (1,392,948) 91,084
Loss and total comprehensive loss AEE BB R 2HEEE BE
for the year - - - - (18,022) (18,022)
At 31 March 2022 RZZZZE=A=1—-H 1,293,598 167,780 5518 17,136 (1,410,970) 73,062
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29. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES OF 29. KAAMBERREREFEE
THE COMPANY
2022 2021
—E-C %
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FAETT
Non-current assets 3'5 futu@J ﬁﬁ
Investment in subsidiaries KRB AR ZRE - -
Prepayments B RIE - 11,694
= [1,694
Current assets MEEE
Loan receivables & W & X 10,448 10,448
Amount due from subsidiaries JFE Us B B A R UIA 612,160 129,549
Other receivables H 4 fE U 5708 1,625 3,720
Bank balance and cash ROBEBRER S 1,501 5,004
625,734 148,721
Current liabilities mEAaE
Amount due to subsidiaries FER KB AR 5B 480,549 250
Other payables H & 5K 1B 7,872 4,830
488,421 5,080
Net current assets RBEESFE 137,313 143,641
Net assets BEFE 137,313 55,335
Capital and reserves BEXK
Share capital & 64,251 64,251
Reserves & 5 73,062 91,084
Total equity Ea e 137,313 155,335
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Equity-settled share option scheme

On Il April 2002, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Old Scheme™) for the primary purpose of providing incentives to
any directors (including executive directors, non-executive directors
and independent non-executive directors) and employees of the
Group and any advisors, consultants, distributors, contractors,
suppliers, agents, customers, business partners, joint venture business
partners, promoters, service providers to the Group (“Participants”)
who the board of directors considers, in its sole discretion, have
contributed or shall contribute to the Group. The Old Scheme
shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing on
[l April 2002. Under the Old Scheme, the board of directors of
the Company may grant options to the Participants to subscribe for
shares in the Company.

On 18 September 2012, the Company adopted a new share option
scheme (the “New Scheme”) with an effective period of [0 years
commencing on 18 September 2012. The Old Scheme expired
on 10 April 2012. The principal terms (including the purpose and
participants) of the New Scheme are similar to the Old Scheme. All
other provisions of the Old Scheme shall remain in full force and
holders of all options granted under the Old Scheme prior to such
expiry shall be entitled to exercise the outstanding options pursuant
to the terms of the Old Scheme until expiry of the said options.
The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the New Scheme and any other
schemes of the Group shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
Shares in issued as at the date of the passing of the resolution on
refreshment of the mandate limit of the New Scheme on 26 August
2014.

30. URBRERZAXK

DREEEBRETS

RN—_EE-_FNA+—8  £ARQ7
K —BERETE (&S
FZENERRBESS2HD
BRACKIBSHAEBEDL
BERfZAEEIMEZ(REHRAT
EZ FHRTEERBIUENNT
ER)REE URAEETME
B BAA DD AEH - #
EE- KRB BEF ERKEH A
EEBEME BRARRBEHEE
B(2EE]) BB ST
FOA+—HEFIOFEAEN - RIE
Eifg ARREZSMBEE
BHBEREARBBERIARS

RZE——FNA+N\B  ARQF
R —EF R st 8l ([Fratgll)
BE-E——FAA+TN\BEI0E
BEX - EFEERN-_T——FWA
+HE®M - MtBlcETERR(R
BEMR2EE)BEFE B -
EgmEEMBEXMAETR
BH MRERABEENEK
HeFEBEREZEBEABRER
T ERERERA - BEEE
LERTERATE 2 BRE -
HITERENTERANEBRTM
HMzg TRy cmEBKRE
MARET s ROBE &HF
SHBER-_Z—NFNA=F+H
BBEBETNAEAEERE L
REREACETRM210% °
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30.

188

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

At 31 March 2022, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the New
Scheme was 86,040,000 as adjusted to reflect the impact of share
consolidation on 23 September 2020 (202I: same), representing
8% (2021: 8%) of the shares of the Company in issue at that date.
No option may be granted to any Participant of the New Scheme
such that the total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted and to be granted to that person
in any |2-month period up to the date of the latest grant exceeds
1% of the Company's issued share capital from time to time unless
shareholders’ approval has been obtained pursuant to requirements
under the New Scheme and the Listing Rules. An option may be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the New Scheme at
any time during a period as determined by the board of directors
of the Company and not exceeding |0 years from the date of the
grant. There is no minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised. Participants of the New Scheme
are required to pay the Company HK$1.0 upon acceptance of the
grant on the offer date. The subscription price of the options is
determined by the board of directors of the Company in its absolute
discretion and shall not be less than the highest of:

(@) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets on the date of the grant, which must be
a business day;

(b) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotation sheets for the five trading days

immediately preceding the date of the grant; or

()  the nominal value of a share.

30.

LR ABER ZARE)

RZE-_—F=A=+—8" #:t
FETEROBAARTFERRE
BT 35 N B 19 28 B 4 86,040,0000% (3
BURBMR-_Z-_TFAA=T=
AR e E)(ZT_—%:
HRE) HEREARARRNZAD
THRHDZ8% (ZE=_—F:8%) 1R
BHFAEAR TR AT K
FERELSE TAREERA
REBEBMoE@MEALRE 15
RMFFEcEMNLEERDBR
B REFEETHFERTEABEET
DAL EREMBETRETZ
TZBRHBEBEBEARATELZ
BRITRARI%  BRETREN
FECZBRTRARAREZCET
JHBETEBBREBHRBEIO
FABRTUITE FIREZE
BENETETEN T EREH
EHBRZHRT - REHHBEH
BHE - Mgl c2EERARAK
RAEAIZHIOETL - BREZRE
BHAARZEZELENEET
EABERTIEEZRS

@ BORRLHEBHWEARER
B EBLMERRER MR
ZWE

b BROREERLBHANLE
RHZIBEMIAEBERER
Pz PR mE: K
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30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

The share option has no vesting period and exercisable from

25 October 2017 to 24 October 2027.

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share

options held by independent third parties during the vyear:

Outstanding

30, URODABERZARE)
BRETERES YAR-Z
—+E+RB-+HEAE-_E -+ F
TAZ+MBHMEFUTE -

TREBALDARKFEME L

FoORACERER

Grand

Exercise

Outstanding

at | April  during the year  during the year at 31 March

NEA—H R=RA=+—A

MATTE AFEERE AFEEFR K17 6

2021 i b2 86,040,000 - - 86,040,000
Exercisable at the end of the year ~ RELA FI7{F 86,040,000
Weighted average exercise price MEFHTEE HK$0.9027% 7T N/A /8 F NATRER  HK$09027 7T
Outstanding Grand Exercise Outstanding

at | April  during the year  during the year at 3| March

REA—H R=A=t+-H

HATE AEEERE FFEETR te R AT €

2022 —E-Z 86,040,000 - - 86,040,000
Exercisable at the end of the year RERT F17E 86,040,000
Weighted average exercise price MEFHTEE HK$0.902 7% T N/A 138 A NAFRBR  HK$0.902%# T
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30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)
Fair value of the share option was calculated using the Black-Scholes
pricing model. The inputs of the model were as follows:

Grant date

R A

Fair value at measurement date
AERMZATE
Share price

& 5 B 1%

Exercise price
TEE

Expected volatility

T8 B K 18

Expected life
HEr

Risk free interest rate
i 2 B A R

The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility. Expected
dividend are based on historical dividends. Changes in the subjective
input assumption could materially affect the fair value estimate.

190

30. UROBRER ZARE)
BERELLAFEDERB IR —
HENTERAGE  BA2H
ABEWT :

25 October 2017
R_E—tFE+A=-+AH
HK$20,947,000
20,947,000/ 7T
HK$0.178
0.17878 JT
HK$0.1804
0.1804/& 7T
1.14%

11.14%

|0 years

104

.88%

.88%

RHRBAELKEAKE &
HAC B R LAE 2 BB B KR © fid
TERRBABREEMED A
SHATEZREBREATE -
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31. CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING 3, METHNEEEH
ACTIVITIES

Lease liabilities

HEAE

HK$'000

TEX

At | April 2020 RZZE_ZTFNHA—H 875

Changes in cash flows Bengsd (995)
Non-cash changes FHEEH

— Interest charged — BRI B 63

— Early termination — AL (31

— Exchange adjustments — B E 83

At 31 March 2021 and | April 202I R-BE-—-$=B=+-HEK

—2-_-fMA-H 715

Changes in cash flows BeRERD (830)
Non-cash changes kREED

— Interest charged — WER & 23

— Addition —nE 503

— Exchange adjustments —EXAE 1

At 31 March 2022 R-—Z2-_-§=HR=+-—H 422
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32. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE 2. EBAIKE
Key management personnel remuneration TEEBAEME
The remuneration of directors of the Company and other members REBEME AARIESERkEM
of key management who have authority and responsibility, directly or ERGHAEEREREERE B
indirectly, for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the BREHASEXBZETEER
Group during the reporting periods were as follows: ABZzBMemT:
2022 2021
—E-C %
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE7 FHT
Short-term benefits A2 HR 43 A 4,151 5,112
Post-employment benefits R A 371 237
4,522 5,349
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Place of
incorporation/
establishment and

Issued and fully
paid share capital/

TEMBRRAFE

Proportion of nominal value of
issued share capital/registered

Name of subsidiary Notes operation registered capital capital held by the Company Principal activities
BRI/ RIR EBRORARKREK/ ERAFBERTRE/
MEAREH ik Ben EmEx & A A A TEEH
2022 2021
—E-CF —E_-F
Directly held subsidiary
EEBANELT
Tack Fiori International Group Limited BVI US$I 100% 100%  Investment holding
FEEREEARAR RERZRE 1= RERR
Indirectly held subsidiaries
MEEAHELR
Life Healthcare Corporate Services Limited Hong Kong HKS$! 100% 100%  Corporate administrative
services
BB BT PRERRE
Real Victor Limited Hong Kong HK$! 100% 100%  Investment holding
EFARAH B 17T REER
TF Treasury Activities Limited BVI Us$l 100% 100%  Securities trading and
investment
ABRRHE 1= BHREERKE
EN(ER)BERBARAA (@ and () PRC RMBI,000,000 100% 100%  Healthcare services
@kp) HE AR H1,0000007 i R PR 7%
TRENEERBMERDA (@ and () PRC RMB6,000,000 100% 100%  Healthcare services
@ko) HE AK%6,0000007 B R%
BHENRERBREREERARA (@) and (b) PRC RMB6,000,000 100% 100%  Healthcare services
@kb * AR #6,0000007 e B PR 7%
Allied Kingdom Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100% 100%  Money lending business
EEBERERAR Bt 1007 7T BEXB
BNEREARRBRAR (a) PRC RMB30,000,000 51% 5% Trading of healthcare
products
@ g AR #30,0000007 REEREE
IREAEENRERAR @ PRC HK$1,000,000 100% 100%  Trading of healthcare
products
@ e 1,000,000 7T EREREE
FTREAREERERAA @ PRC RMB40,000,000 65% N/A  Trading of healthcare
products
@ FE AR 40,000,0007 TER REEREER
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Note:

(@)

The companies were established as limited liability companies under laws of
the PRC.

No equity interests of Life Healthcare was held by the Company. 3t R &
MERBMHEBERADF (the “EFEE"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the VIE Agreements with Life Healthcare and its
then shareholders on 29 March 202|. Notwithstanding the lack of equity
ownership, through the VIE Agreements, 3 fl {# fZ is able to exercise
control over Life Healthcare Group by way of controlling the voting rights of
Life Healthcare, governing their financial and operating policies, appointing
and removing the majority of the members of their controlling authorities,
casting the majority of votes at meeting of such authorities and deriving
economic benefits from Life Healthcare Group. Accordingly, Life Healthcare
Group is accounted for as subsidiaries of the Group. As all shareholders of
Life Healthcare were contracting parties to the VIE Agreements, 100% of the

financial results of Life Healthcare Group is attributable to the Group.

These companies are subsidiaries owned and controlled by Life Healthcare.

34. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

194

(2)

Placing of new shares under general mandate

On 14 June 2022 (after the trading hours), the Company
entered into the placing agreement with the placing agent,
pursuant to which the placing agent has conditionally agreed
to place, on a best efforts basis, up to 257,000,000 placing
shares to placee(s) at the placing price of HK$0.105 per placing
share. Details of the placing of new shares please refer to
the announcement dated on 14 June 2022. The placing was
completed on 5 July 2022.

33. FEMBLATFEE)

B &E

@

ARBUEFEEMER 2 i -
RZE-_—F=ZA=-+A1H ' £AA7
ZEEMBARILREMEREHL
ERAR([EMER)EENEE
&H“ﬁZ%ﬁﬂjvmﬁﬁ°h
BERENGRAEARE EBBIT
¢VE%N~ ENREEREEBES
ENBECREREMEGNENEE
£8 EFEHEUBREERK %
AREREEREB I RBAKE
TREBEZ 2Z LR RZEE
DR EMEBESBERAEM -
At BENEREEEANEEZ
MBARIE ARENEE,ZE
F%%ﬁm%%Zﬂ%ﬁ i

BEEBEZI0ONVBEERBR
ZK%I
RELRABENBEEARESZ
BBAR -

34, REHREE

(@)

BE-REEREHRHA
RZEZZEAATHEA(R

4

HEBRRK) KA EEE
REFTUEEHE Bt

REREBEEERUHMAERE
NRAABRANEREEBER
it & i% £0.105% & I & &
%757,000,0000% A2 & Mz 17 °
TR EREFBEFLHEA
ME-_T-__FXHA+MA
LR ZREEFER-T
“—F+AHEBEMK -
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34. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD (Continued)

(b)

Disposal of equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income

On 29 June 2022, the Group entered into a disposal
agreement with an independent third party (the "“Purchaser”)
to dispose the Group's 15% interests in Beijing Life Healthcare
Zhongcheng Medical Technologies Co., Ltd (b 2 & 1 & 5
BEMEABRAA), at a consideration of RMB30,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$36,990,000). The
consideration was fully received by the Group subsequent to

the end of the reporting period.

35. APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the Board of Directors on 3| August 2022.

34, MEMBREEE)

35.

(b) HEZEBHEMZAWZERA
FEIRZRARE
NZEBEZZFA=thHB "
AEBEBYE=H(E
BRI HERE UAR
#30,000,0007C (H & R &
36,990,000 L) MR B L &
AEBERIERENRKEE
B AR AEH 5% % o A
EERBREPREEBEHK
BB -

HERSMBRR
HRMBHRREN-_T-_FN\A
St PESESeRERKET

o
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LFEUBME
KEY FINANCIAL RESULTS TENKEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
=B 2% _T_TH _E-NFE _T-N\HF
HK’000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000
TER TET FTHET TET FTHET
Turnover from continuing operations & EE £ v L ¥ 8 92,873 102,041 58,061 48,589 47615

Loss for the year from continuing TERERBIAFR

operations BB (37,318) (2.346) (23,723) (121,434) (93,685)
Loss for the year from discontinued E#&IFEBHZAFE

operations B 18 = = = (20) (3,717)
Loss for the year AEEBE (37,318) (2,346) (23,723) (121,454) (97,402)

Loss for the year attributable to: WTATEREREEER:

Equity holders of the Company ARAEEFAA (34,458) (4,583) (24,854)  (118,854) (94,242)
Non-controlling interest I3 R = (2,860) 2,237 1,131 (4,181) (3,160)
(37,318) (2,346) (23,723) (123,035 (97,402)

2022 202 2020 2019 2018

—E_-f ZT-—F ZZZZ2F ZT-NEF ZZ-)N\EF
HK’000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000
TR TET FEx FET FHT

Assets and Liabilities EERERE
Total assets BERE 302,940 325,008 303,949 300,586 420,423
Total liabilities BRAH (39,556) (30,322) (54,405) (12,245) (22,582)
263,384 294,686 249,544 288,341 397,841
Capital and reserves BAREE
Equity attributable to MTATEG#ER
— Equity holders of the Company ~—ARBEZRFAA 262,283 290,582 247431 288,34l 398,807
— Non-controlling interest — R RER l,101 4,104 2,113 - (966)
263,384 294,686 249,544 288,341 397,841
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